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PART |

Item 1. Business

This report contains forward-looking statemsemithin the meaning of Section 21E of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934. Words such as
“projected,” “expects,” “believes,” “intends” an@ssumes” and similar expressions are used to fgdativard-looking statements. These
statements are made based upon current expectatidrgrojections about our business and assumptiade by our management are not
guarantees of future performance, nor do we assuny@bligation to update such forward-looking statats after the date this report is filed.
Our actual results could differ materially from sigoprojected in the forward-looking statementsiiany reasons, including the risk factors
listed in Part I, Item 7 “Management’s Discussamd Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©perations — Additional Factors That
May Affect Future Results” and the risk factors tzamed in Item 1 below.

General

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (‘leat or the “Company”) design, develop, manufacamd sell temperaturastivated and oths
specialty polymer products for a variety of foodghucts, agricultural products, and licensed paraip@lications. This proprietary polymer
technology is the foundation, and a key differdimgaadvantage, upon which the Company has bailtisiness. In February 2003, the
Company changed its fiscal year end from a fisearyncluding 52 or 53 weeks that ended on theSaatay in October to a fiscal year
including 52 or 53 weeks that ends on the last Sy May.

The principal products and services offergdhie Company in its two core businesses — Foodurts Technology and Agricultural Seed
Technology — and in the Technology Licensing/ Reseand Development business are described belimanéial information concerning
the industry segments for which the Company regdtteoperations during fiscal years 2002, 2004 20@b and for the seven months ended
May 25, 2003 is summarized in Note 14 to the Caddatgéd Financial Statements.

Landec’s Food Products Technology busingssrated through its subsidiary Apio, Inc., combibasdec’s proprietary food packaging
technology with the capabilities of a large natidioad supplier and value-added produce procedsos. combination was consummated in
December 1999 when the Company acquired Apio,dnd.certain related entities (collectively “Apio”).

Landec’s Agricultural Seed Technology busin@perated through its subsidiary Landec Ag, (iandec Ag”), combines Landec’s
proprietary Intellicoat® seed coating technologyhwits unique direct marketing and consultativdirsglcapabilities which it obtained with its
acquisition of Fielder’'s Choice Direct (“FieldeiGhoice”), a direct marketer of hybrid seed cornSéeptember 1997.

In addition to its two core businesses, thenfany also operates a Technology Licensing/ Relseard Development business that licenses
products outside of Landec’s core businesses tgsinglleaders such as Alcon, Inc. (“Alcor@)d UCB Chemicals, a subsidiary of UCB S.A
Belgium (“UCB”). The Company also engages in reseand development activities and supplies prodioct®mpanies such as L'Oreal of
Paris. For segment disclosure purposes, the Teatmdlicensing/ Research and Development busindaslisded in Corporate and Other (in
Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme

To remain focused on its core businesseS¢ciober 2002, the Company sold Dock Resins Corjpar&tDock Resins”), its specialty
chemical subsidiary. The Company made the decisiaell Dock Resins in order to strengthen its hedasheet by reducing debt and other
liabilities. As a result of the sale of Dock Resitie financial results of Dock Resins have beetassified to discontinued operations for all
applicable years. Unless otherwise specified, if@rination and descriptions provided in this repetate only to the continuing operations of
the Company.

In June 2003, the Company sold assets assdaidth its former domestic commodity vegetablsibess in order to focus on Apio’s
growing value-added specialty packaging and expasinesses.
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The Company’s core polymer products are basets patented proprietary Intelimer® polymersjet differ from other polymers in that
they can be customized to abruptly change theisiohycharacteristics when heated or cooled thr@ugte-set temperature switch. For
instance, Intelimer polymers can change withinrimge of one or two degrees Celsius from a nonsadaestate to a highly tacky, adhesive
state; from an impermeable state to a highly pebheestate; or from a solid state to a viscous Hetate. These abrupt changes are repeatedly
reversible and can be tailored by Landec to octapecific temperatures, thereby offering substdiebmpetitive advantages in the Company’
target markets.

The Company was incorporated in CalifornieQmober 31, 1986. The Company completed its irptiglic offering in 1996 and is listed
on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “IOND

Technology Overview

Polymers are important and versatile matefialind in many of the products of modern life.t@@rpolymers, such as cellulose and natural
rubber, occur in nature. Man-made polymers inclugen fibers used in carpeting and clothing, cagdinsed in paints and finishes, plastics
such as polyethylene, and elastomers used in abieoes and latex gloves. Historically, syntlegtiolymers have been designed and
developed primarily for improved mechanical andtie properties, such as strength and the abdityithstand high temperatures.
Improvements in these and other properties anddBe of manufacturing of synthetic polymers halenald these materials to replace wood,
metal and natural fibers in many applications dherlast 50 years. More recently, scientists haeeded their efforts on identifying and
developing sophisticated polymers with novel préipsrfor a variety of commercial applications.

Landec’s Intelimer polymers are a proprietelass of synthetic polymeric materials that resptntemperature changes in a controllable,
predictable way. Typically, polymers gradually charn adhesion, permeability and viscosity overldrtemperature ranges. Landec’s
Intelimer materials, in contrast, can be desigmeexhibit abrupt changes in permeability, adhesiot/or viscosity over temperature ranges as
narrow as 1°C to 2°C. These changes can be desigroedtur at relatively low temperatures (0°C t@%D) that are relatively easy to maintain
in industrial and commercial environmerféggure lillustrates the effect of temperature on Intelimexterials as compared to typical polymers.

Effes of Temperarnre sa Lnelimer Harariels s, Toplea! Polvnirs

Pl Material

Landec’s proprietary polymer technology iséxhon the structure and phase behavior of Intelinzerials. The abrupt thermal transitions
of specific Intelimer materials are achieved thiotige controlled use of hydrocarbon side chainsdhaattached to a polymer backbone.
Below a pre-determined switch temperature, themelys side chains align through weak hydrophobiieractions resulting in a crystalline
structure. When this side chain crystallizable pwy is heated to, or above, this switch temperatbese
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interactions are disrupted and the polymer is franged into an amorphous, viscous state. Becauséréimsformation involves a physical and
not a chemical change, this process is repeateubrsible. Landec can set the polymer switch teatpsr anywhere between 0°C to 100°C by
varying the length of the side chains. The revéedifansitions between crystalline and amorphoatestare illustrated iRigure 2below.

Puteliomer Materials " Wewmpreratonrs Sudich

Crysialline Amorphous

Side chain crystallizable polymers were fitisicovered by academic researchers in the mid:495Bese polymers were initially
considered to be merely of scientific curiositynfra polymer physics perspective, and, to the Cowigdmowledge, no significant commerc
applications were pursued. In the mid-1980’s, Day Btewart, the Company’s founder, became intetdstthe idea of using the temperature-
activated permeability properties of these polynterdeliver various materials such as drugs antiqiéss. After forming Landec in 1986,

Dr. Stewart subsequently discovered broader ufititthese polymers. After several years of bassearch, commercial development efforts
began in the early 1990’s, resulting in initial goats in mid-1994.

Landec’s Intelimer materials are generallgthgsized from long side-chain acrylic monomers &ne derived primarily from natural
materials such as coconut and palm oils, that igidyhpurified and designed to be manufactured ecunally through known synthetic
processes. These acrylic-monomer raw materialharepolymerized by Landec leading to many diffeséde-chain crystallizable polymers
whose properties vary depending upon the initiglemials and the synthetic process. Intelimer makeian be made into many different forms,
including films, coatings, microcapsules and diseferms.

Description of Core Business

The Company participates in two core busiseggnents — Food Products Technology and Agrialltseed Technology. In addition to
these two core segments, Landec will license tdolgyaand conduct ongoing research and developnrehsapply materials through its
Technology Licensing/ Research and Developmentrigssi
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Food Products Technology Busine

The Company began marketing, in early figealr 1996, its proprietary Intelimer-based BreatagW breathable membranes for use in
fresh-cut produce packaging market, one of thegigfrowing segments in the produce industry. Laisderoprietary BreatheWay packaging
technology when combined with produce that is pgsed by washing and in some cases cut and mixad{sén packaged produce with
increased shelf life, reduced shrink (waste) arttiout the need for ice during the distribution eycThis is referred to as “value-added”
products. In December 1999, the Company acquirad,As then largest customer in the Food Produlietshnology business and one of the
nation’s leading marketers and packers of prodacdespecialty packaged fresh-cut vegetables. Apiwiges year-round access to specialty
packaged produce products, utilizes state-of-thé&@sh-cut produce processing technology andidiges to the top U.S. retail grocery chains,
major club stores and to the foodservice indudthe Company'’s proprietary BreatheWay packagingr®ss has been combined with Apio
into a wholly owned subsidiary that retains thed\pnc. name. This vertical integration within theod Products Technology business gives
Landec direct access to the large and growing feestand whole produce market.

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Proprietémelimer Packaging Technolog

Certain types of fresh-cut and whole prodeene spoil or discolor rapidly when packaged in @rtional packaging materials and are
therefore limited in their ability to be distributéroadly to markets. The Company’s proprietaryarteWay packaging technology extends the
shelf life and quality of fresh-cut and whole produ

Fresh-cut produce is pre-washed, cut andggmakin a form that is ready to use by the consameiis thus typically sold at premium price
levels compared to unpackaged produce. Accorditigetdnternational Fresh-Cut Produce AssociatidRRA”), in 2004, the total U.S. fresh
produce market was estimated to be between $1$020 billion. Of this, U.S. retail sales of frestt produce were estimated to comprise :
of the fresh produce market. The Company belielvasthe growth of this market has been driven lmsaomer demand and the willingness to
pay for convenience, freshness, uniform qualitfetseand nutritious produce delivered to the poiihsale. According to the IFPA, the fresht
produce market is one of the highest growth aneastail grocery stores. And according to the PoedMarketing Association the fresh-cut
produce category is growing at double digit ratédemotal produce is only growing at 2% to 3% pear.

Although fresh-cut produce companies havesumdess in the salad market, the industry has #leento diversify into other fresh-cut
vegetables or fruits due primarily to limitatiomsfilm and plastic tray materials used to packagsH-cut produce. After harvesting, vegetables
and fruit continue to respire, consuming oxygen @atelasing carbon dioxide. Too much or too littkygen can result in premature spoilage
decay and, in some cases, promote the growth aboriganisms that jeopardize inherent food safeonv@ntional packaging films used tod
such as polyethylene and polypropylene, can be mittienodest permeability to oxygen and carbon iiexbut often do not provide the
optimal atmosphere for the

-6-




Table of Contents

produce packaged. Shortcomings of conventional ok materials have not significantly hindereddghewth in the fresh-cut salad market
because lettuce, unlike many vegetables and frag,low respiration requirements.

The respiration rate of produce varies fraggetable-to-vegetable and from fruit-to-fruit. Tdrellenge facing the industry is to develop
packaging for the high respiring, high value anelfslife sensitive vegetable and fruit markets. TB@mpany believes that todaytonventionz
packaging films face numerous challenges in adgptmmeet the diversification of pre-cut vegetataled fruit evolving in the industry without
compromising shelf life and produce quality. Tomirthe growth experienced in the fresh-cut saladket, the markets for high respiring
vegetables and fruit such as broccoli, cauliflovesparagus, papayas, bananas and berries wilfeegunore versatile and sophisticated
packaging solution for which the Company’s BreatlMdackaging technology was developed.

The respiration rate of produce also varigh temperature. As temperature increases, prodenerally respires at a higher rate, which
speeds up the aging process, resulting in shorteimelfllife and increased potential for decay, @, and loss of texture and dehydration. As
produce is transported from the processing plaoutih the refrigerated distribution chain to foasg=e locations, retail grocery stores and
club stores, and finally to the ultimate consunemperatures can fluctuate significantly. Thereftemperature control is a constant challenge
in preserving the quality of fresh-cut and wholedarce — a challenge few current packaging filmsfoéfill. The Company believes that its
temperature-responsive BreatheWay packaging tecgnpas well suited to the challenges of the proddiséribution process.

Using its Intelimer polymer technology, Landes developed packaging technology that it befie@ddresses many of the shortcomings of
conventional packaging materials. A membrane idieghpver a small cutout section or an apertura fééxible film bag or plastic tray. This
highly permeable “window” acts as the mechanismprtivide the majority of the gas transmission regmients for the entire package. These
membranes are designed to provide three princgradfits:

« High PermeabilityLande( s BreatheWay packaging technology is designednmip&ransmission of oxygen and carbon dioxideGa
times the rate of conventional packaging films. Twempany believes that these higher permeabilitglgewill facilitate the packaging
diversity required to market many types of fi-cut and whole produc

* Ability to Adjust Oxygen and Carbon Dioxide Permibgh BreatheWay packaging can be tailored with carboride to oxygen transfer
ratios ranging from 1.0 to 12.0 and selectivelynsrait oxygen and carbon dioxide at optimum ratesusiain the quality and shelf life of
packaged produc

* Temperature Responsivendsandec has developed breathable membranes thakeadesigned to increase or decrease permeability in
response to environmental temperature changesCohgany has developed packaging that respondgehoxygen requirements at
elevated temperatures but is also reversible, efuns to its original state as temperatures declihe temperature responsiveness of
these membranes allows ice to be removed fromigteladition system which results in numerous beasefihese benefits include (1) a
substantial decrease in freight cost, (2) reduiskdaf contaminated produce because ice can beriarcaf micro organisms, (3) the
elimination of expensive waxed cartons that cateotecycled, and (4) the potential decrease in weldted accidents due to melted i

Landec believes that growth of the overatiquce market will be driven by the increasing dednfam the convenience of fresh-cut produce.
This demand will in turn require packaging thatilftates the quality and shelf life of produce tsanrted to fresh-cut distributors in bulk and
pallet quantities. The Company believes that inftihere its BreatheWay packaging technology willdseful for packaging a diverse variety of
fresh-cut and whole produce products. Potentiabdppities for using Landec’s technology outsidehef produce market exist in cut flowers
and in other food products.

Landec is working with leaders in the cludret retail grocery chain and foodservice marketi® Company believes it will have growth
opportunities for the next several years through cestomers and
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products in the United States, expansion of itst@ag customer relationships, and through expaitsiipments of specialty packaged produce.

Landec manufactures its BreatheWay packathiraugh selected qualified contract manufacturatsraarkets and sells BreatheWay
packaging directly to food distributors.

The Business: Apio, In

Apio had revenues of approximately $179 wiillfor the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005, $168ionilfor the fiscal year ended May 30,
2004, $90 million for the seven months ended May22®3 and $161 million for the fiscal year endexidber 27, 2002.

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio, whequaed in December 1999, consisted of two majoinasses — first, the “fee-for-service”
selling and marketing of whole produce and sectmlspecialty packaged fresh-cut and whole valukdgbrocessed products that are washec
and packaged in our proprietary BreatheWay packgadihe “fee-for-service” business historically imded field harvesting and packing,
cooling and marketing of vegetables and fruit @oatract basis for growers in California’s SantarislaSan Joaquin and Imperial Valleys as
well as in Arizona and Mexico. The Company exitieid business and certain assets associated witiutieess were sold in June 2003 to #
Fresh, LLC (“Apio Fresh”). Apio Fresh is owned bgup of entities and persons that supply prodadpio, including Nicholas Tompkins,
Apio’s President and Chief Executive Officer. Untlee terms of the sale, Apio Fresh purchased ceemilipment and carton inventory from
Apio in exchange for approximately $410,000. Inmection with the sale, Apio Fresh will pay Apio @m-going royalty fee per carton sold for
the use of Apio’s brand names and Apio Fresh andvither growers entered into a long-term supplgegent with Apio to supply produce to
Apio for its fresh-cut value-added business. TlesHrcut value-added processed products businassdpged within the last nine years,
markets a variety of fresh-cut and whole vegetatuldle top retail grocery chains and club stobrsing the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005,
Apio shipped more than sixteen million cartons fduce to leading supermarket retailers, wholesafeodservice suppliers and club stores
throughout the United States and internationalfymarily in Asia.

There are five major distinguishing charasters of Apio that provide competitive advantagethe Food Products Technology market:

*Value-Added SupplieApio has structured its business as a marketesalhet of fresh-cut and whole value-added prodlids.focused
on developing its Eat Smart® brand and the Dole@brfor all of its fresh-cut and whole value-adgeoducts. As retail grocery and
club store chains consolidate, Apio is well posiéd as a single source of a broad range of proc

* Reduced Farming RiskApio reduces its farming risk by not taking ownepsbf farmland, and instead, contracts with growfers
produce. The ye-round sourcing of produce is a key component tdrést-cut and whole valt-added processing busine

« Lower Cost StructureApio has strategically invested in the rapidly girogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. Apio’
60,000 square foot value-added processing planit@mated with state-of-the-art vegetable procgssiuipment. Virtually all of Apio’s
value-added products utilize Landec’s proprietargeBheWay packaging technology. Apio’s strategy isperate one large central
processing facility in one of California’s largelstyest cost growing regions (Santa Maria Valleyl aise packaging technology to allow
for the nationwide delivery of fresh produce progu

« Export Capability:Apio is uniquely positioned to benefit from the gtb in export sales to Asia and Europe over the degade with its
export business, CalEx. Through CalEx, Apio is ently one of the largest U.S. exporters of broctmksia and is selling its iceless
products to Asia using proprietary BreatheWay pgtigtechnology

« Expanded Product Line Using TechnoloApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagewhology, is introducing on avera
twelve new valu-added products each year. These new prc
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offerings range from various sizes of fresh-agdped products, to vegetable trays, to whole prediaca meal line of products. During
the last twelve months, Apio has introduced 16 pesducts

For the past nine years, the Company hasetedkts Eat Smart fresh-cut bagged vegetables &mad iceless products using its
BreatheWay packaging technology and has now expkitsléeechnology to include packaging for banaha&eptember 2004, Apio entered
into an agreement with Chiquita where Apio will pypChiquita with its proprietary banana packagieghnology on a worldwide basis for the
ripening, conservation and shelf-life extensiomafanas in selective applications on an exclushsgstand for other applications on a non-
exclusive basis. In addition, Apio will provide @hita with ongoing research and development, psotashnology support for the BreatheV
membranes and bags, and technical service sugpotighout the customer chain in order to assitgiéndevelopment and market acceptan:
the technology.

For its part, Chiquita provides marketingstdbution and retail sales support for Chiquitads@as sold worldwide in BreatheWay
packaging. To maintain the exclusive license, Citégmust meet annual minimum purchase thresholds edtheWay banana packages.

The initial market focus for the BreatheWanhna packaging technology using Chiquita® Branmthbas will be commercial outlets that
normally do not sell bananas because of their stadf-life — outlets such as quick serve restaisrasonvenience stores, drug stores and food
service outlets.

In addition to the introduction of specigtstckaging for bananas, the Company is selling ieatheWay packaging technology for case
liner packaging for bunch and crown broccoli, eggint pound cases of loose broccoli florets, Asidrboaccoli crowns and export cut broccoli
crowns.

The Company’s specialty packaging for caserlproducts reduces freight expense up to 50%itmynating the weight and space
consumed by ice. In addition to reducing the cdstedght, the removal of ice from the distributisgstem offers additional benefits. The
Company’s new packaging system can decrease thatftfor workrelated accidents due to melted ice, eliminateitieof ice as a carrier «
microorganisms that could potentially contaminatedpice and eliminate the need for expensive waaers that cannot be recycled.

Product enhancements in the fresh-cut vefgeliale include fresh-cut vegetable trays desigioddok like they were freshly made in the
retail grocery store. The rectangular tray desigooinvenient for storage in consumers’ refrigesagord expands the Company’s wide-ranging
vegetable tray line.

In June 2003, the Company commercially laeddks new Petite fresh-cut vegetable tray foriratad its new retail mini-tray. Also in June
2003, the Company entered into an exclusive paokegnd marketing agreement with Dole Fresh Vegesalbhc. for Apio to sell and
distribute a line of fresh cut produce under théeDwand in the United States and Canada.

In fiscal year 2005, sales of the value-addsgetable tray line grew 60%, and according to.Alf@lsen, for the three months ended
March 31, 2005, the Company’s market share forssaii@egetable trays to retail grocery stores euhS. was 46%.

Agricultural Seed Technology Busine:

Landec Ags strategy is to build a vertically integrated sesthnology company based on the proprietary iotedt seed coating technolc
and its direct marketing and consultative sellingabilities.

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Intellic&ted Coating

Landec has developed and, through LandedsAgpmmercially selling its Intellicoat seed cogsnan Intelimer-based agricultural material
designed to control seed germination timing, inseeerop yields and extend crop planting windowssEhcoatings are being applied to corn
and soybean seeds. According to the U.S. AgriclliBtatistics Board, the total planted acreaged®ban the United States for corn and
soybean seed exceeded 81 million and 73 millispeetively.
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In fiscal year 2000, Landec Ag successfudlyriched its first commercial product, Pollinatand® coatings for inbred corn seed. Landec
expanded its sales of inbred corn seed coatingugtedn fiscal year 2005 to regional and natior@ldscompanies in the United States. This
application is targeted to approximately 650,00@sn ten states and is now being used by 38s@maganies in the United States. Early Plant
corn, perhaps Landec Ag’s largest seed coatingrtyomity, allows the farmer to plant corn seed 3 toeeks earlier than typically possible due
to cold soil temperatures. By allowing the farmeeptant earlier than normal, Early Plant hybridrcenables large farmers to utilize staff and
equipment more efficiently and provide flexibilitharing the critical planting period. Our Rel@yCropping System of wheat and Intellicoat
coated soybean allows farmers to plant and hatwestrops during the year on the same land, progigignificant financial benefit for the
farmer.

Currently, farmers must work within a narresmdow of time to plant seeds. If the seeds aratpl&too early, they may rot or suffer
chilling injury due to the absorption of water ata soil temperatures below which germination oscifrthey are planted too late, the growing
season may end prior to the crop reaching full nitgtun either case, the resulting crop yields sub-optimal. Moreover, the planting window
can be fairly brief, requiring the farmer to foalmost exclusively on planting during this timee8g also germinate at different times due to
variations in absorption of water, thus providiing ¥ariations in the growth rate of the crops.

The Company’s Intellicoat seed coating prévg@tanted seeds from absorbing water when thengrtemperature is below the coating’s
pre-set temperature switch. Intellicoat seed cgatare designed to enable coated seeds to begkery without risk of chilling damage
caused by the absorption of water at cold soil Enaipires. As spring advances and soil temperatiseto the pre-determined switch
temperature close to where seed germination noyroatiurs, the polymer’s permeability increases thiedcoated seeds absorb water and begir
to germinate. The Company believes that Intelliczesd coatings provide the following advantagdsnger planting window, avoidance of
chilling injury, more uniform germination and bettdilization of equipment and labor. As a restlie Company believes that Intellicoat seed
coatings offer the potential for improvements iagyields and net income to the farmer.

The Business: Landec ¢

Landec Ag had sales of approximately $25anifor the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005, $2&iflion for the fiscal year ended May 30,
2004, $21.0 million for the seven months ended &By2003 and $19.4 million for the fiscal year eh@tober 27, 2002.

Based in Monticello, Indiana, Landec Ag sellsomprehensive line of hybrid seed corn to mioaa 12,000 farmers in over forty states
through direct marketing programs. The successaflec Ag comes, in part, from its expertise inisgltlirectly to the farmer, bypassing the
traditional and costly farmetealer system. The Company believes that this tditeannel of distribution provides up to a 35% @xbtantage t
its customers.

In order to support its direct marketing peogs, Landec Ag has developed a proprietary dinecketing, and consultative selling
information technology that enables state-of-thexsthods for communicating with a broad arrayasfrfers. This proprietary direct marketing
information technology includes a current datalsever 104,000 farmers.

The acquisition of Fielder's Choice in 1997landec Ag was strategic in providing a cost-dffecvehicle for marketing Intellicoat seed
coating products. The Company believes that thebomation of coating technology and a direct chamfilistribution, telephonic and
electronic commerce capabilities will enable Landgdo more quickly achieve meaningful market peaiin.

Technology Licensing/ Research and Development Besise:

The Company believes its technology has corigdgootential in a wide range of industrial, comser and medical applications beyond
those identified in its core businesses. For exapmmndec’s core patented Intelimer materials teldgy, can be used to trigger release of
small molecule drugs, catalysts, pesticides or
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fragrances just by changing the temperature ofrttedimer materials or to activate adhesives thtoogntrolled temperature change. In orde
exploit these opportunities, the Company has edtieste and will enter into licensing and collabdratcorporate agreements for product
development and/or distribution in certain field®wever, given the infrequency and unpredictabiityvhen the Company may enter into any
such licensing and research and development ammzargs, the Company is unable to disclose its firexpectations in advance of entering
into such arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development sggtis to focus on coatings, catalysts, resinsiti@dd and adhesives in the polymer materials
market. During the product development stage, @ @any identifies corporate partners to supporotigoing development and testing of
these products, with the ultimate goal of licengimg applications at the appropriate time.

Intelimer Polymer Systemisandec has developed latent catalysts useful ieneig pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand
improving thermoset cure methods. Some of thesataatalysts are currently being distributed by@dklobel Chemicals B.V. The Company
has also developed Intelimer polymer materialsulsefenhancing the formulating options for varigaessonal care products. Landec’s
pressure sensitive adhesives (“PSA”) technologyisently being evaluated in a variety of industaiad medical applications where strong
adhesion to a substrate (i.e. steel, glass, silgkin, etc.) is desired for a defined time peidod upon thermal triggering, results in a signifi
peel strength reduction. For example, select PSfesys exhibit greater than 90% reduction in peehgth upon warming, making them ideal
for applications on fragile substrates.

UCB Chemicals Corporatior®On April 10, 2000, the Company entered into a nedeand development agreement with UCB Chemicals
Corporation (“UCB”), an operating entity of Cytdng., a major pharmaceutical and chemical compaogted in Belgium. UCB’s chemical
business is a major supplier of radiation curind powder coating resins. Under this agreementCtimapany explored polymer systems for
evaluation in several industrial product applicatioBased on the success of this initial reseandrdavelopment collaboration, in December
2001, the Company entered into a $2.5 million lggeand research and development agreement with Tig8agreement had a term of one
year through December 2002 and was for the ex@usjhts to use the Compé's Intelimer materials technology in the fieldspafwder
coatings worldwide and pressure sensitive adhesiweeklwide, except Asia.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic appicatstrategy is focused on supplying Intelimer mialeto industry leaders for use in lotions
and creams, and potentially color cosmetics, lifzstend hair care. The Company is currently shippiroducts to L'Oreal of Paris for use in
lotions and creams. To date, sales of Landec naégarsed in L'Oreal products have not been mattyidtle Company’s financial results and
given the Company'’s limited history with L'Oredhgt Company is unable to predict future revenueshisrproduct or for any other products
sold by L’Oreal that may contain Landec materials.

Medical Applications

PORT™ Ophthalmic Deviced.andec developed the PORT (Punctal Occluder foRention of Tears) ophthalmic device initially to
address a common, yet poorly diagnosed conditiamwkras dry eye that is estimated to affect 30 arillAmericans annually. The device
consists of a physician-applied applicator contgjrgolid Intelimer material that transforms intficavable, viscous state when heated slightly
above body temperature. After inserting the Intelirmaterial into the lacrimal drainage duct, italy solidifies into a form-fitting, solid plug.
Occlusion of the lacrimal drainage duct allows plagient to retain tear fluid and thereby providelef and therapy to the dry eye patient.

The PORT device was approved by the FDA dyufiscal year 2005. To date, Alcon has not comnadimgd and may choose not to
commercialize the PORT device and, therefore tha@my may not receive royalties on any future sales
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In December 1997, Landec licensed the rightgorldwide manufacturing, marketing and distribatof its PORT ophthalmic device to
Alcon. Under the terms of the transaction, Land®eived an up-front cash payment of $500,000, & $05 milestone payment in November
1998, and research and development funding anddcawdl receive ongoing royalties of 11.5% on prodsales of each PORT device through
2012. Any fees paid to the Company are non-refuleddlandec will continue to provide developmentsap on a contract basis through
product launch. Landec also provides the Intelipwymer to Alcon which is used in the PORT device.

Medical DeviceOn April 18, 2002, Landec entered into an excludisensing and one year research and developmdaboaation with a
large medical device company. Upfront paymentdedt&420,000 with total potential payments of u$1a35 million based on certain
milestones being met. In addition, royalties of &b be paid on future product sales. At this tintee Company is unable to predict the
ultimate outcome of the collaboration with the noadlidevice company and the timing or amount of meres, if any.

Discontinued Operations

Dock Resingn April 1997, the Company acquired Dock Resingrigately held manufacturer and marketer of spgcitrylic and other
polymers based in Linden, New Jersey. Dock Resipplged proprietary polymers including acrylic, macrylic, alkyd, polyester, urethane i
polyamide polymers to film converters engaged indtamping, decorative wood grain, automotive iotst holograms, and metal foil
applications. Dock Resins also supplied productstamber of other markets, such as, graphicauntemotive refinishing, construction,
pressure-sensitive adhesives, paper coatings,s;andkcrete curing compounds and sealers.

In October 2002, the Company sold Dock Re&in$14.5 million ($10.2 million net of debt nadsumed and before expenses) in order to
strengthen its balance sheet and focus managenagietgion on our core food and agricultural tedbgy businesses.

The Company recorded a loss on the sale .@fidlion, of which $2.5 million was recorded iiséal year 2001 and $1.7 million was
recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 20@2n the close of the sale.

As a result of the sale of Dock Resins, tharfcial results of Dock Resins have been reclasisib discontinued operations for all
applicable periods. Unless otherwise specifiedjrifeemation and descriptions provided in this repelate only to the continuing operation:
the Company.

Sales and Marketing

Each of the Company’s core businesses amgosigal by dedicated sales and marketing resouftesCompany intends to develop its
internal sales capacity as more products progoesartt commercialization and as business volumeredggeographically. During fiscal year
2005, sales to the Company’s top five customerswated for approximately 42% of its revenues, wlith top customer, Costco Wholesale
Corp., accounting for approximately 15% of the Camys revenues.

Food Products Technology Busine

Apio has 17 sales people, located in ce@adifornia and throughout the U.S., supportingeiport business and the specialty packaged
value-added produce business.

Agricultural Seed Technology Busine:

Landec Ag utilizes 40 seed sales consultamiisassociates located in Monticello, Indianat®direct marketing of Fielders Choice Direct
seed corn and Intellicoat coated products. Custaomtacts are made based on direct responses guides from customers.

-12-




Table of Contents

Manufacturing and Processing

Landec intends to control the manufacturifigsoown products whenever possible, as it bebeat there is considerable manufacturing
margin opportunity in its products. In additionetGompany believes that know-how and trade secagtbe better maintained by Landec
retaining manufacturing capability in-house.

Food Products Technology Busine

The manufacturing process for the Compangépietary BreatheWay packaging products is coneplrisf polymer manufacturing,
membrane manufacturing and label package conveBiack Resins currently manufactures virtuallyadlthe polymers for the BreatheWay
packaging. Select outside contractors currentlyufaariure the breathable membranes and Landecdrasitioned virtually all of the label
package conversion to Apio’s Guadalupe facilitynteet the increasing product demand and to provddéianal developmental capabilities.

Apio processes all of its fresh-cut valuetigroducts in its state-of-the-art processindifgdocated in Guadalupe, California. Cooling of
produce is done through third parties and Apio @apla separate company in which Apio has a 60%eosinp interest and is the general
partner.

Agricultural Seed Technology Busine:

The Company performs its batch coating ojp@ratin a leased facility in Oxford, Indiana. THégility is being used to coat other seed
companies’ inbred seed corn with the Company’siftadibr Plus seed corn coatings.

The Company has a pilot manufacturing facilitIndiana to support the commercialization effgarly Plant corn and for its Relay
Cropping System for wheat/coated soybean prodiibis.facility utilizes a continuous coating proc#isat has increased seed coating
capabilities by tenfold compared to the previoustam using batch coaters. Landec Ag contractsrfmdyztion of its hybrid seed corn from
established seed producers.

General

Many of the raw materials used in manufaotydertain of the Company’s products are currgmiischased from a single source, including
certain monomers used to synthesize Intelimer petgrand substrate materials for the Company’s habé membranes. In addition, a large
majority of the hybrid corn varieties sold by Land&g are sourced from a single seed producer. Upamufacturing scale-up of seed coating
operations and as hybrid corn sales increase, dhg@&ny may enter into alternative supply arrangeséithough to date the Company has
not experienced difficulty acquiring materials fbe manufacture of its products nor has Landecxpgeenced difficulty in acquiring hybrid
corn varieties, no assurance can be given thatuqtions in supplies will not occur in the fututeat the Company will be able to obtain
substitute vendors, or that the Company will beablprocure comparable materials or hybrid conetias at similar prices and terms within a
reasonable time. Any such interruption of supplylddave a material adverse effect on the Compaatyilty to manufacture and distribute its
products and, consequently, could materially anctesely affect the Company’s business, operatiaglte and financial condition.

Research and Development

Landec is focusing its research and developmesources on both existing and new applicatidrits Intelimer technology. Expenditures
for research and development for the fiscal yededriviay 29, 2005, for the fiscal year ended May28D4, for the seven month period ended
May 25, 2003 and for the fiscal year ended Oct@3e2002 were $2.5 million, $3.5 million, $2.1 rah and $3.5 million, respectively.
Research and development expenditures funded pyiaie partners were $20,000 for the fiscal yededrMay 29, 2005, $173,000 for the
fiscal year ended May 30, 2004, $392,000 for thesenonth period ended May 25, 2003 and $975,00théfiscal year ended October 27,
2002. The Company may continue to seek funds for
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applied materials research programs from U.S. gowent agencies as well as from commercial entifies. Company anticipates that it will
continue to have significant research and developmependitures in order to maintain its competitposition with a continuing flow of
innovative, high-quality products and services.oA$lay 29, 2005, Landec had 21 employees engagesbgarch and development with
experience in polymer and analytical chemistrydpici application, product formulation, mechanicadl @hemical engineering.

Competition

The Company operates in highly competitive eapidly evolving fields, and new developmentsexpected to continue at a rapid pace.
Competition from large food packaging and agria@teompanies is intense. In addition, the natdith@ Company’s collaborative
arrangements and its technology licensing busimesgsresult in its corporate partners and licenbeesming competitors of the Company.
Many of these competitors have substantially grdatancial and technical resources and productioth marketing capabilities than the
Company, and many have substantially greater expegiin conducting field trials, obtaining regulgttapprovals and manufacturing and
marketing commercial products. There can be norassa that these competitors will not succeed uelbping alternative technologies and
products that are more effective, easier to usessrexpensive than those which have been or @rg developed by the Company or that
would render the Company'’s technology and prodobgolete and non-competitive.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

The Company’s success depends in large pdts ability to obtain patents, maintain traderseprotection and operate without infringing
on the proprietary rights of third parties. The Qamy has been granted twenty-seven U.S. pateriisewjtiration dates ranging from 2006 to
2021 and has filed applications for additional Up&ents, as well as certain corresponding pafgsiications outside the United States, rela
to the Company’s technology. The Company’s isswdrgs include claims relating to compositions,icevand use of a class of temperature
sensitive polymers that exhibit distinctive propestof permeability, adhesion and viscosity confftlere can be no assurance that any of the
pending patent applications will be approved, thatCompany will develop additional proprietary guiots that are patentable, that any patents
issued to the Company will provide the Company witmpetitive advantages or will not be challenggdiby third parties or that the patents
of others will not prevent the commercializationppbducts incorporating the Company’s technologytttermore, there can be no assurance
that others will not independently develop simpaoducts, duplicate any of the Company’s producdesign around the Company’s patents.
Any of the foregoing results could have a matadlerse effect on the Company’s business, opereggigts and financial condition.

The commercial success of the Company wsth @epend, in part, on its ability to avoid infiimg patents issued to others. The Company
has received, and may in the future receive, fiioind {parties, including some of its competitorstices claiming that it is infringing third party
patents or other proprietary rights. If the Compamye determined to be infringing any third-paratgnt, the Company could be required to
pay damages, alter its products or processes nditanses or cease certain activities. In addjtiopatents are issued to others which contain
claims that compete or conflict with those of thentpany and such competing or conflicting claimsudtienately determined to be valid, the
Company may be required to pay damages, to obitaindes to these patents, to develop or obtaimatige technology or to cease using such
technology. Ithe Company is required to obtain any licensesetban be no assurance that the Company will keetalilo so on commercial
favorable terms, if at all. The Company’s failuoeobtain a license to any technology that it mayunee to commercialize its products could
have a material adverse impact on the Companyiséss operating results and financial condition.

Litigation, which could result in substantialsts to the Company, may also be necessary ¢tocerdiny patents issued or licensed to the
Company or to determine the scope and validithofitparty proprietary rights. If competitors oktlCompany prepare and file patent
applications in the United States that claim tedbgy also claimed by the Company, the Company naasehio participate in interference
proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Tratte@féice to determine priority of invention, whicould result in
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substantial cost to and diversion of effort by @@mpany, even if the eventual outcome is favorebtbe Company. Any such litigation or
interference proceeding, regardless of outcomdddmeliexpensive and time consuming and could sutljeacCompany to significant liabilities
to third parties, require disputed rights to betised from third parties or require the Compangetase using such technology and
consequently, could have a material adverse effethe Company’s business, operating results axahial condition.

In addition to patent protection, the Compatso relies on trade secrets, proprietary know-hod/ technological advances which the
Company seeks to protect, in part, by confidenyiagreements with its collaborators, employeesamgultants. There can be no assurance
that these agreements will not be breached, teaCtdmpany will have adequate remedies for any breaahat the Company’s trade secrets
and proprietary know-how will not otherwise becokmewn or be independently discovered by others.

Government Regulations

The Company’s products and operations argesuto regulation in the United States and foraiguantries.

Food Products Technology Busine

The Company’s food packaging products ar¢estito regulation under the Food, Drug and Coserigtit (“FDC Act”). Under the FDC Ac
any substance that when used as intended may eddgdie expected to become, directly or indirealgomponent or otherwise affect the
characteristics of any food may be regulated amd &dditive unless the substance is generallygrézed as safe. Food additives may be
substances added directly to food, such as prasergaor substances that could indirectly becorneraponent of food, such as waxes,
adhesives and packaging materials.

A food additive, whether direct or indireetust be covered by a specific food additive redgmteissued by the FDA. The Company belie
its proprietary BreatheWay packaging technologydpats are not subject to regulation as food adeitivecause these products are not
expected to become a component of food under ¢éxpiected conditions of use. If the FDA were to deiee that the Company’s BreatheWay
packaging technology products are food additives Gompany may be required to submit a food addjtition. The food additive petition
process is lengthy, expensive and uncertain. Araigtation by the FDA that a food additive petitismecessary would have a material adv
effect on the Company’s business, operating reanltisfinancial condition.

The Company'’s agricultural operations argesttio a variety of environmental laws includimg tFood Quality Protection Act of 1966, the
Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Resourcesgovation and Recovery Act, the Federal Inseajdidingicide and Rodenticide Act and
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd Liability Act. Compliance with these lawsdarelated regulations is an ongc
process. Environmental concerns are, however, émtén most agricultural operations, including ta@enducted by the Company, and there
can be no assurance that the cost of compliand¢eanitironmental laws and regulations will not beemnal. Moreover, it is possible that future
developments, such as increasingly strict enviranteddaws and enforcement policies thereunder farttler restrictions on the use of
manufacturing chemicals could result in increasadgiance costs.

The Company is subject to the United Stategabtment of Agriculture (“USDA”) rules and regudats concerning the safety of the food
products handled and sold by Apio, and the faegiin which they are packed and processed. Faduremply with the applicable regulatory
requirements can, among other things, result sfitnjunctions, civil penalties, suspensions dhdriawal of regulatory approvals, product
recalls, product seizures, including cessation afufiacturing and sales, operating restrictionsaimlinal prosecution.

Certain of the Company’s products are aldgesu to the Perishable Agricultural Commodities A2ACA”) law. PACA regulates fair
trade standards in the fresh produce industry andrgs all the products sold by Apio. Our failusecomply with the PACA requirements
could among other things, result in
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civil penalties, suspension or revocation of arlgeeto sell produce, and in the most egregiousscaseninal prosecution, which could have a
material adverse affect on our business.

Agricultural Seed Technology Busine:

The Company’s agricultural products are sttt regulations of the USDA and the EPA. The Campbelieves its current Intellicoat seed
coatings are not pesticides as defined in the Bétiesecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (“RI’) and are not subject to pesticide
regulation requirements. The process of meetintjgiés registration requirements is lengthy, expemand uncertain, and may require
additional studies by the Company. There can bassarance that future products will not be regdlatepesticides. In addition, the Company
believes that its Intellicoat seed coatings wilt hecome a component of the agricultural produdtiekvare produced from the seeds to which
the coatings are applied and therefore are noesuty) regulation by the FDA as a food additive.id/the Company believes that it will be
able to obtain approval from such agencies toilist its products, there can be no assurancehbaompany will obtain necessary appro'
without substantial expense or delay, if at all.

Polymer Manufacture

The Company’s manufacture of polymers isacijo regulation by the EPA under the Toxic Sutsta Control Act (“TSCA”)Pursuant t
TSCA, manufacturers of new chemical substancesegpgred to provide a Pre-Manufacturing Notice (“RNlprior to manufacturing the new
chemical substance. After review of the PMN, thé\ERay require more extensive testing to establighsafety of the chemical, or limit or
prohibit the manufacture or use of the chemicaldate, PMNs submitted by the Company have beeroapgrby the EPA without any
additional testing requirements or limitation onmagacturing or use. No assurance can be giverthbdEPA will grant similar approval for
future PMNs submitted by the Company.

Other

The Company and its products under developmey also be subject to other federal, state acal laws, regulations and
recommendations. Although Landec believes thatlitog able to comply with all applicable regulat®regarding the manufacture and sale of
its products and polymer materials, such regulateme always subject to change and depend heaviglministrative interpretations and the
country in which the products are sold. There camd assurance that future changes in regulatiomsespretations made by the FDA, EPA or
other regulatory bodies, with possible retroacéffect, relating to such matters as safe workingd@ns, laboratory and manufacturing
practices, environmental controls, fire hazard minand disposal of hazardous or potentially hdaas substances will not adversely affect the
Company’s business. There can also be no assuttztcthe Company will not be required to incur gigant costs to comply with such laws
and regulations in the future, or that such laweegulations will not have a material adverse eftgon the Company’s ability to do business.
Furthermore, the introduction of the Company’s micdd in foreign markets may require obtaining fgneiegulatory clearances. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to elegjulatory clearances for its products in suchigm markets.

Employees

As of May 29, 2005, Landec had 167 full-tietaployees, of whom 46 were dedicated to reseasstglopment, manufacturing, quality
control and regulatory affairs and 121 were dedidab sales, marketing and administrative actwitieandec intends to recruit additional
personnel in connection with the development, mactufing and marketing of its products. None ofdegis employees is represented by a
union, and Landec believes relationships with itpkyees are good.
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Available Information

Landec’s Web site is http://www.landec.corantlec makes available free of charge its annuaktepy and current reports, and any
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasgrabticable after electronically filing such repovtith the SEC. Information contained on
our website is not part of this Report.

ltem 2.  Properties

The Company owns or leases properties in MPakk and Guadalupe, California; West Lebanonp€ixdnd Monticello, Indiana and
Danville, Illinois.

These properties are described below:

Location Business Segment Ownership Facilities Acres of Land Lease Expiration
Menlo Park, CA Othel Leaser 10,400 square — 12/31/0¢
feet of office
and laboratory

space
Monticello, IN Agricultural Seed Ownec 19,400 square 0.t —
Technology feet of office
space
West Lebanon, I Agricultural Seec Ownec 4,000 squar — —
Technology feet of

warehouse and
manufacturing

space
Oxford, IN Agricultural Seed Leaser 13,400 square — 6/30/0¢
Technology feet of

laboratory and
manufacturing
space
Danville, 1L Agricultural Seed Leaser 200,000 square — 12/31/0¢
Technology feet of
warehouse
space
Guadalupe, C/ Food Product Ownec 106,000 squar 11.€ —
Technology feet of office
space,
manufacturing
and cold
storage

There are bank liens encumbering all of tben@any’s owned land and buildings.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

The Company is currently not a party to aratarmal legal proceedings.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holde

There were no matters submitted to a voteotirity holders during the fourth quarter of tr@rany’s fiscal year ended May 29, 2005.
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PART Il

ltem 5.  Market for Registran’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matt

The Common Stock is traded on the NasdacpNatiMarket under the symbol “LNDC”. The followingble sets forth for each period
indicated the high and low sales prices for the @wmm Stock as reported on the Nasdaqg National Market

Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 2005 High Low

4t Quarter ending May 29, 20( $ 8.2F $ 5.77
31 Quarter ending February 27, 2C $ 7.7 $ 6.0C
2 nd Quarter ending November 28, 20 $ 8.0C $ 4.5C
1 st Quarter ending August 29, 20 $ 7.4C $ 4.2¢
Fiscal Year Ended May 30, 2004 High Low

4t Quarter ending May 30, 20( $ 9.1¢ $ 5.97
31 Quarter ending February 29, 2C $ 8.2t $ 5.57
2 nd Quarter ending November 30, 20 $ 6.6C $ 3.5¢€
1 st Quarter ending August 31, 20 $ 4.87 $ 3.01
Seven Months Ended May 25, 2003 High Low

One month ending May 25, 20! $ 3.1t $ 2.3¢€
2nd Quarter ending April 27, 20C $ 3.01 $ 2.2t
1 st Quarter ending January 26, 2C $ 2.9¢ $ 1.5¢

There were approximately 92 holders of readrd4,116,228 shares of outstanding Common Steak duly 14, 2005. Since certain holc
are listed under their brokerage firm’'s names aitteial number of shareholders is higher. The Compas not paid any dividends on the
Common Stock since its inception. The Company prtisetends to retain all future earnings, if afgy, its business and does not anticipate
paying cash dividends on its Common Stock in tmedeeable future.

The information under the heading “Equity Gemsation Plan Information” in our definitive Pro®yatement for our 2005 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders to be held on October 14, 2008¢cmporated by reference into Item 5 of this répor
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The information set forth below is not neee#g indicative of the results of future operatioaind should be read in conjunction with the
information contained in Item 7 — “Management’s gission and Analysis of Financial Condition andu®ssof Operations” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to @idiased Financial Statements contained in Itenfi tBig report.

Seven Months Seven Months
Year Ended Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25, June 2, October 27, October 28, October 29,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2002 2001 2000
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues
Product sale $ 201,02( $ 185,66 $ 98,68¢ $ 96,51! $ 152,95¢ $ 141,31« $ 129,45
Services revenu 3,70t 5,791 12,78¢ 15,88: 26,827 48,42¢ 66,80¢
License fee: 88 88 357 1,27¢ 2,33( 374 374
Research, development and royalty
revenues 417 54¢ 42¢ 402 1,04C 52¢ 58€
Total revenue 205,23( 192,09: 112,25¢ 114,07: 183,15¢ 190,64t 197,22t
Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale 171,16« 158,91: 82,33¢ 80,68( 131,35: 122,08: 110,59:
Cost of services revent 2,094 3,39( 9,21¢€ 12,50¢ 20,46: 40,75 56,62
Total cost of revenu 173,25¢ 162,30: 91,55¢ 93,18¢ 151,81! 162,83. 167,21!
Gross profit 31,97: 29,79: 20,70 20,88¢ 31,34( 27,81« 30,01
Operating costs and expens
Research and developme 2,54 3,452 2,11¢ 2,01¢ 3,53: 3,27(C 3,44¢
Selling, general and administrati 23,41: 22,28¢ 15,18¢ 16,29: 26,11¢ 27,39¢ 26,927
Exit of domestic commaodity vegetable
busines: — — 1,09t — — — —
Exit of fruit processing busine — — — — — — 52E
Total operating costs and expen 25,95¢ 25,73¢ 18,39¢ 18,31! 29,64¢ 30,66¢ 30,89¢
Operating profit (loss 6,017 4,05¢ 2,30¢ 2,57¢ 1,69 (2,859 (88E)
Interest incomt 214 164 144 177 247 617 8732
Interest expens (414) (811) (642) (2,097 (1,55)) (2,789 (2,087
Minority interest expens (411) (537) (235) (229) (52%) (28) (103)
Other (expense)/income, r (4) 29 21¢€ 71 33€ 21€ 12€
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 5,402 2,90(¢ 1,791 1,50z 201 (4,83¢) (2,070

Discontinued Operation

Loss from discontinued operatio — — — — — (537) (14)

Loss on disposal of operatio — — — — (1,68¢) (2,500 —
Loss from discontinued operatio — — — — (1,68¢) (3,037) (14)
Net income (loss) before cumulative eff

of change in accountir 5,40z 2,90(¢ 1,791 1,50z (1,487 (7,875 (2,089
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

for upfront license fee revent — — — — — (1,914
Net income (loss $ 5,40z $ 2,90( $ 1,791 $ 150 $ (1,487 $ (7,879 $ (3,999
Net income (loss $ 5,40z $ 2,90C $ 1,791 % 1,50 $ (1,487 $ (7,879 $ (3,999
Dividends on Series B preferred stc — (464) (219) (202) (412) — —
Net income (loss) applicable to comm

shareholder $ 5,40z $ 2,43¢ $ 157 $ 1,30 $ (1,899 $ (7,879 $ (3,999
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The gain of $436,000 in fiscal year 2002 loe $ale of the fruit processing facility has bestlassified as it appears in prior filings from
other income to selling, general and administragixpenses.

Seven Months Seven Months
Year Ended Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25, June 2, October 27, October 28, October 29,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2002 2001 2000
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share date
Statement of Operations Data
Basic net income (loss) per she
Continuing operation $ 0.2: $ 011 $ 0.0¢ % 0.07 $ 0.00) $ 0.29 $ (0.13)
Discontinued operatior — — — — (0.09) (0.19) —
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting for upfront license

fee revenut — — — — — — (0.12)
Basic net income (loss) pershi  $ 0.2z $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ (010 $ (0.49 $ (0.29)
Diluted net income (loss) per sha

Continuing operation $ 021 $ 01z $ 0.07 $ 0.06 $ 0.00) $ 0.29) $ (0.13)
Discontinued operatior — — — — (0.09) (0.19) —

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting for upfront license

fee revenus — — — — — — (0.19)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ 0.21 $ 0.1z $ 0.07 $ 0.06 $ (0.10 $ (0.49 $ (0.29)
Shares used in per share

computation
Basic 23,70 21,39¢ 20,94¢ 17,77° 18,17: 16,37 15,79¢
Diluted 24,614 23,55¢ 22,62¢ 21,08: 18,17: 16,37 13,27
May 29, May 30, May 25, October 27, October 28, October 29,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)
Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivale $ 1287 $ 6458 $ 369¢ $ 7,84¢ $ 8,69¢ $ 8,63¢
Total asset 100,07! 93,00" 96,88" 107,80: 120,12: 128,16!
Debt 3,08¢ 8,99¢ 13,49 17,54 33,41¢ 26,35(
Convertible preferred stoc — — 5,531 14,46 14,04¢ 9,14¢
Accumulated defici (49,890 (55,29) (57,729 (59,300 (57,40) (49,52¢)
Total shareholde’ equity 72,06( 61,54¢ 57,90 55,96: 49,83¢ 52,17¢

Item 7.  Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

The following discussion should be read injoaction with the Company’s Consolidated Finan&tdtements contained in Item 8 of this
report. Except for the historical information cantd herein, the matters discussed in this reperfaward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchangieoA1934. These forward-looking statements ingatertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallyrrthose in the forward-looking statements. Poténgks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this report andparticular, the factors described below under “Aiddial Factors That May Affect Future
Results.” Landec undertakes no
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obligation to revise any forward-looking statementsrder to reflect events or circumstances thay arise after the date of this report.

Overview

Since its inception in October 1986, the Camyphas been engaged in the research and developfiienintelimer technology and related
products. The Company has launched four produes lfrom this core development — QuickC&ss$plints and casts, in April 1994, which was
subsequently sold to Bissell Healthcare Corporatiohugust 1997; Intelimer packaging technologyttee fresh-cut and whole produce
packaging market, in September 1995; Intelimer RelySystems in June 1997 that includes polymernmaétdor various industrial
applications and beginning in November 2003 fospeal care applications; and Intellicoat coatedddlrorn seeds in the Fall of 1999.

With the acquisition of Apio in December 199¢d Landec Ag in September 1997, the Companycissid on two core businesses — Food
Products Technology and Agricultural Seed Technpldtne Food Products Technology segment combire€tmpanys Intelimer packagin
technology with Apio’s fresh-cut and whole prodimesiness. The Agricultural Seed Technology segiméegrates the Intellicoat seed coating
technology with Landec Ag’s direct marketing, tdlepe sales and distribution capabilities. The Camgdso operates a Technology
Licensing/ Research and Development business wd@ghklops products to be licensed outside of theg2myls core businesses. See
“Business — Description of Core Business”.

From inception through May 29, 2005, the Camps accumulated deficit was $49.9 million. Thengpany may incur additional losses in
the future. The amount of future net profits, if/ais highly uncertain and there can be no asserémat the Company will be able to sustain
profitability in future years.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
Use of Estimate:

The preparation of the Company’s financiatesnents in conformity with accounting principlengrally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assmsiiat affect the amounts reported in the findrsté&iements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ materially from thos&timmates. The judgments and assumptions used bggearent are based on historical
experience and other factors, which are believdzbteeasonable under the circumstances.

Notes and Advances Receivab

Apio has made advances to fruit growerstierdevelopment of orchards, and to produce grofeersrop and harvesting costs. Typically,
except for development advances, these advanceaireff within the growing season (less than pear) from harvested crops. Developrr
advances and advances not fully paid during theentigrowing season are converted to interest hgafligations, evidenced by contracts
notes receivable. These notes receivable and adsame secured by liens on land and/or crops arelteams that range from twelve to sixty
months. Notes receivable are periodically revieyatdeast quarterly) for collectibility. A reserigestablished for any note or advance deemec
to not be fully collectible based upon an estinwdtthe crop value or the fair value of the secufdtlythe note or advance. If crop prices or the
fair value of the underlying security declines @empany may be unable to fully recoup its notedwaace receivable and the estimated losses
would rise in the current period, potentially te #axtent of the total note or advance receivable.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doulatfdounts for estimated losses resulting fromrhaeility of its customers to make required
payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts &btaon review of the overall condition of accoueteivable balances and review of
significant past due accounts. If the financialditon of the Company’s customers were to detet@naesulting in an impairment of their
ability to make
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payments, additional allowances may be required. bt losses are partially mitigated due to Iskgirelated to the fact that the Company’s
customers are predominantly large financially sonational and regional retailers.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket. If the cost of the inventories exceedsrtbxpected market value, provisions are
recorded currently for the difference between th& and the market value. These provisions arerdeted based on specific identification for
unusable inventory and an additional reserve, basdustorical losses, for inventory considereti¢aiseable.

Revenue Recognitio

Revenue from product sales is recognized vihere is persuasive evidence that an arrangemists title has transferred, the price is
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is remaably assured. Allowances are established for estichuncollectible amounts, product retu
and discounts. If actual future returns and allosesndiffer from past experience, additional alloeesmay be required.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordavitie Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Revenue Recognition (a replacement of SAB 101)
(SAB 104). Initial license fees are deferred anadired over the period of the agreement to revevuen a contract exists, the fee is fixed
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably asduNoncancellable, nonrefundable license feesemmgnized over the research and
development period of the agreement, as well atetine of any related supply agreement entereddoteurrently with the license when the
risk associated with commercialization of a prodacgton-substantive at the outset of the arrangémen

Prior to November 1, 1999, the Company recaghnoncancellable, nonrefundable license fees\anue when received and when all
significant contractual obligations of the Compaelating to the fees had been met. Effective Novemih 1999, the Company changed its
method of accounting for noncancellable, nonrefbielficense fees to recognize such fees over geareh and development period of the
agreement, as well as the term of any related guggpleement entered into concurrently with thenggewhen the risk associated with
commercialization of a product is non-substantitvéha outset of the arrangement. The Company kesdigtve change in accounting principle is
preferable based on guidance provided in SAB 164.$1.9 million cumulative effect of the changeatounting principle, calculated as of
November 1, 1999, was reported as a charge inghegnded October 29, 2000. The cumulative effestinitially recorded as deferr
revenue and is being recognized as revenue oveesiearch and development period or supply peothtitment of the agreement. During
the year ended October 29, 2000, the impact ofhla@ge in accounting was to increase net loss pyoajmately $1.5 million, or $0.10 per
share, comprised of the $1.9 million cumulativeseffof the change as described above ($0.12 pex)sinat of $374,000 of the related defe
revenue which was recognized as “recycled” reveturang 2000 ($0.02 per share). “Recycled” reverafers to revenue that had previously
been recognized as licensing revenue in the Compé&ngncial statements, but as a result of the Gamy’s adoption of SAB 104, was
reversed through a cumulative effect of a changeaounting in fiscal year 2000 and is now beirgpgaized as revenue over the research anc
development period and/or the supply period comeiitnof the agreement, whichever is longer.

During the fiscal years ended May 29, 2008 Miay 30, 2004 and for the seven months ended Mag@03, and for fiscal year ended
October 27, 2002, $88,000, $88,000, $51,000 an@,$80, respectively, of the related deferred reeamas recognized as “recycled” revenue.
The remainder of the related deferred revenuebegiltecognized as revenue per fiscal year as foll§88,000 per year for 2006 through 2012,
and $21,000 for fiscal year 2013.

Contract revenue for research and developis®b) is recorded as earned, based on the perfacemeequirements of the contract. Non-
refundable contract fees for which no further perfance obligations exist, and there is no contiguvolvement by the Company, are
recognized on the earlier of when the paymentseareived or when collection is assured.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset Impairmel

The Company adopted Statement of FinanciabAnting Standards (SFAS) No. 14&nodwill and Other Intangible Assetsffective
October 29, 2001 and is required to evaluate itglgdll and indefinite lived intangible assets forgairment annually. This evaluation
incorporates a variety of estimates including tiiefalue of the Company’s operating segmentddfdarrying value of an operating segment’s
assets exceeds the estimated fair value, the Compaud likely be required to record an impairmérss, possibly for the entire carrying
balance of goodwill and intangible assets. To datenpairment losses have been incurred.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statementl®3 (revised 2004ghare-Based Paymenor SFAS No. 123R, which is a revision of
SFAS No. 123, and supersedes APB Opinion 25. SE28R Yequires all share-based payments to emplaeksirectors, including grants of
stock options, to be recognized in the statemenpefations based on their fair values. On Aprjl28D5, the SEC adopted a new rule that
amended the compliance dates for SFAS 123R sutligh&ompany is now allowed to adopt the new stethdffective in the second quarter
of fiscal year 2007. The pro forma disclosures jonasty permitted under SFAS 123 will no longer Ineadternative to financial statement
recognition. As permitted by SFAS 123, the Compeunyently accounts for share-based payments to@rees using APB Opinion
25's intrinsic value method and, as such, recognimecompensation cost for employee stock options.

Under SFAS 123R, the Company must deterntie@ppropriate fair value model and related assomgpto be used for valuing share-
based payments, the amortization method for congtiemscost and the transition method to be uséldeatlate of adoption. The transition
methods include modified prospective and retroactidoption options. Under the retroactive optiomgrperiods may be restated either as of
the beginning of the year of adoption or for altipds presented. The modified prospective methqgdires that compensation expense be
recorded for all unvested stock options and restlistock at the beginning of the first quarteadéption of SFAS 123R, while the retroactive
method would record compensation expense for aksited stock options and restricted stock beginwittlg the first period restated. The
Company is currently evaluating the requirementSIEAS 123R as well as option valuation methodokbgatated to its stock option plans.
Although the Company has not yet determined thénarkbf adoption or the effect of adopting SFAS 128R Company expects that the
adoption of SFAS 123R may have a material impadherCompanys consolidated results of operations. The impaetoption of SFAS 12¢
cannot be predicted at this time because it witlethel on, among other things, the levels of shasedaayments granted in the future, the
method of adoption and the option valuation metheeld. SFAS 123R also requires the benefits of éactions in excess of recognized
compensation costs to be reported as a financisiy ft@w, rather than as an operating cash flonegsired under current literature. This
requirement will reduce net operating cash flowd imcrease net financing cash flows in periodsraftption.
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Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 2005 Compared to FiscahY Ended May 30, 200

Revenues (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 29, May 30,
2005 2004 Change

Apio Value Addec $ 116,74( $ 101,06° 16%
Apio Trading 58,66( 59,31 (1)%
Apio Tech 52 1,71¢ (97)%
Apio Service 3,704 5,79: (36)%
Total Apio 179,15¢ 167,88¢ 7%
Landec Ag 25,64¢ 23,64: 8%
Corporate 42€ 56& (25)%
Total Revenue $ 205,23( $ 192,09. 7%

Apio Value Addec

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of reesrgenerated from the sale of specialty packagsth-fcut and whole value-added processed
vegetable products that are washed and packagrd proprietary packaging and sold under Apio’s &mtart brand, the Dole brand and
various private labels.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenoeshie fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetdeésame period last year is due to
increased product offerings, increased sales &iirgicustomers and the addition of new custon&pscifically, sales of Apio’s value-added
12-ounce specialty packaged retail product linevgt8% and sales of Apio’s value-added vegetablegraducts grew 60% during the fiscal
year ended May 29, 2005 compared to the same plasbglear. Overall val-added sales volume increased 9% during the fisgad ended
May 29, 2005 compared to the same period last year.

Apio Trading

Apio trading revenues consist of revenuesgaed from the purchase and sale of primarily lvolmmodity fruit and vegetable products
to Asia through Apio’s export company, Cal-Ex anghfi the purchase and sale of whole commodity &und vegetable products domestically
to Wal-Mart. The export portion of trading revendesfiscal year 2005 was $48.8 million or 83% offal trading revenues.

The slight decrease in revenues in Apio’ditrg business for the fiscal year ended May 2952@iimpared to the same period last year was
primarily due to produce shortages during the wintenths as a result of near record rains in theté/a portion of the United States. Trading
sales volumes were lower by 7% for the fiscal yeradted May 29, 2005 compared to the same periogédast The decrease in volumes was
virtually offset by higher average sales prices tuthe scarcity of product during certain monththe year.

Apio Tech

Apio Tech consists of Apio’s packaging teclogy business using its BreatheW&ymembrane technology. The first commercial
application included in Apio Tech is our bananakaaing technology. Current revenues generated &pio Tech are from the sale of our
proprietary packaging for bananas.

The decrease in revenues from the sale afrizenfor the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 contpiaréhe same period last year was due to
the Company only selling banana packaging not tesmttremselves in fiscal year 2005. In addition sdiles of banana packaging occurred
solely during the Company’s fourth fiscal quartéfiscal year 2005 and were for market trial pugss
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Apio Service

Prior to its sale on June 30, 2003 to Apieshr Apio operated a domestic commaodity vegetaldénkss that marketed and sold whole
produce for growers. Apio charged a per cartoniserfee for marketing and selling these whole comitygproducts. Subsequent to June 30,
2003, Apio’s service revenues consist of revengeemated from Apio Cooling, LP, a vegetable coobpgration in which Apio is the general
partner with a 60% ownership position.

The decrease in service revenues duringishelfyear ended May 29, 2005 compared to the gemied last year is due to a 2% decrease in
volumes in Apio’s cooling operation due to lowenaoodity product volumes from Apio Fresh and one thai commodity revenues in fiscal
year 2004 before the sale of Apio Fre

Landec Ag

Landec Ag revenues consist of revenues gatefeom the sale of hybrid seed corn to farmedeunhe Fielder’'s Choice Directigrand an
from the sale of Intellicoat coated corn and soybsseds to farmers and seed companies. For tla yisars ended May 29, 2005 and May 30,
2004, over 90% of Landec Ag’s revenues were froenstile of uncoated hybrid seed corn under the éfigl€hoice brand.

The increase in revenues at Landec Ag duhiediscal year ended May 29, 2005 compared tcdnee period last year is due to a chan
product mix to higher priced hybrid corn varietteat resulted in a 4% increase in the average peceinit. In addition, sales volumes
increased 5% in fiscal year 2005 compared to figeat 2004.

Corporate

Corporate revenues consist of revenues gextefiiom partnering with others under researchdmatlopment agreements and supply
agreements and from fees for licensing our progmyeintelimer technology to others and from theresponding royalties from these license
agreements.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for ftalfyear ended May 28, 2005 compared to the sanedpof the prior year is primarily due to
the completion of two R&D contracts (UCB and a ncatidevice collaboration) in early fiscal year 2@@dich resulted in R&D revenues
decreasing $152,000 in fiscal year 2005 comparéddal year 2004.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 29, May 30,
2005 2004 Change

Apio Value Addec $ 17,42 $ 15,79. 10%
Apio Trading 3,11¢ 2,89¢ 8%
Apio Tech 15 (862) 102%
Apio Service 1,63¢ 2,40:% (32)%
Total Apio 22,19: 20,23 10%
Landec Ag 9,44¢ 9,08¢ 4%
Corporate 331 474 (30)%
Total Gross Profi $ 31,97 $ 29,79: 7%

General

There are numerous factors that can influgmoss profits including product mix, customer mmanufacturing costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerib name a few. Many
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of these factors influence or are interrelated witter factors. Therefore, it is difficult to preely quantify the impact of each item individua
The Company includes in cost of sales all the aedtded to the sale of products in accordance gétierally accepted accounting principles.
These costs include the following: raw materiatel{iding produce, seeds and packaging), directJabv@rhead (including indirect labor,
depreciation, and facility related costs) and simig@nd shipping related costs. The following dé&siaon surrounding gross profits includes
management’s best estimates of the reasons fahtgges for the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 eoetpto the same period last year as
outlined in the table above.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profits for Apio’s \&ladded specialty packaged vegetable businessddistal year ended May 29, 2005 compared
to the same period last year was due to (1) a I8¥eése in value-added sales during fiscal yeab 20d (2) improved manufacturing
efficiencies through further automation of Apio'oguction process. These increases in gross preéits partially offset by produce shortages
in March 2005 and the first half of April 2005 digenear record rains in the Western U.S. this waster which reduced gross profits by
approximately $1.1 million.

Apio Trading

Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell businmat realizes a commission-based margin in th&4ange. The increase in gross profits
during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comp#watle same period last year was primarily duegalas mix change to higher margin fruit
and vegetable products which increased fiscal 885 gross margins to 5.8% compared to gross ngofif.0% for the same period last y:

Apio Tech

The increase in gross profits for Apio Teohthe fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetigsstime period last year was due to Apio
only selling its proprietary banana packaging stéil year 2005 versus selling bananas in its bapackaging in fiscal year 2004 which
resulted in significant gross profit losses.

Apio Service

The decrease in Apio’s service business goosfits during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2@0fpared to the same period last year was
directly attributable to lower volume sales in Agicooling operation and the sale of Apio Frestiune 2003.

Landec Ag

The increase in gross profits for Landec Agthe fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetigssaime period last year was due to the
increase in revenues, partially offset by highgafty fees on corn seed hybrids with traits, suglg@netics or certain chemicals, resulting in
lower gross profits as a percentage of sales ¢alfigear 2005 compared to the same period last year

Corporate

The decrease in gross profits for Corporatétfe fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetiesame period last year was primarily due
to the completion of two R&D contracts (UCB and adital device collaboration) in early fiscal ye@02 which resulted in R&D gross prof
decreasing $152,000 in fiscal year 2005 comparéid¢al year 2004.
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Operating Expenses (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 29, May 30,
2005 2004 Change
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 831 $ 1,24¢ (33)%
Landec Ag 647 857 (25)%
Corporate 1,06¢ 1,34¢ (21)%
Total R&D $ 2,54 $ 3,452 (26)%
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 12,35« $ 12,49¢ (1)%
Landec Ag 7,85 7,015 12%
Corporate 3,201 2,76¢ 16%
Total S,G&A $ 23,41: $ 22,28¢ 5%

Research and Developme

Landec’s research and development expensesst@rimarily of expenses involved in the devebgnt and process scale-up initiatives.
Research and development efforts at Apio are fatosethe Company’s proprietary BreatheWay membrased for packaging produce, with
recent focus on extending the shelf life of banaaabother shelf-life sensitive vegetables and.fAti Landec Ag, the research and
development efforts are focused on the Companypretary Intellicoat coatings for seeds, primadbrn seed. At Corporate, the research and
development efforts are focused on uses for thprfgiary Intelimer polymers outside of food andiagjture.

The decrease in research and developmenhsepdor the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 congpiar¢he same period last year was
primarily due to lower research and developmentagps associated with (1) the Company’s specialtkaging banana program as the focus
of the program has shifted to market testing ofpthekaging technology with Apis’partner, Chiquita Brands International, (2) atgeshift o
Landec Ag research and development personnel thuption activities in fiscal year 2005 comparedisoal year 2004 and (3) a reduction in

staff at Corporate and lower facility related exgesin fiscal year 2005 compared to fiscal yea#d200

Selling, General and Administrativ

Selling, general and administrative expemsesist primarily of sales and marketing expensssaated with Landec’s product sales and
services, business development expenses and sthffdministrative expenses.

The increase in selling, general and adnriatise expenses, excluding the $713,000 gain osaleof land at Apio which is netted against
selling, general and administrative expenses heffiscal year ended May 29, 2005 compared todheegeriod last year was primarily due to
an increase in selling and marketing expenses &t &pl Landec Ag in order to increase revenues.
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Other (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 29, May 30,
2005 2004 Change

Interest Income $ 214 $ 164 30%
Interest Expense¢ (414 (811) (49)%
Minority Interest Expense (411 (537) (23)%
Other (Expense)/ Incom: (4) 29 (119%
Total Other Expenst $ (615) $ (1,15%) 47)%

Interest Income

The increase in interest income for the figear ended May 29, 2005 compared to the samegé&ast year was primarily due to the

increase in cash available for investing.

Interest Expenst

The decrease in interest expense duringsbalfyear ended May 29, 2005 compared to the gmmed last year was due to the Company

using cash generated from operations to pay dowhate thus lowering interest expenses.

Minority Interest Expense

The minority interest expense consists ofrtiigority interest associated with the limited pars’ equity interest in the net income of Apio

Cooling, LP.

The decrease in the minority interest indigear 2005 compared to fiscal year 2004 was di@ner profits generated from Apio Cooling

in fiscal year 2005.

Other

Other consists of non-operating income arpkages.

Fiscal Year Ended May 30, 2004 Compared to Twelveriths Ended May 25, 2003 (the twelve months endex/M5, 2003 amounts al

unaudited and presented for comparative purposes/pn
Revenues (in thousands):

Twelve Months

Fiscal Year

Ended

May 30,

2004
Apio Value Addec $ 101,06°
Apio Trading 59,31
Apio Tech 1,71¢
Apio Service 5,79
Total Apio 167,88¢
Landec Ag 23,64
Corporate 56&
Total Revenue $ 192,09.

Ended
May 25,
2003 Change
(Unaudited)
$ 82,44, 23%
47,98¢ 24%
4,54( (62)%
23,12. (75)%
158,09¢ 6%
21,01« 13%
2,23( (75)%
$ 181,34 6%
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Apio Value Addec

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of reesrgenerated from the sale of specialty packagsthfcut and whole value-added processed
vegetable products that are washed and packagrd proprietary packaging and sold under Apio’s &aiart brand, the Dole brand and
various private labels.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenoeshe fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 comparetdedwelve months ended May 25, 2003 is
due to increased product offerings, increased s$alesisting customers and the addition of newamstrs. Specifically, sales of Apio’s value-
added 12-ounce specialty packaged retail prodoetdrew 44% and sales of Apio’s value-added vedgetady products grew 84% during the
fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 compared to thevievelonths ended May 25, 2003. Overall value-addéts syolume increased 23% during
the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 compared tdviieése months ended May 25, 2003.

Apio Trading

Apio trading revenues consist of revenueserpgted from the purchase and sale of primarily eloimmodity fruit and vegetable products
to Asia through Apio’s export company, Cal-Ex anghfi the purchase and sale of whole commodity &und vegetable products domestically
to Wal-Mart. The export portion of trading revendesfiscal year 2004 was $48.7 million or 82% offa trading revenues.

The increase in revenues in Apio’s tradingibess for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 coetptd the twelve months ended May 25,
2003 was primarily due to changes in the provisimingertain export contracts. Based on these rdwsatracts, the Company takes title to the
products and therefore recognizes the revenus gtass sales value rather than recording onlgah@mission portion as revenue as it had
in previous years before the changes in the prawison certain of these contracts had been condplet@ddition, export sales volumes were
higher by 14% for the fiscal year ended May 30,£260mpared to the twelve months ended May 25, 2003.

Apio Tech

Apio Tech consist of Apio’s packaging techogyl business using its BreatheW#&ymembrane technology. The first commercial applig
included in Apio Tech is our banana packaging tetdgy. During fiscal year 2004, Apio sold banamasur proprietary packaging almost
exclusively to food service companies whereas énttelve months ended May 25, 2003, there wereplsduct sales to retail grocery chains.

The decrease in revenues from the sale afrizemfor the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 contpiar¢éhe twelve months ended May 25,
2003, was due to the Company not selling bananestdd grocery stores in fiscal year 2004 resgliima 46% decrease in the unit volume of
bananas sold. This decrease was due to the Confipeusing on selling bananas to food service congsaand developing alternative
packaging formats during fiscal year 2004. During fourth fiscal quarter of 2004, Apio began tasition from sourcing its own bananas to
working with banana shippers who will package ta@nanas in Landec’s packaging and sell those gadkaananas to food service and retail
customers.

Apio Service

Prior to its sale on June 30, 2003, Apio afet a domestic commodity vegetable business thetated and sold whole produce for
growers. Apio charged a per carton service feenffarketing and selling these whole commaodity prosluBtibsequent to June 30, 2003, Apio’s
service revenues consist of revenues generatedAmmCooling, LP, a vegetable cooling operatiominich Apio is the general partner with a
60% ownership position.

The decrease in service revenues duringishelfyear ended May 30, 2004 compared to the svwelgnths ended May 25, 2003, is directly
attributable to the sale of Apio’s domestic comnypdegetable business on June 30, 2003.
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Landec Ag

Landec Ag revenues consist of revenues gextefeom the sale of hybrid seed corn to farmedeuthe Fielder's Choice Direct@rand an
from the sale of Intellicoat coated corn and soybszeds to farmers and seed companies. For tla yisar ended May 30, 2004 and the twi
month period ended May 25, 2003, over 90% of Lamsigs revenues were from the sale of hybrid seed aoder the Fielder's Choice brand.

The increase in revenues at Landec Ag dutiadiscal year ended May 30, 2004 compared tdvileése months ended May 25, 2003, is
due to a change in product mix to higher pricedrigyborn varieties that resulted in a 16% incréagbe average price per unit.

Corporate

Corporate revenues consist of revenues gextefiiom partnering with others under researchdmatlopment agreements and supply
agreements and from fees for licensing our pragnyeiintelimer technology to others and from theresponding royalties from these license
agreements.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for sisalfyear ended May 30, 2004 compared to the twabwgths ended May 25, 2003, is due
primarily to a decrease in revenues from the $21om licensing agreement with UCB Chemicals Cagimn (“UCB”) entered into in
December 2001 which was recognized to revenuelyataler a 12-month period through December 2002feord the completion of the
research and development agreement with a meddeédalcompany in June 2003.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Twelve Months
Ended Ended
May 30, May 25,
2004 2003 _Change
(Unaudited)
Apio Value Addec $ 15,79: $ 11,53 37%
Apio Trading 2,89¢ 3,00z 3)%
Apio Tech (862) (47€) (81)%
Apio Service 2,40: 6,17¢ (61)%
Total Apio 20,23 20,23t —
Landec Ag 9,08¢ 8,69: 5%
Corporate 474 2,23( (79)%
Total Gross Profi $ 29,79 $ 31,15¢ (4%

General

There are numerous factors that can influgmoss profits including product mix, customer mmanufacturing costs (raw materials, suc
fresh produce, corn seed, polymer materials anklgggieg, labor and overhead), volume, sale discoaimtischarges for excess or obsolete
inventory, to name a few. Many of these factorkuirice or are interrelated with other factors. €fane, it is difficult to precisely quantify the
impact of each item individually. The following disssion surrounding gross profits includes managémbest estimates of the reasons fo
changes for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 ewetpto the twelve months ended May 25, 2003, Himed in the table above.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profits for Apio’s \@ladded specialty packaged vegetable busineskddistal year ended May 30, 2004 compared
to the twelve months ended May 25, 2003, was dii#)ta 23% increase in value-added sales durirglfigear 2004, (2) product mix changes
to higher margin products such as vegetable tragi{3) improved manufacturing efficiencies throdgither automation of Apio’s production
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process. These increases in gross profits weralpadffset by produce shortages in late Decen#¥¥3 and most of January 2004 which
reduced gross profits by $1.5 million.

Apio Trading

Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell businist realizes a commission-based margin in th&4ange. The decrease in gross profits
during the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 comp#oete twelve months ended May 25, 2003, was pilyndue to a sales mix change to
lower margin fruit products from higher margin beoti products.

Apio Tech

The decrease in gross profits for Apio Teattlie fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 comparetieédwelve months ended May 25, 2003,
primarily due to Apio only selling bananas in itoprietary packaging to a few food service compaunigring fiscal year 2004 versus selling
bananas to both food service companies and retaibgy chains in 2003. In addition, food servicenpanies often do not purchase the entire
container load of bananas that Apio has had shifrped Central America. When this occurs, Apio hasell the remaining bananas on the
open market at prices that do not cover its fulits@nd recognizes negative gross profits on tleec$@hose bananas. During the fourth fiscal
quarter of 2004, Apio began to transition from sing its own bananas to working with banana shippédro will package their bananas in
Landec’s packaging and sell those packaged banari@sd service and retail customers.

Apio Service

The decrease in Apio’s service business guos#ts during the fiscal year ended May 30, 2@0mpared to the twelve months ended
May 25, 2003, was directly attributable to the s#HlApio’s domestic commodity vegetable businesgame 30, 2003.

Landec Ag

The increase in gross profits for Landec #igthe fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 comparetiadwelve months ended May 25, 2003,
due to the increase in revenues, partially offgetigher royalty fees on corn seed hybrids witlitsrauch as genetics or certain chemicals,
resulting in lower gross profits as a percentagsatés in fiscal year 2004 compared to the tweloatirs ended May 25, 2003.

Corporate

The decrease in gross profits for CorporateHe fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 comparetiedwelve months ended May 25, 2003, was
primarily due to the $2.0 million licensing agreethwith UCB, which was entered into in December 20geing recognized to gross profits
ratably over a 12-month period through Decembe220t from the completion of the research and dgveént agreement with a medical
device company in June 2003.
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Operating Expenses (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Twelve Months
Ended Ended
May 30, May 25,
2004 2003 Change
(Unaudited)
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,24¢ $ 1,38¢ (10)%
Landec Ag 857 901 (5)%
Corporate 1,34¢ 1,274 6%
Total R&D $ 3,452 $ 3,561 3)%
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 12,49¢ $ 16,34¢ (29)%
Landec Ag 7,017 7,08: (1)%
Corporate 2,76¢ 2,741 1%
Total S,G&A $ 22,28¢ $ 26,17 (15)%

Research and Developme

Landec’s research and development expensesst@rimarily of expenses involved in the develent and process scale-up initiatives.
Research and developments efforts at Apio are &atos the Company’s proprietary breathable memisrased for packaging produce, with
recent focus on extending the shelf life of banaAasandec Ag, the research and development affamt focused on the Company’s
proprietary Intellicoat coatings for seeds, prifyatorn seed. At Corporate, the research and dpusot efforts are focused on uses for the
proprietary Intelimer polymers outside of food auticulture.

The decrease in research and developmenhsgpéor the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 conapar¢he twelve months ended May 25,
2003, was primarily due to lower research and dgraknt expenses associated with the Comgaspecialty packaging banana program a:
focus of the program has shifted to market testingpe packaging technology and developing collabee supply arrangements with banana
shippers.

Selling, General and Administrativ

Selling, general and administrative expemsesist primarily of sales and marketing expensssaated with Landec’s product sales and
services, business development expenses and sthffcaninistrative expenses.

The decrease in selling, general and adméatige expenses for the fiscal year 2004 comparehd twelve months ended May 25, 2003,
was primarily due to a decrease in selling, gereemdladministrative expenses at Apio as a restutteofale of Apio’s domestic commodity
vegetable business on June 30, 2003.
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Other (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Twelve Months
Ended Ended
May 30, May 25,
2004 2003 Change
(Unaudited)

Interest Income $ 164 $ 21F (24)%
Interest Expenst (811 (1,096 (26)%
Minority Interest Expense (537) (539 1%
Other Income 29 48C (94)%
Total Other Expenst $ (1,159 $ (935 24%

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the ffigear ended May 30, 2004 compared to the twelvatheoended May 25, 2003, was due to a
reduction in interest bearing notes receivable@bA

Interest Expenst

The decrease in interest expense duringsbalfyear ended May 30, 2004 compared to the swelonths ended May 25, 2003, was due to
the Company using cash generated from operatiopayt@own debt and thus lowering interest expenses.

Minority Interest Expense

The minority interest expense consists ofrtirgority interest associated with the limited pars’ equity interest in the net income of Apio
Cooling, LP.

Other
Other consists of non-operating income amkeages such as the gain or loss on the sale déasse

The decrease in the net other income fofisisal year ended May 30, 2004 compared to thevisvelonths ended May 25, 2003, was
primarily due to a decrease in income recognizethddiscal year 2004 compared to twelve monthseenday 25, 2003. During the twelve
months ended May 25, 2003, other income includ&DEDO in farm equipment rental income associatéil tve domestic commaodity
vegetable business sold in June 2003 and otheelgiseous credits.

Seven Months Ended May 25, 2003 Compared to Seventik Ended June 2, 2002 (unaudite

Total revenues for the seven months ended 2822003 were $112.3 million compared to $114.llioniduring the same period in 2002.
Revenues from product sales and services for thensmonths ended May 25, 2003 decreased to $11illiGnfrom $112.4 million during the
same period of 2002 due primarily to decreasedmas®in (1) Apio’s “fee-for-service” commodity bosss which decreased to $12.8 million
during the seven months ended May 25, 2003 compar®tl5.9 million in revenues during the same kdb2002 as a result of the Company
focusing on its value added business, (2) Apiofsoeikbusiness which decreased to $17.9 millionrdutihe seven months ended May 25, 2003
compared to $21.6 million during the same perio@@d2 as a result of decreased sales of broccolfrait to Asia and (3) Apio’s banana
business which decreased to $1.7 million duringstheen months ended May 25, 2003 compared to $iliamfor the same period of 2002 as
a result of reduced retail sales as the Comparpapee for market trials. These decreases in reverue partially offset by increased revenues
in Apio’s value added fresh-cut and whole vegetg@btaluce business which increased to $54.3 mitliating the seven months ended May 25,
2003 from $47.1 million in the same period of 2@&2a result of increased product offerings, in@dasles to existing customers and the
addition of new customers. In addition, Landec Agenues increased to $21.0 million during the sewenths ended May 25, 2003 from
$19.5 million in the same period of 2002 due
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to a change in product mix to higher revenue prtgllRevenues from license fees decreased to $3b#H0the seven months ended May 25,
2003 from $1.3 million for the same period of 2@02 primarily to a decrease in revenues from th@ 8gllion licensing agreement with UC
Chemicals Corporation entered into in December 200ith was recognized ratably over arh®nth period through December 2002. Reve
from research and development funding for the sevenths ended May 25, 2003 increased to $429,@p0 $402,000 during the same period
of 2002.

Cost of product sales and services consfstsaterial, labor and overhead. Cost of produasahd services was $91.6 million for the
seven months ended May 25, 2003 compared to $98i@mfor the same period of 2002. Gross profdrfr product sales and services as a
percentage of revenue from product sales and ssrificreased to 18% during the seven months endg®Bl, 2003 from 17% during the
same period of 2002. The increase in the grossimpggcentage during the seven months ended Ma( compared to the same period of
2002 was due to higher margins in Apio’s value addegetable business. Excluding the impact frormfiag activities, gross margins from
product sales and services for the seven monthededay 25, 2003 would have been 19% compared tod¥hg the same period of 2002.
During the seven months ended May 25, 2003, thegaomrealized losses from farming activities asseci with its commaodity business of
$1.1 million compared to income from farming adia$ of $926,000 for the seven months ended JuB@@2. Overall gross profit was
virtually flat at $20.7 million for the seven mostended May 25, 2003 compared to $20.9 milliortHersame period of 2002.

Research and development expenses increa$2dit million for the seven months ended May Z®®compared to $2.0 million during
same period of 2002, an increase of 5%. The inergaesearch and development expenses duringtiesm snonths ended May 25, 2003
compared to the same period of 2002 was primatity/ to efforts being spent to develop the Compabgitana and seed technologies.

Selling, general and administrative expemgar® $15.2 million for the seven months ended M&ay2D03 compared to $16.3 million for t
same period of 2002, a decrease of 7%. The decireas#ting, general and administrative expensesiduhe seven months ended May 25,
2003 compared to the same period of 2002 is priynduie to a decrease in selling, general and adindttive expenses at Apio resulting from
its cost reduction efforts. For the seven montidedrMay 25, 2003 sales and marketing expensesatsti¢o $5.5 million from $6.0 million
during the same period of 2002.

Effective June 30, 2003, the Company solthaeassets related to its former domestic comrjodigetable business to Apio Fresh, LLC,
in exchange for notes receivable, a long-term peediwpply agreement for the Company’s value-addedialty packaging business and a per
carton royalty for use of Apio’s brand names basedinits sold by Apio Fresh, LLC. As a result oflanger being in the domestic commodity
vegetable business, the Company recorded a $llibmtharge at May 25, 2003, primarily for the writown of inventories and notes
receivable associated with the domestic commodityetable business.

Interest income for the seven months endeg 2%a 2003 was $144,000 compared to $177,000 toséime period of 2002. Interest expe¢
for the seven months ended May 25, 2003 was $6@2;0Mpared to $1.1 million for the same period@2 The decrease in interest expense
is due to using cash generated from operationsateeof non-strategic assets and from past efjnépcings to pay down debt and thus lower
interest expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of May 29, 2005, the Company had cashcasth equivalents of $12.9 million, a net increds®6o4 million from $6.5 million at
May 30, 2004.

Cash Flow from Operating Activitie

Landec generated $13.0 million of cash flomnf operating activities during fiscal year 2005ngared to $7.5 million during fiscal year
2004. The primary sources of cash during the figeat ended May 29, 2005 were from net income cae@dse in seed inventory, and an
increase in payables as a result of the timingaghgents.
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Cash Flow from Investing Activitie:

Net cash used in investing activities for year ended May 29, 2005 was $5.2 million comp#oegb65,000 for the same period last year.
The primary uses of cash from investing activitrefiscal year 2005 were for the purchase of $3illian of property and equipment and
$2.0 million invested in marketable securities.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for fiseal year ended May 29, 2005 was $1.4 milliompared to $4.1 million for the same period
last year. The primary use of cash was to repayafe®7.1 million. This use of cash was partialffset by proceeds from the sale of
$5.1 million of the Company’s Common Stock and pheceeds from the issuance of $1.2 million of ldagn debt for the expansion of the
Apio facility.

Capital Expenditures

During the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005ydec purchased vegetable processing equipmentxpad@ed its processing facility to
support the growth of Apio’s value added busin&sgse expenditures represented the majority as3ne million of equipment purchased.

Debt

In August 2003, Apio entered into a new $liRion working capital line and a $3 million equipmnt line (the “Lines”) with Wells Fargo
Business Credit, Inc. (“Wells Fargo”). The termtlo¢ Lines is three years expiring on July 31, 2@0&ing fiscal year 2005, the interest rate
was calculated based on the LIBOR rate plus 2%pproximately 5% on an annual basis. The Linesaiomestrictive covenants that require
Apio to meet certain financial tests including minim levels of net income, minimum debt coverage ratinimum net worth and maximum
capital expenditures. Apio was in compliance wittoathe loan covenants throughout fiscal year20d0andec has pledged substantially all of
the assets of Apio to secure the Lines. As of M&y2D05, no amounts were outstanding under thesLine

On September 1, 2004, Apio entered into Wihlls Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) a new $10 Iwih revolving line of credit that
expires on August 31, 2006, a 12-month, $4.8 nmileguipment line of credit, and a 36-month, $1.Rioni term note for equipment purchased
under the equipment line of credit with Wells FaRygsiness Credit (collectively the “Loan Agreem@n@utstanding amounts under the Loan
Agreement bear interest at either the prime ratb®t IBOR adjustable rate plus 2.25% (5.375% ay 18, 2005). The Loan Agreement
contains certain restrictive covenants, which reggiApio to meet certain financial tests, includimgnimum levels of net income, maximum
leverage ratio, minimum net worth and maximum @d@kpenditures. Landec has pledged substantihibf the assets of Apio to secure the
lines with Wells Fargo. Concurrently with enteriingo this agreement with Wells Fargo, the Compaaig pff and terminated its lines of credit
with Wells Fargo Business Credit. At May 29, 2006,amounts were outstanding under the revolvirg dihcredit or the equipment line of
credit. Apio has been in compliance with all lo@venants in the Loan Agreement since the incemtfahis loan.

Landec Ag has a revolving line of credit whallows for borrowings of up to $7.5 million, basen Landec Ag’s inventory levels. The
interest rate on the revolving line of credit is firime rate plus 0.375%, currently 6.625% on aruahbasis. The line of credit contains certain
restrictive covenants, which, among other thingstrict the ability of Landec Ag to make paymenigdebt owed by Landec Ag to Landec.
Landec Ag was in compliance with all of the loawvewgants throughout fiscal year 2005. Landec hadgel@ substantially all of the assets of
Landec Ag to secure the line of credit. At May 2005, no amounts were outstanding under Landec sgalving line of credit.

At May 29, 2005, Landec’s total debt, incluglicurrent maturities and capital lease obligatioves $3.1 million and the total debt to equity
ratio was 4% as compared to 15% at May 30, 200&. ddbt was comprised of term debt and capitakleddigations, $2.1 million of which is
mortgage debt on Apio’s manufacturing facilitiebeTamount of debt outstanding on the Company’'slvexglines of credit fluctuates
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over time. Borrowings on Landec’s lines of cred# axpected to vary with seasonal requirementsetompany’s businesses.

Contractual Obligations
The Company’s material contractual obligasiéor the next five years and thereafter as of &y2005, are as follows (in thousands):

Due in Fiscal Year Ended May

Obligation Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter

Lines of Credil $ — & — $ — $— $— $— B —
Long-term Debi 3,00¢ 51€ 528 263 13¢€ 142 1,427
Capital Lease 8C 32 22 23 3 — —
Interest Expens 1,157 232 13¢ 107 90 83 507
Operating Lease 1,991 60€ 61z 324 281 16¢ —
Licensing Obligatior 70C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C 20C
Purchase Commitmen 81€ 81€ — — — — —
Total $7,752 $2,302 $1,39¢ $817 $61C $494 $ 2,13¢

Interest expense was determined based aasthenption that the Company'’s lines of credit hdll’e an average daily outstanding balance
of $1.0 million at an annual interest rate of 6.&%ball periods presented. The interest expendematerm notes and lease obligations is basec
on the payment schedules and interest rates frerrethvant agreements.

Landec is not a party to any agreements wittcommitments to, any special purpose entitiaswould constitute material off-balance
sheet financing other than the operating lease domants listed above.

Landec’s future capital requirements will ded on numerous factors, including the progressoésearch and development programs; the
development of commercial scale manufacturing citipab; the development of marketing, sales argdritiution capabilities; the ability of
Landec to establish and maintain new collaboradive licensing arrangements; any decision to puaddéional acquisition opportunities;
weather conditions that can affect the supply aiwkpf produce, the timing and amount, if anypayments received under licensing and
research and development agreements; the costséavio preparing, filing, prosecuting, defendingleenforcing intellectual property rights;
the ability to comply with regulatory requirementtse emergence of competitive technology and mddtees; the effectiveness of product
commercialization activities and arrangements; @heér factors. If Landec’s currently available fantbgether with the internally generated
cash flow from operations are not sufficient tasfgtits capital needs, Landec would be requiredetek additional funding through other
arrangements with collaborative partners, additibaak borrowings and public or private sales sfsicurities. There can be no assurance tha
additional funds, if required, will be availableltandec on favorable terms if at all.

Landec believes that its cash from operatialmg with existing cash, cash equivalents aristieg borrowing capacities will be sufficient
to finance its operational and capital requiremémtsugh at least the next twelve months.

Additional Factors That May Affect Future Results

Landec desires to take advantage of the “Bafbor” provisions of the Private Securities Laigpn Reform Act of 1995 and of Section 21E
and Rule 3b-6 under the Securities Exchange AtB8#. Specifically, Landec wishes to alert readeas the following important factors, as
well as other factors including, without limitatioose described elsewhere in this report, cauttié future affect, and in the past have
affected, Landec’s actual results and could caaselec’s results for future periods to differ mathyifrom those expressed in any forward-
looking statements made by or on behalf of Landandec assumes no obligation to update such foreatidng statements.
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Our Future Operating Results Are Likely to FluctuatWhich May Cause Our Stock Price to Decli

In the past, our results of operations hawetdated significantly from quarter to quarter amd expected to continue to fluctuate in the
future. Historically, our direct marketer of hybigdrn seed, Landec Ag, has been the primary sairtese fluctuations, as its revenues and
profits are concentrated over a few months dutirgsipring planting season (generally during oudthind fourth fiscal quarters). In addition,
Apio can be heavily affected by seasonal and wed#otors which have impacted quarterly resultshsas the high cost of sourcing product in
December 2003, January 2004 and March/ April 2085td a shortage of essential value-added prodieicesi Our earnings may also fluctuate
based on our ability to collect accounts receivafilem customers and note receivables from grov@us.earnings from our Food Products
Technology business are sensitive to price fluainatin the fresh vegetables and fruits marketseEg supplies can cause intense price
competition. Other factors that affect our food /an@gricultural operations include:

« the seasonality of our supplie

« our ability to process produce during critical hestperiods
« the timing and effects of ripenin

« the degree of perishabilit

« the effectiveness of worldwide distribution syste

« total worldwide industry volume:

« the seasonality of consumer dema

« foreign currency fluctuations; ar

« foreign importation restrictions and foreign paléi risks.

As a result of these and other factors, weeekto continue to experience fluctuations in tpréy operating results.

We May Not Be Able to Achieve Acceptance of Our Nereducts in the Marketplac

Our success in generating significant salesioproducts will depend in part on the abilifyus and our partners and licensees to achieve
market acceptance of our new products and techpoldtge extent to which, and rate at which, we aghimarket acceptance and penetratic
our current and future products is a function ohgnaariables including, but not limited to:

* price;

« safety;

« efficacy;

« reliability;

* conversion costs

» marketing and sales efforts; a

* general economic conditions affecting purchasiritepas.

We may not be able to develop and introdwese products and technologies in a timely manneresv products and technologies may not
gain market acceptance. We are in the early sthgeduct commercialization of certain Intelimersed specialty packaging, Intellicoat seed
coating and other Intelimer polymer products anaiynaf our potential products are in development. Mgkeve that our future growth will
depend in large part on our ability to develop aratket new products in our target markets and wn markets. In particular, we expect that
our ability to compete effectively with existingdd products, agricultural, industrial and mediaahpanies will depend substantially on
successfully developing, commer-
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cializing, achieving market acceptance of and reduthe cost of producing our products. In additiommmercial applications of our
temperature switch polymer technology are relagivedw and evolving. Our failure to develop new prais or the failure of our new products
to achieve market acceptance would have a matahiadrse effect on our business, results of opermand financial condition.

We Face Strong Competition in the Marketpla

Competitors may succeed in developing alteredgechnologies and products that are more effeceasier to use or less expensive than
those which have been or are being developed loy thet would render our technology and productot#die and nocempetitive. We opera
in highly competitive and rapidly evolving fieldsnd new developments are expected to continueagtiéi pace. Competition from large food
products, agricultural, industrial and medical camips is expected to be intense. In addition, #tera of our collaborative arrangements may
result in our corporate partners and licenseesrbempour competitors. Many of these competitorsehswbstantially greater financial and
technical resources and production and marketipglutties than we do, and may have substantiathater experience in conducting clinical
and field trials, obtaining regulatory approvalslananufacturing and marketing commercial products.

We Have a Concentration of Manufacturing in One Lation for Apio and May Have to Depend on Third P&s$ to Manufacture Oui
Products

Any disruptions in our primary manufacturiageration would reduce our ability to sell our prots and would have a material adverse
effect on our financial results. Additionally, weaynneed to consider seeking collaborative arrangé&meith other companies to manufacture
our products. If we become dependent upon thirtigsafor the manufacture of our products, our profirgins and our ability to develop and
deliver those products on a timely basis may becédfl. Failures by third parties may impair outiggbio deliver products on a timely basis i
impair our competitive position. We may not be ableontinue to successfully operate our manufawusperations at acceptable costs, with
acceptable yields, and retain adequately trainesbpeel.

Our Dependence on Sing-Source Suppliers and Service Providers May Caussrption in Our Operations Should Any Supplier Fg
to Deliver Materials

We may experience difficulty acquiring maaésior services for the manufacture of our prodactse may not be able to obtain substitute
vendors. We may not be able to procure comparabtenmls or hybrid corn varieties at similar prieesl terms within a reasonable time.
Several services that are provided to Apio areinbthfrom a single provider. Several of the rawemats we use to manufacture our products
are currently purchased from a single source, dinlsome monomers used to synthesize Intelimgmperis and substrate materials for our
breathable membrane products. In addition, a ntgjofithe hybrid corn varieties sold by Landec Ag grown under contract by a single seed
producer. Any interruption of our relationship witimgle-source suppliers or service providers coeldy product shipments and materially
harm our business.

We May Be Unable to Adequately Protect Our Intelieal Property Rights

We may receive notices from third parties|uding some of our competitors, claiming infringamhby our products of patent and other
proprietary rights. Regardless of their merit, mgling to any such claim could be time-consumiegult in costly litigation and require us to
enter royalty and licensing agreements which mayemffered or available on terms acceptable tdf assuccessful claim is made against us
and we fail to develop or license a substitute neétgy, we could be required to alter our prodactprocesses and our business, results of
operations or financial position could be mateyialilversely affected. Our success depends in fEgeon our ability to obtain patents,
maintain trade secret protection and operate withdtinging on the proprietary rights of third pias. Any pending patent applications we file
may not be approved and we may not be able to de\alditional proprietary products that are pataletaAny patents issued to us may not
provide us with competitive advantages or may kalehged by third parties. Patents
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held by others may prevent the commercializatioproflucts incorporating our technology. Furthermothers may independently develop
similar products, duplicate our products or desigrund our patents.

Our Operations Are Subject to Regulations that Ditey Impact Our Busines:

Our food packaging products are subject guleion under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (Fi2C Act”). Under the FDC Act, any
substance that when used as intended may reasdrabkpected to become, directly or indirectlypmponent or otherwise affect the
characteristics of any food may be regulated &®d additive unless the substance is generallygrézed as safe. We believe that food
packaging materials are generally not considered #alditives by the FDA because these productaarexpected to become components of
food under their expected conditions of use. Wesittat our breathable membrane product to be agacllaging material not subject to
regulation or approval by the FDA. We have not ek any communication from the FDA concerning brgathable membrane product. If
the FDA were to determine that our breathable mamdproducts are food additives, we may be reqairedbmit a food additive petition for
approval by the FDA. The food additive petition gess is lengthy, expensive and uncertain. A detextioin by the FDA that a food additive
petition is necessary would have a material adveffeet on our business, operating results andfi condition.

Federal, state and local regulations imp@s@®us environmental controls on the use, stordigeharge or disposal of toxic, volatile or
otherwise hazardous chemicals and gases used i afotime manufacturing processes. Our failure tarobthe use of, or to restrict adequately
the discharge of, hazardous substances under pasierure regulations could subject us to sult&aliability or could cause our
manufacturing operations to be suspended and chamgavironmental regulations may impose the rieeddditional capital equipment or
other requirements.

Our agricultural operations are subject t@aety of environmental laws including, the Foodalty Protection Act of 1966, the Clean Air
Act, the Clean Water Act, the Resource ConservaimhRecovery Act, the Federal Insecticide, Fudgieind Rodenticide Act, and the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act. Compliance with these laws amthted regulations is an ongoing
process. Environmental concerns are, however, @mtén most agricultural operations, including thege conduct. Moreover, it is possible 1
future developments, such as increasingly stricirenmental laws and enforcement policies couldiltds increased compliance costs.

The Company is subject to the Perishabledhifiral Commodities Act (“PACA”") law. PACA regulkes fair trade standards in the fresh
produce industry and governs all the products bglépio. Our failure to comply with the PACA regeiments could among other things, result
in civil penalties, suspension or revocation atarise to sell produce, and in the most egregiasss; criminal prosecution, which could ha
material adverse affect on our business.

Adverse Weather Conditions and Other Acts of GodyMaause Substantial Decreases in Our Sales andfaréases in Our Cosi

Our Food Products and Agricultural Seed Tetdgy businesses are subject to weather conditimtsaffect commaodity prices, crop yields,
and decisions by growers regarding crops to bet@thaiCrop diseases and severe conditions, pantigul@ather conditions such as floods,
droughts, frosts, windstorms, earthquakes anddames, may adversely affect the supply of vegesadnte fruits used in our business, which
could reduce the sales volumes and/or increaserii@roduction costs. Because a significant partibthe costs are fixed and contracted in
advance of each operating year, volume declinesalpsoduction interruptions or other factors corddult in increases in unit production cc
which could result in substantial losses and weakarfinancial condition.

We Depend on Strategic Partners and Licenses fotlre Developmen

Our strategy for development, clinical arelditesting, manufacture, commercialization andketimg for some of our current and future
products includes entering into various collaboraiwith corporate partners, licensees and othiéesare dependent on our corporate partners
to develop, test, manufacture
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and/or market some of our products. Although wéelelthat our partners in these collaborations leawveconomic motivation to succeed in
performing their contractual responsibilities, #mount and timing of resources to be devoted teetlaetivities are not within our control. Our
partners may not perform their obligations as etgueor we may not derive any additional revenueftbe arrangements. Our partners may
not pay any additional option or license fees tousiay not develop, market or pay any royalty fiedated to products under the agreements.
Moreover, some of the collaborative agreementsigeothat they may be terminated at the discretidh@ corporate partner, and some of the
collaborative agreements provide for terminatiodanother circumstances. In addition, we may notike any royalties on future sales of the
PORT™ product because in the related agreement we hagermtoml over commercializing the product or getiatarevenues from the sales
the product. Our partners may pursue existingterrtive technologies in preference to our teabgyl Furthermore, we may not be able to
negotiate additional collaborative arrangementiénfuture on acceptable terms, if at all, andanliaborative arrangements may not be
successful.

Both Domestic and Foreign Government RegulationsrCidave an Adverse Effect on Our Business Operatic

Our products and operations are subject ¥eigunental regulation in the United States andiforeountries. The manufacture of our
products is subject to periodic inspection by ratprly authorities. We may not be able to obtairessary regulatory approvals on a timely
basis or at all. Delays in receipt of or failure¢geive approvals or loss of previously receivegravals would have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultsp#rations. Although we have no reason to belieaewe will not be able to comply with all
applicable regulations regarding the manufactutesate of our products and polymer materials, r@#gpris are always subject to change and
depend heavily on administrative interpretationd #re country in which the products are sold. Feizlranges in regulations or interpretations
relating to matters such as safe working condititatsoratory and manufacturing practices, enviromaecontrols, and disposal of hazardot
potentially hazardous substances may adverselgtafte business.

We are subject to USDA rules and regulatmmscerning the safety of the food products handletisold by Apio, and the facilities in
which they are packed and processed. Failure tglyowith the applicable regulatory requirements,@mnong other things, result in:

« fines, injunctions, civil penalties, and suspensij:

« withdrawal of regulatory approval

« product recalls and product seizures, includingagsn of manufacturing and sal

« operating restrictions, ar

« criminal prosecution

We may be required to incur significant castsomply with the laws and regulations in theufetwhich may have a material adverse effect
on our business, operating results and financiadlitimn.

Our International Operations and Sales May ExposeincCBusiness to Additional Risk

For fiscal year 2005, approximately 24% of toial revenues were derived from product salasternational customers. A number of risks
are inherent in international transactions. Intdomal sales and operations may be limited or gid by any of the following:

« regulatory approval proces
* government controls

« export license requiremen
* political instability,

* price controls
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« trade restrictions
« changes in tariffs, ¢
« difficulties in staffing and managing internatiomgerations

Foreign regulatory agencies have or may éstaproduct standards different from those inlthnited States, and any inability to obtain
foreign regulatory approvals on a timely basis ddwve a material adverse effect on our internatibosiness, and our financial condition and
results of operations. While our foreign salesaneently priced in dollars, fluctuations in curcgrexchange rates, may reduce the demand for
our products by increasing the price of our proglictthe currency of the countries to which thedpieis are sold. Regulatory, geopolitical and
other factors may adversely impact our operatiartbé future or require us to modify our currensipess practices.

Cancellations or Delays of Orders by Our Customéfay Adversely Affect Our Busines

During fiscal year 2005, sales to our tofoustomers accounted for approximately 42% ofewvenues, with our largest customer, Costco
Wholesale Corp. accounting for approximately 15%wfrevenues. We expect that, for the foresedahlee, a limited number of customers
may continue to account for a substantial portibauwr net revenues. We may experience change®indmposition of our customer base, as
Apio and Landec Ag have experienced in the pastd@/eot have long-term purchase agreements wittohouyr customers. The reduction,
delay or cancellation of orders from one or morgomeustomers for any reason or the loss of onaane of our major customers could
materially and adversely affect our business, dpgyaesults and financial condition. In additi@mce some of the products processed by Apio
at its Guadalupe, California facility are sole smmgt to its customers, our operating results coalddversely affected if one or more of our
major customers were to develop other sourcespglguOur current customers may not continue te@larders, orders by existing customers
may be canceled or may not continue at the levVigisawvious periods or we may not be able to obbaders from new customers.

Our Sale of Some Products May Increase Our Expostwdroduct Liability Claims

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, arld s&the products we develop involves an inhereshtof allegations of product liability. If ar
of our products were determined or alleged to bearainated or defective or to have caused a haracftitlent to an end-customer, we could
incur substantial costs in responding to complaintiétigation regarding our products and our pretdorand image could be materially
damaged. Either event may have a material advéfieset en our business, operating results and firrmondition. Although we have taken ¢
intend to continue to take what we believe are @iate precautions to minimize exposure to protlability claims, we may not be able to
avoid significant liability. We currently maintaproduct liability insurance with limits in the amauwf $41.0 million per occurrence and
$42.0 million in the annual aggregate. Our coveragg not be adequate or may not continue to bdadblaiat an acceptable cost, if at all. A
product liability claim, product recall or othea@h with respect to uninsured liabilities or in egs of insured liabilities could have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resatt§inancial condition.

Our Stock Price May Fluctuate in Accordance with Meet Conditions

Over the past several years the stock méwketxperienced extreme price and volume fluctnatidhe following events may cause the
market price of our common stock to fluctuate digantly:

« technological innovations applicable to our produ

« our attainment of (or failure to attain) milestomeshe commercialization of our technoloy
« our development of new products or the developraénew products by our competito

* new patents or changes in existing patents appdi¢atour products

« our acquisition of new businesses or the salespadial of a part of our business
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« development of new collaborative arrangements bypuiscompetitors or other partie
 changes in government regulations applicable tdosimess

 changes in investor perception of our busin

« fluctuations in our operating results e

« changes in the general market conditions in ounstry.

These broad fluctuations may adversely atfeetmarket price of our common stock.

Since We Order Cartons and Film for Our Productsofn Suppliers in Advance of Receipt of Customer Qedfor Such Products, W
Could Face a Material Inventory Risk

As part of our inventory planning, we enteoinegotiated orders with vendors of cartons dnmdudsed for packing our products in advance
of receiving customer orders for such products.ofdingly, we face the risk of ordering too manytoas and film since orders are generally
based on forecasts of customer orders rather tttaalarders. If we cannot change or be released the orders, we may incur costs as a
result of inadequately predicting cartons and firders in advance of customer orders. Becausasyfitle may currently have an oversuppl
cartons and film and face the risk of not beingedblsell such inventory and our anticipated resefor losses may be inadequate if we have
misjudged the demand for our products. Our busiaadsoperating results could be adversely affeatea result of these increased costs.

Our Seed Products May Fail to Germinate Properlycaid/e May Be Subject to Claims for ReimbursemenB@amages for Losses froi
Customers Who Use Such Produc

Farmers plant seed products sold by Landewiffgthe expectation that they will germinate undermal growing conditions. If our seed
products do not germinate at the appropriate tinfaibto germinate at all, our customers may insignificant crop losses and seek
reimbursement or bring claims against us for sumhabes. Although insurance is generally availaboter such claims, the costs for
premiums of such policies are prohibitively expgasand we currently do not maintain such insuraAcg.claims brought for failure of our
seed products to properly germinate could matgréald adversely affect our operating and finan@adilts.

Recently Enacted Changes in Securities Laws and iRations Are Likely to Increase Our Cos

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act’athecame law in July 2002 requires changes in sifraar corporate governance, public
disclosure and compliance practices. In additicesdéq has made revisions to its requirements fopeaies, such as Landec, that are liste
the NASDAQ. We expect these developments to inereas legal and financial compliance costs. Thésages could make it more difficult
and more expensive for us to obtain director afidexfliability insurance, and we may be requireditcept reduced coverage or incur
substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. &lievelopments could make it more difficult fortasttract and retain qualified members for
our board of directors, particularly to serve on audit committee.

Our Controlling Shareholders Exert Significant Infience over Corporate Events that May Conflict withe Interests of Othe
Shareholders

Our executive officers and directors andrthaéfiliates own or control approximately 26% oframommon stock (including options
exercisable within 60 days). Accordingly, theseagffs, directors and shareholders may have thiyatailexert significant influence over the
election of our Board of Directors, the approvahofendments to our articles and bylaws and theogppof mergers or other business
combination transactions requiring shareholder @ggdr This concentration of ownership may haveetiect of delaying or preventing a
merger or other business combination transactieen & the transaction or amendments would be beiaéfo our other shareholders. In
addition, our controlling shareholders may apprareendments to our articles or
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bylaws to implement anti-takeover or managemeanttly provisions that may not be beneficial to othver shareholders.

Terrorist Attacks and Risk of Contamination May Natively Impact All Aspects of Our Operations, Reues, Costs and Stock Prit

The September 2001 terrorist attacks in thigdd States, as well as future events occurrirmgsponse or connection to them, including,
future terrorist attacks against United Statesats;gumors or threats of war, actual conflictoiming the United States or its allies, or trade
disruptions impacting our domestic suppliers or customers, may impact our operations and may, gratrer things, cause decreased sales
of our products. More generally, these events ladfezted, and are expected to continue to affeetgeneral economy and customer demand
for our products. While we do not believe that employees, facilities, or products are a targetdaorists, there is a remote risk that terrorist
activities could result in contamination or adwitéwn of our products. Although we have systemsmodedures in place that are designed to
prevent contamination and adulteration of our potsiua disgruntled employee or third party coutdaduce an infectious substance into
packages of our products, either at our manufayslants or during shipment of our products. Wareproducts to be tampered with, we
could experience a material adverse effect in ogiress, operations and financial condition.

We May Be Exposed to Employment Related Claims @adts that Could Materially Adversely Affect Our Bimess

We have been subject in the past, and may thee future, to claims by employees based omatlens of discrimination, negligence,
harassment and inadvertent employment of illedgahalor unlicensed personnel, and we may be sutoigetyment of workers’ compensation
claims and other similar claims. We could incurstahtial costs and our management could spenchdisamt amount of time responding to
such complaints or litigation regarding employegrok, which may have a material adverse effectwrbasiness, operating results and
financial condition.

We Are Dependent on Our Key Employees and if Ond&/are of Them Were to Leave, We Could Experiencéfibulties in Replacing
Them and Our Operating Results Could Suff

The success of our business depends to #icdgm extent upon the continued service and perémce of a relatively small number of key
senior management, technical, sales, and markpérgpnnel. The loss of any of our key personnellavtikely harm our business. In addition,
competition for senior level personnel with knowdecand experience in our different lines of busriesntense. If any of our key personnel
were to leave, we would need to devote substamts@lurces and management attention to replace th&mresult, management attention may
be diverted from managing our business, and wemeay to pay higher compensation to replace theptogaes.

We May Have to Pursue New Financings if We Are Uralto Comply with Provisions in Our Loan Agreemeritsthe Future

Apio is subject to various financial and agigrg covenants under the Well Fargo Bank linesredlit, including minimum levels of net
income, maximum leverage ratio, minimum net wortld enaximum capital expenditures. The Wells FargokBegreement limits the ability of
Apio to make cash payments to Landec. If we viodate obligations under the lines of credit in theufe, we could trigger an event of default,
which, if not cured or waived, would permit accel&n of our obligation to repay the indebtednass dnder our lines. If the indebtedness due
under the lines were accelerated, we would be fbre@ursue one or more alternative strategies asdelling assets, seeking new debt
financing from another lender or seeking additiceglity capital, which might not be achievable waikable on attractive terms, if at all, and
which could substantially dilute the ownership et of existing shareholders.

-43-




Table of Contents

We May Issue Preferred Stock with Preferential Righthat Could Affect Your Right

Our Board of Directors has the authority hwitt further approval of our shareholders, to fie tights and preferences, and to issue shares,
of preferred stock. In November 1999, we issuedsaid shares of Series A Convertible PreferrediSamel in October 2001 we issued and
sold shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stolok Series A Convertible Preferred Stock was eted into 1,666,670 shares of Common
Stock on November 19, 2002 and the Series B CableRreferred Stock was converted into 1,744, 1f2es of Common Stock on May 7,
2004.

The issuance of new shares of preferred stoald have the effect of making it more diffictdt a third party to acquire a majority of our
outstanding stock, and the holders of such predesteck could have voting, dividend, liquidatiordasther rights superior to those of holder
our Common Stock.

We Have Never Paid any Dividends on Our Common &t

We have not paid any cash dividends on ouni@on Stock since inception and do not expect teadim the foreseeable future. Any
dividends may be subject to preferential dividepdgable on any preferred stock we may issue.

Our Profitability Could Be Materially And Adverselpffected if it Is Determined that the Book Valud Goodwill is Higher than Fair
Value

Our balance sheet includes an amount desidrast “goodwill” that represents a portion of ossets and our shareholdesguity. Goodwil
arises when an acquirer pays more for a businessthte fair value of the tangible and separatelgsueable intangible net assets. Under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. “Giddwill and Other Intangible Assets”, beginningiscal year 2002, the amortization
of goodwill has been replaced with an “impairmesstt which requires that we compare the fair valfigoodwill to its book value at least
annually and more frequently if circumstances iatica possible impairment. If we determine at émg in the future that the book value of
goodwill is higher than fair value then the diffece must be written-off, which could materially aaiversely affect our profitability.

Iltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

The following table presents information abthe Company’s debt obligations and derivativaficial instruments that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates. The table presentsipgiremounts and related weighted average inteaéss$ by fiscal year of expected maturity for
the Company’s debt obligations. The carrying vatithe Company’s debt obligations approximatesfaéirevalue of the debt obligations as of
May 29, 2005.

Liabilities (in 000’s) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total

Lines of Credit $ — $— $— $— $—-— 3 — $ —
Avg. Int. Rate

Long term debt, including current porti
Variable Rate $ 51€ $52¢ $ 262 $ 13¢€ $ 14z $ 1,42¢ $3,00¢
Avg. Int. Rate 515%% 5.15% 521% 53%&6 5.3&% 5.2¢% 5.2:%
Fixed Rate $ 32 $ 21 $ 23 $ 3 $ — $ — $ 79
Avg. Int. Rate 10.81% 59(% 59(% 5.9(% 7.81%
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ltem 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary De
See Item 15 of Part IV of this report.

ltem 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedure
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participatibaur Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Finai®fficer, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the ettwegberiod covered by this Annual Report on Fof¥K1 Based on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial OfficeaMe concluded that our disclosure controls andgatoes are effective to ensure that
information we are required to disclose in reptrts we file or submit under the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934 (i) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported with the time periods §ipedn Securities and Exchange Commission rulesfarms, and (ii) is accumulate and
communicated to Company management, including tiefExecutive Officer and our Chief Financial @#r, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Our d&ale controls and procedures are designed to grogmsonable assurance that such
information is accumulated and communicated toroanagement. Our disclosure controls and procedicksle components of our internal
controls over financial reporting. Management'seasment of the effectiveness of our internal céseer financial reporting is expressed at
the level of reasonable assurance because a cepsteln, no matter how well designed and operatedprovide only reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that the control system’s tilgsowill be met.

Change in Internal Controls Over Financial Reportin

There were no changes in our internal cositoekr financial reporting during the quarter enl¥y 29, 2005 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, @ternal controls over financial reporting.

Managemen’'s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportg

Our management is responsible for establishimd maintaining adequate internal control oveairfcial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15
(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, raereded). Our management assessed the effectiveihessinternal control over financial
reporting as of May 29, 2005. In making this asses®, our management used the criteria set fortthéy-ommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@”")nternal Control — Integrated Framework. Our ngeraent has concluded that, as of
May 29, 2005, our internal control over financigporting is effective to provide reasonable asstgaagarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaatepted accounting principles. Our
independent registered public accounting firm, E€&¥oung LLP, have issued an audit report on agegsment of our internal control over
financial reporting, which is included herein.

Our management, including our Chief Execu@fficer and Chief Financial Officer, does not egpthat our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financegarting will prevent all error and all fraud. Ardool system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, nofalesassurance that the objectives of the cosyrsilem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of conimuist be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all consgstems, no evaluation of controls can provide las@ssurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within the Company hbeen detected.

-45-




Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Landec @rporation

We have audited management’s assessmentdéettin the accompanying Management Report onnat€ontrols over Financial
Reporting, that Landec Corporation maintained éffednternal control over financial reporting &sMay 29, 2005, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framewssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitinatof the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). Landec Corporation’s manageriseresponsible for maintaining effective interpahtrol over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internakrabaver financial reporting. Our responsibilitytio express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectivene$g afdmpany’s internal control over financial repartbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstaedards of the Public Company Accounting OvétdBpard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahchéng the design and operating effectivenessatefnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary @irtluenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiaporting is a process designed to provide reaseregsurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intercahtrol over financial reporting may not preventietect misstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment#radec Corporation maintained effective internaitoal over financial reporting as of
May 29, 2005, is fairly stated, in all materialpests, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance withsthadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdgglard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Landec Corporatiai Elay 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, and the relatattments of income, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years ended May2295, May 30, 2004, the seven months ended Mag@%3 and for the year ended
October 27, 2002 of Landec Corporation and ourntegeted July 29, 2005 expressed an unqualifiediopithereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
July 29, 2005
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PART Il

Item 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrz

This information required by this item wik lzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtetment which the Registrant will file with the
Commission no later than September 26, 2005 (126 dfter the Registrant’s fiscal year end covengthis Report) and is incorporated herein
by reference.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

This information required by this item wik lzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtetment which the Registrant will file with the
Commission no later than September 26, 2005 (126 dfter the Registrant’s fiscal year end covengthis Report) and is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aftnagement

This information required by this item wik lzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtetment which the Registrant will file with the
Commission no later than September 26, 2005 (126 dfter the Registrant’s fiscal year end covengthis Report) and is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactio

This information required by this item wik lzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtetment which the Registrant will file with the
Commission no later than September 26, 2005 (126 dfter the Registrant’s fiscal year end covengthis Report) and is incorporated herein
by reference.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

This information required by this item wik lzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtetment which the Registrant will file with the
Commission no later than September 26, 2005 (126 dfter the Registrant’s fiscal year end covengthis Report) and is incorporated herein
by reference.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits

(a) 1. Consolidated Financial Statements of Lari@i@poration

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistaPadlic Accounting Firn

Consolidated Balance Sheets at May 29, 2005 and3@ag004

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaced May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, the SeventivoBnded
May 25, 2003 and June 2, 2002 and for the Year &@izober 27, 200

Consolidated Statements of Changes in ShareholHgtsty for the Years Ended May 29, 2005 and May28D4, the
Seven Months Ended May 25, 2003 and for the YedeB©October 27, 20C

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, the SeventihoBndec
May 25, 2003 and for the Year Ended October 272:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

2. All schedules provided for in the applicable acammregulations of the Securities and Exchange @wsion have bee
omitted since they pertain to items which do ngiesgp in the financial statements of Landec Corjpamaind its
subsidiaries or to items which are not significainto items as to which the required disclosureelzeen made elsewhere
in the financial statements and supplementary retedssuch schedule
3. Index of Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Index ohibits are filed or incorporated by reference as phthis report
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Landec Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidaaé¢ahce sheets of Landec Corporation as of Ma@85 and May 30, 2004, and the
related statements of income, shareholders’ eqaiitst,cash flows for the years ended May 29, 2005 80, 2004, the seven months ended
May 25, 2003 and for the year ended October 272 200ese financial statements are the respongibilithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesaritial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wighstiandards of the Public Company Accounting OgbtdBoard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements nefd to above present fairly, in all material regpethe consolidated financial position of Landec
Corporation at May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, &edconsolidated results of its operations andaghdlows for the years ended May 29,
2005, May 30, 2004, the seven months ended Mag@%3 and for the year ended October 27, 2002, mfocmity with U.S. generally accept
accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance withstaadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States), the
effectiveness of Landec Corporation’s internal coindver financial reporting as of May 29, 2005séd on criteria established in Internal
Controldntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated July 2
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidatedrfcial statements, the Company changed its adoguier goodwill and intangible assets in
2002.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLFP

San Jose, California
July 29, 2005
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Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie

LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfgloamts of $313 and $265 at May 29, 2!

and May 30, 2004, respective
Accounts receivable, related pa
Inventory
Notes and advances receivable,
Notes receivable, related pa
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Assets held for sal
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill, net
Trademarks, ne
Other intangibles, n¢
Notes receivabl
Notes receivable, related pa
Other asset

Total Assets

May 29,
2005

May 30,
2004

(In thousands, except
share and per share

12,87:
1,96¢

15,40¢
47¢
9,91%
41¢
8¢
2,04

1,19(

$

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS * EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Related party payabl¢
Accrued compensatic
Other accrued liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Lines of credit
Current maturities of long term de
Total current liabilities
Long term debt, less current maturit
Other liabilities
Minority interest
Total liabilities
Shareholder equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 sharth®rzed; 24,086,368 ar
23,182,020 shares issued and outstanding at Ma3(0®®%, and May 30, 2004, respectiv

Accumulated defici
Total shareholde’ equity
Total Liabilities and Sharehold¢ Equity

See accompanying notes.
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44,37
17,27¢
25,981
11,57(
58

42¢

7

37¢

100,07t

17,51:
792
1,907
2,141
557

54¢

23,45¢

2,54(
55C

1,46¢

28,01¢

121,95(

amounts)

(49,890

$

72,06(

100,07t

$ 6,45¢

14,85
49¢
11,22°
1,14«
30¢€
1,52i

36,01:
18,34
25,987
11,57(
85

60%

96

31z

$ 14,96
43(
1,57C
2,50¢
807
5,317
1,50¢
27,09
2,172
637
1,55:
31,45¢

116,84:

(55,29:)
61,54¢
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Statement of Operations Data
Revenues
Product sale
Services revenu
Services revenue, related pa
License fee:
Research, development and royalty revet
Royalty revenues, related pa
Total revenue
Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale
Cost of product sales, related pe
Cost of services reveni
Total cost of revenu
Gross profit
Operating costs and expens
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Exit of domestic commodity vegetable busin
Total operating costs and expen
Operating income from continuing operatic
Interest income
Interest expens
Minority interest expens
Other (expense)/income, r
Income from continuing operatiol
Discontinued operation
Loss from discontinued operatio
Loss on disposal of operatio
Loss from discontinued operatio
Net income (loss
Dividends on Series B preferred stc

Seven Months

Seven Months

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareho $

Basic net income (loss) per she
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Basic net income (loss) per shi
Diluted net income (loss) per sha

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Diluted net income (loss) per sh:

Shares used in per share computat
Basic

Diluted

Year Ended Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25, June 2, October 27,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2002
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
$ 201,02( $ 185,66: $ 98,68¢ 96,51! $ 152,95¢
— 2,08: 11,34¢ 14,10: 23,31
3,704 3,70¢ 1,43¢ 1,781 3,51¢
88 88 357 1,27¢ 2,33(
18¢ 291 42¢ 40z 1,04(
23% 257 — — —
205,23( 192,09: 112,25¢ 114,07 183,15!
164,83 153,35« 81,73" 79,39: 128,68
6,33 5,557 60z 1,28¢ 2,66¢
2,094 3,39( 9,21¢ 12,50¢ 20,46
173,25¢ 162,30: 91,55¢ 93,18t 151,81!
31,97 29,79! 20,70« 20,88¢ 31,34(
2,54: 3,452 2,11¢ 2,01¢ 3,53
23,41 22,28¢ 15,18¢ 16,29: 26,11«
— — 1,09t — —
25,95¢ 25,73¢ 18,39¢ 18,31: 29,64¢
6,017 4,05¢ 2,30¢ 2,57 1,694
214 164 144 177 247
(414 (811) (642) (2,099 (1,55))
41y (537 (235) (2249 (525
(4 29 21¢ 71 33€
5,40z 2,90( 1,791 1,50z 201
— — — — (1,68¢)
— — — — (1,68¢)
$ 540z $ 2,900 $ 1,791 1,50z $ (1,489
— (464) (21¢€ (202) (412)
540z $ 2,43¢ $ 1,572 1,30 $ (1,899
$ 0.2: $ 011 $ 0.0¢ 007 $ (0.0))
— — — — (0.09)
$ 0.2: $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ 0.07 $ (0.10)
$ 021 $ 0.1z $ 0.07 0.0¢ $ (0.07)
— — — — (0.09)
$ 021 $ 01z $ 0.07 0.06 $ (0.10)
23,70¢ 21,39¢ 20,94¢ 17,77 18,17
24,61« 23,55¢ 22,62¢ 21,08: 18,17

See accompanying notes.
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Preferred Stock Common Stock Total
Accumulated Shareholder¢
Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit Equity
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
[PRIVATE]

Balance at October 28, 20 309,52: $14,04¢ 16,562,84 $ 93,19 $ (57,40 49,83¢
Dividends on Series B preferred stc 11,77¢ 412 — — (412) —
Issuance of common stock at $0.5¢

$3.10 per shar — — 2,766,70: 7,611 — 7,611
Net loss — — — — (1,487 (1,487

Balance at October 27, 20 321,30( 14,46  19,329,54 100,80: (59,300 55,96:
Dividends on Series B preferred stc 6,24¢ 21¢ — — (219
Conversion of Series A preferred stock to

common stocl (166,667 (9,149 1,666,671 9,14¢ — —
Issuance of common stock at $0.5¢

$1.53 per shar — — 111,30: 14¢ — 14¢
Net income — — — — 1,791 1,791

Balance at May 25, 20( 160,88. 5,531 21,107,51 110,10( (57,72%) 57,90:
Dividends on Series B preferred stc 13,52¢ 464 — — (464) —
Issuance of common stock at $0.58 to

$5.75 per shar — — 330,40: 74€ — 74€
Conversion of Series B preferred stock to

common stocl (174,410 (5,995 1,744,10: 5,99¢ — —
Net income — — — — 2,90( 2,90(

Balance at May 30, 20( — — 23,182,02 116,84: (55,297 61,54¢

Issuance of common stock at $0.86 to $°
per share — — 904,34 5,10¢ — 5,10¢
Net income — — — — 5,40z 5,40z
Balance at May 29, 20( — $§ — 24,086,336 $121,95( $ (49,890 72,06(

See accompanying notes
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Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss

Seven Months

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rethcprovided by operating

activities:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Loss from discontinued operatio
Write down of goodwill

Net loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipt

Minority interest
Exit of domestic commodity vegetable busin

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effectsifacquisitions and

discontinued operation
Accounts receivable, n
Inventory
Issuance of notes and advances receiv
Collection of notes and advances receivi
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payabl
Grower payable
Related party payable
Accrued compensatic
Other accrued liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Decrease (increase) in restricted c
Issuance of notes and advances receiv
Collection of notes and advances receivi
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipr
Purchase of marketable securit
Net proceeds from the sale of Dock Re¢
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from sale of common st
Proceeds from the exercise of subsidiary opt
Net change in other asst
Borrowings on lines of cred
Payments on lines of cre(
Payments on long term de
Proceeds from issuance of long term ¢
Payments to minority intere
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of '

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows informat
Cash paid during the period for inter

Cash paid during the period for income ta

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing anading activities:

Sale of equipment for note receiva

Conversion of Series A preferred stock to commogls

Issuance of Series B preferred stock as dividen@eties B preferred

stockholders

Conversion of Series B preferred stock to commonke

Year Ended Year Ended Ended Year Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25, October 27,
2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
$ 5,40z 2,90( $ 1,791 (1,487
3,461 3,70% 2,041 3,50(
— — — 1,68¢
— 12¢ — —
14¢ (57) @) (62
414 537 23t 52E
— — 89¢ —
(532) 1,96¢ 1,727 (4,879
1,31(C 25C (2,140 4,51¢
(44¢) (1,047 (1,94 (1,914
1,25( 2,707 4,33( 2,38t
(515) 58 2,45¢ 63
2,558 1,02( 2,42¢ (5,729
— (3,239 (3,226 3,61¢
363 (202) 182 (58)
337 347 (29t (128
(365) (1,425 (3,840 (2,50(C
(337) (147) (2,496 592
13,04¢ 7,511 2,13¢ 13C
(3,65¢) (3,399 (1,236 (2,54¢)
— — (389%) (491)
— 2,382 — (1,450
— (20) (22) —
40€ 363 — —
22 3 31 2,192
(1,96¢) — — —
— — — 9,40¢
(5,196 (665) (1,610 7,111
5,10¢ 74€ 14¢ 7,611
50 103 — 20
(240) (284) (15) 15E
59,44 136,52: 21,85: 25,27:
(64,75%) (138,449 (24,70%) (30,78¢)
(1,797 (2,65¢) (1,730 (10,419
1,20(¢ 87 53E 60
(550) (154) (764) —
(1,439 (4,087) (4,679 (8,087
6,41% 2,75¢ (4,150 (84¢€)
6,45¢ 3,69¢ 7,84¢ 8,69¢
$ 12,87: 6,45¢ $ 3,69¢ 7,84¢
$ 511 8432 $ 1,154 1,554
$ 50 — $ — —
$ — 171 $ 703 —
$ — — $ 9,14¢ —
$ — 464 $ 21¢ 412
$ — 5,99¢ $ — —

See accompanying notes.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary ddignificant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (‘lleat or the “Company”) design, develop, manufactarel sell temperature-activated and
other specialty polymer products for a varietyadd products, agricultural products, and licensadner applications. In addition, the
Company markets and distributes hybrid corn seddrtoers through its Landec Ag, Inc. (“Landec Aglbsidiary and specialty packaged
fresh-cut and whole produce to retailers and foodse companies primarily, in the United States @ashada through its Apio, Inc. (“Apio”)
subsidiary.

Basis of Presentatiol

Basis of Consolidatio

The consolidated financial statements comeptie accounts of Landec Corporation and its sidyed, Apio and Landec Ag. All material
inter-company transactions and balances have Beeinated.

On February 20, 2003, the Board of Directdrthe Company approved a change in the Compaisgalfyear end from a fiscal year
including 52 or 53 weeks that ends on the last Sy October to a fiscal year including 52 or 58aks that ends on the last Sunday in May.
As a result, the Company’s fiscal year end for 2@8@5 May 29, 2005.

Unaudited Interim Financial Informatio

The accompanying unaudited Statement of Gipesafor the seven months ended June 2, 2002dw&s firepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles for imefinancial information. Accordingly, it does naintain all of the information and footnotes
required by generally accepted accounting prinsifide complete financial statements. In the opirdbmanagement, the accompanying
unaudited Statement of Operations reflects allstidjents considered necessary for a fair presentafithe results of the interim period
presented.

Discontinued Operation

The income statement accounts of Dock Re3arporation, (“Dock Resins”), the Company’s fornspecialty chemicals subsidiary that
was sold on October 24, 2002, have been recladsdidiscontinued operations in accordance withodoting Principles Board Opinion 30,
Reporting the Results of Operatic— Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a SegmeatRisiness, and Extraordinary, Unusual and
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transacti(APB No. 30), in the accompanying Statements ofréjmns.

Reclassification:

Certain reclassifications have been madeitw period financial statements to conform to thierent year presentation.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with accounting principles generally actspin the United States requires
management to make certain estimates and assumphiataffect the reported amounts of assets abdities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
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statements and the reported results of operatiorisgithe reporting period. Actual results coulfetimaterially from those estimates.

For instance, the carrying value of notes amvhnces receivable are impacted by current marleas for the related crops, weather
conditions and the fair value of the underlyingwséyg obtained by the Company, such as, liens ep@rty and crops. The Company recogn
losses when it estimates that the fair value oféteged crops or security is insufficient to cotle advance, note receivable or investment.

Concentrations of Ris

Cash and cash equivalents, marketable siesyfitade accounts receivable, grower advancesated receivable are financial instruments
that potentially subject the Company to conceraretiof credit risk. Corporate policy limits, amaother things, the amount of credit exposure
to any one issuer and to any one type of investnoginér than securities issued or guaranteed by t8egovernment. The Company routinely
assesses the financial strength of customers aweegs and, as a consequence, believes that treeieables, grower advances and notes
receivable credit risk exposure is limited. Créddises for bad debt are provided for in the codatdid financial statements through a charge to
operations. A valuation allowance is provided foown and anticipated credit losses.

Several of the raw materials used to manufadhe Company’s products are currently purch&®ed a single source, including some
monomers used to synthesize Intelimgrdymers and substrate materials for the produaifdntelimer packaging used on a multitude of A
value-added products. In addition, a majority & kiybrid corn varieties sold by Landec Ag are sedttom a single seed producer.

During the fiscal year ended May 29, 200%st0 the Company’s top five customers accourdedpproximately 42% of total revenue,
with the top customer, Costco Wholesale Corpordtiom the Food Products Technology segment, aceouior approximately 15% of total
revenues. In addition, approximately 24% of the @any’s total revenues were derived from produassd international customers, none of
whom individually accounted for more than 6% oftoevenues. As of May 29, 2005 Costco Wholesalp@ation represented approximai
18% of total accounts receivable.

During the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 st0 the Company’s top five customers accourdedpproximately 40% of total revenue,
with the top customers, Sam’s Club and Costco WdaddeCorporation from the Food Products Technokegment, each accounting for
approximately 12% of total revenues. In additiggpraximately 25% of the Company'’s total revenuesewerived from product sales to
international customers, none of whom individualtcounted for more than 6% of total revenues. Aday 30, 2004 Costco Wholesale
Corporation and Sam’s Club represented approximatdo and 13%, respectively, of total accountsivatse.

Impairment Of Lon-Lived Asset

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairmehénever events or changes in circumstances tedilsat their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measuyambimparison of the carrying amount of the assétémet undiscounted future cash flow
expected to be generated from the asset. If thedutndiscounted cash flows are not sufficienetmwer the carrying value of the assets, the
assets’ carrying value is adjusted to fair value.

The Company regularly evaluates its longdiassets for indicators of possible impairmentdate, no impairment has been recorded.
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Financial Instrument:

The Company’s financial instruments are primaomposed of marketable debt securities, coneiakterm trade payables and grower
advances, notes receivable and lines of creditigdisas long-term notes receivables and debt ingnis. For short-term instruments, the
historical carrying amount is a reasonable estirohfair value. Fair values for long-term financiastruments not readily marketable are
estimated based upon discounted future cash floywsegailing market interest rates. Based on tlasemptions, management believes the fair
market values of the Company’s financial instrurseare not materially different from their recordedounts as of May 29, 2005.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

The Company maintains allowances for doulatfdounts for estimated losses resulting fromrhaeility of its customers to make required
payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts &ban review of the overall condition of accoueteivable balances and review of
significant past due accounts. The changes in tepany’s allowances for doubtful accounts are suriz@a in the following table.

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and End of
Period Expenses Deductions Period

Year ended October 27, 20
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and sote
receivable $ 1,10¢ $ 1,31¢ $ (1,172 $ 1,24¢
Seven months ended May 25, 2(
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and sote
receivable $ 1,24¢ $ 262 $ (902) $ 607
Year ended May 30, 20(
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and sote
receivable $ 607 $ 27¢€ $ (423 $ 46C
Year ended May 29, 20(
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and a
receivable $ 46C $ 80 $ (182) $ 35¢

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue from product sales is recognized vihere is persuasive evidence that an arrangemists title has transferred, the price is
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is reaably assured. Allowances are established for estidhuncollectible amounts, product retu
and discounts.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordavitie Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Revenue Recognition (a replacement of SAB 101)
(SAB 104). Initial license fees are deferred andaired over the period of the agreement to reveviven a contract exists, the fee is fixed
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably asduNoncancellable, nonrefundable license feesemmgnized over the research and
development period of the agreement, as well atetine of any related supply agreement entereddoteurrently with the license when the
risk associated with commercialization of a prodacgton-substantive at the outset of the arrangémen

Prior to November 1, 1999, the Company recaghnoncancellable, nonrefundable license fegs\anue when received and when all
significant contractual obligations of the Compaelating to the fees had been met. Effective Novemih 1999, the Company changed its
method of accounting for noncancellable, nonrefbielficense fees to recognize such fees over geareh and development period of the
agreement,
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as well as the term of any related supply agreemetred into concurrently with the license whemribk associated with commercializatior
a product is non-substantive at the outset of trengement. The Company believes the change iruatiog principle is preferable based on
guidance provided in SAB 104. The $1.9 million cuative effect of the change in accounting princiglelculated as of November 1, 1999,
was reported as a charge in the year ended Oc28b@000. The cumulative effect was initially reded as deferred revenue and is being
recognized as revenue over the research and devetdgeriod or supply period commitment of the agrent. During the year ended
October 29, 2000 the impact of the change in addogimvas to increase net loss by approximately #dilBon, or $0.10 per share, comprised
of the $1.9 million cumulative effect of the charggedescribed above ($0.12 per share), net of 8804 the related deferred revenue which
was recognized as “recycled” revenue during 20000@& per share). “Recycled” revenue refers to regehat had previously been recognized
as licensing revenue in the Company’s financigkst@&nts, but as a result of the Company’s adoi@AB 104, was reversed through a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting indlgeear 2000 and is now being recognized as reveneethe research and development
period and/or the supply period commitment of theeament, whichever is longer.

During the fiscal years ended May 29, 2003 lsliay 30, 2004, the seven months ended May 25, 2863he fiscal year ended October 27,
2002, $88,000, $88,000, $51,000 and $302,000, c&sply, of the related deferred revenue was retzmghas “recycled” revenue. The
remainder of the related deferred revenue willdmgnized as revenue per fiscal year as follow8;0® per year for 2006 through 2012, and
$21,000 for fiscal year 2013.

Contract revenue for research and develop(ibD) is recorded as earned, based on the perfmeeequirements of the contract. Non-
refundable contract fees for which no further parfance obligations exist, and there is no contiguiivolvement by the Company, are
recognized on the earlier of when the paymentsexr@ived or when collection is assured.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemer
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Secur

The Company records all highly liquid sedestwith three months or less from date of purcti@seaturity as cash equivalents. Short-term
marketable securities consist of high quality coape® debt securities with original maturities ofrmthan three months at the date of purchase
and less than one year from the date of the balsimeet. The Company classifies all debt secunitidsreadily determined market values as
“available for sale” in accordance with SFAS No51Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg8iecuritiesThese investments are
classified as marketable securities on the corsi@itibalance sheet as of May 29, 2005 and aredatifair market value. Unrealized gains
and losses are reported as a component of shaees@duity and were immaterial in fiscal year 2005. Thet of debt securities is adjusted
amortization of premiums and discounts to matufityis amortization is recorded to interest incoRealized gains and losses on the sale of
available-for-sale securities are also recordddtayest income and were immaterial in fiscal y2@05. The cost of securities sold is based on
the specific identification method.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of casing the first-in, first-out method) or market. 8sMay 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 inventories
consisted of (in thousands):

May 29, May 30,
2005 2004
[PRIVATE]
Finished good $ 6,132 $ 7,35(
Raw materials 3,65¢ 3,80¢
Work in proces: 13C 72
Inventory $ 9,91i $ 11,22}

If the cost of the inventories exceeds tegpected market value, provisions are recordecentlyrfor the difference between the cost and
the market value. These provisions are determiasédon specific identification for unusable ineeptand an additional reserve, based on
historical losses, for inventory considered to beable.

Advertising Expens

The Company defers certain costs relatedréztdresponse advertising of Landec Ag's hybridhcgeeds. Such costs are amortized over
periods (less than one year) that correspond tegtimated revenue stream of the advertising agtididvertising expenditures for Landec Ag
and Apio that are not direct-response advertisesremt expensed as incurred. The advertising exgentige Company for fiscal year 2005,
fiscal year 2004, the seven months ended May 283,24nd the fiscal year ended October 27, 200282 million, $2.1 million, $1.4 million
and $1.9 million, respectively. The amount of defdradvertising included in prepaid expenses aheraturrent assets at May 29, 2005 and
May 30, 2004 was $192,000 and $153,000, respegtivel

Notes and Advances Receiva

Apio has made advances to fruit growerstierdevelopment of orchards, to produce growersrmp and harvesting costs and to the buyer
of the fruit processing facility (see Note 3). Notnd advances receivable related to operatingtéetiare for the sourcing of crops for Apio’s
business and notes and advances receivable rédait@eesting activities are for financing transans with third parties. Typically, except for
development advances, these advances are paidtloiifi the growing season (less than one year) fnanvested crops. Development advances
and advances not fully paid during the current gngveeason are converted to interest bearing dhdigs evidenced by contracts and notes
receivable. These notes and advances receivabeaneed by perfected liens on land and/or crogshane terms that range from twelve to
sixty months. Notes receivable are periodicallyieexed (at least quarterly) for collectibility. Agerve is established for any note or advance
deemed to not be fully collectible based upon dgimede of the crop value or the fair value of teewwity for the note or advance.

Related Party Transactior

Apio provides packing, cooling and distrilmgtiservices for farms in which the Chief Executiicer of Apio (the “Apio CEO”) has a
financial interest and purchases produce from tifi@ses. Apio also purchases produce from Apio Fragielated party, for sale to third part
Revenues, cost of product sales and the resultiggipe and the note receivable from advances gt lease payments, crop and harvesting
costs, are classified as related party in the apemying financial statements as of May 29, 2005Mag 30, 2004
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and for the fiscal years ended May 29, 2005 and 8y2004, the seven months ended May 25, 2003hanfiscal year ended October 27,
2002.

Apio leases, for approximately $1.0 milliom @n annual basis, agricultural land that is eitvened, controlled or leased by the Apio CEO.
Apio, in turn, subleases that land at cost to greweho are obligated to deliver product from tlzatd to Apio for value added products. There
is generally no net statement of operations imfméfpio as a result of these leasing activitiesAyib creates a guaranteed source of supp
the value added business. Apio has loss exposutfeedrasing activity to the extent that it is ulestb sublease the land. For fiscal years ended
May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, the seven monthedgMhy 25, 2003 and the fiscal year ended Octobe2@02, the Company subleased all
of the land leased from the Apio CEO and receivddlease income of $1.0 million, $1.3 million, $81®) and $989,000, respectively, whic
substantially equal to the amount the Company feaidase that land for such periods.

Apio’s domestic commodity vegetable busingas sold to Apio Fresh, effective June 30, 2008 ($ete 3). The Apio CEO is a 12.5%
owner in Apio Fresh. During fiscal years 2005 af84 the Company recognized revenues of $238,00(880,000, respectively, from the
sale of products to Apio Fresh and royalty reverafe&233,000 and $257,000, respectively, from theloy Apio Fresh of Apio’s trademarks.
The related accounts receivable is classified lasae party in the accompanying Consolidated Bale8iteets as of May 29, 2005 and May 30,
2004.

In addition, the Apio CEO has a 6% ownershtprest in Apio Cooling LP, a limited partnersimpwhich Apio is the general partner with a
60% ownership interest. Included in minority intras of May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 is $20140@0$214,000, respectively, related to
the Apio CEQO'’s ownership interest.

All related party transactions are monitoneahthly by the Company and approved by the Audin@ittee of the Board of Directors.

Property and Equipmet

Property and equipment are stated at cogteliditures for major improvements are capitalizbéidewepairs and maintenance are charg
expense. Depreciation is expensed on a straightlasis over the estimated useful lives of theaetspe assets, generally three to thirty years
for buildings and leasehold improvements and tkoeseven years for furniture and fixtures, compmjteapitalized software, machinery,
equipment and autos. Leasehold improvements aretiaetbover the lesser of the economic life ofitherovement or the life of the lease on a
straight-line basis.

The Company capitalizes software developrests for internal use in accordance with StateroERbsition 98-1/Accounting for Costs
of Computer Software Developed or Obtained forrimeUse” (“SOP 98-1"). Capitalization of software developrheosts begins in the
application development stage and ends when tle izgslaced into service. The Company amortizel sosts using the straight-line basis
over estimated useful lives. No software developneests were capitalized during the fiscal yeaxeenMay 29, 2005.

Intangible Asset

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Stadsl®oard issued Statements of Financial AccourBitagdards No. 14Business
Combinations and No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible AssdiSFAS 142), effective for fiscal years beginninteaDecember 15, 2001.
Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible asdetsmed to have indefinite lives are no longer éizexd but are subject to annual impairrr
tests in accordance with the Statements. Othemgitiée assets will continue to be amortized oveirtbseful lives. The Company has applied
the new rules on accounting for goodwill and otihéaingible assets beginning in the first quartefisafal year 2002.
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The Company is required under SFAS 142 tevegoodwill and indefinite lived intangible assatdeast annually. During fiscal year
2005, the Company completed its third annual immpairt review. The review is performed by grouping tiet book value of all long-lived
assets for reporting entities, including goodwildaother intangible assets, and comparing thisevidihe related estimated fair value. The
determination of fair value is based on estimatedré discounted cash flows related to these loregilassets. The discount rate used was
based on the risks associated with the reportitie=n The determination of fair value was perfethby management using the services of an
independent appraiser. The review concluded tteatatin value of the reporting entities exceededctneying value of their net assets and thus
no impairment charge was warranted as of May 20520

Deferred Revenu

Cash received in advance of services perfdrfpencipally revenues related to upfront licefises) or shipment of products (primarily
hybrid corn seed) are recognized as a liability erwbrded as deferred revenue. At May 29, 2005;cxppately $97,000 has been recognized
as a liability for advances on future hybrid coeed shipments, $638,000 as a liability for defeli@zhse fee revenues and $372,000 for
advances on ground lease payments from growertheQfeferred license fee amount, approximately FEEDwill be recognized subsequen
fiscal 2006 and has been included in other liabdit

At May 30, 2004, approximately $76,000 hasrbeecognized as a liability for advances on futyderid corn seed shipments, $725,000
liability for deferred license fee revenues and3680 for advances on ground lease payments fromeys.

Minority Interest

In connection with the acquisition of Apicahdec acquired Apio’s 60% general partner intére8pio Cooling, a California limited
partnership. Apio Cooling is included in the comdaled financial statements of Landec for all pgsipresented. The minority interest balance
of $1.5 million at May 29, 2005 and $1.6 millionMay 30, 2004 represents the limited partners'regtin Apio Cooling LP.

Per Share Informatio

Financial Accounting Standards Board issutieghent No. 128Earnings Per Share”(SFAS 128) requires the presentation of basic and
diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings peesharudes any dilutive effects of options, warsaarid convertible securities and is computed
using the weighted average number of common shastamding. Diluted earnings per share reflectgptitential dilution if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercisedmorerted into common stock. Diluted common equivashares consist of convertible
preferred stock and stock options using the trgastack method. Due to the Company’s net loss éfigtal year ended October 27, 2002 net
loss per share includes only weighted average sloartstanding.
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The following table sets forth the computataf diluted net income per share for those perindghich the Company reported net income
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Seven Months
Ended Ended Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25,
2005 2004 2003
Numerator:
Net income $ 5,40z $ 2,90( $ 1,791
Less: Minority interest in income of subsidie (299 (11€) (305)
Net income for diluted net income per sh $ 5,10¢ $ 2,78¢ $ 1,48¢
Denominator
Weighted average shares for basic net income pee 23,70¢ 21,39¢ 20,94¢
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 90¢ 602 10¢
Convertible preferred stoc — 1,55¢ 1,56¢
Total dilutive common share 90¢ 2,16( 1,67¢
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipare 24,614 23,55¢ 22,62¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.21 $ 0.12 $ 0.07

Options to purchase 622,452, 1,370,178 anditl3)24 shares of Common Stock at a weighted asexsgrcise price of $6.78, $6.31 and
$4.91 per share were outstanding during fiscalyyeaded May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 and forékersmonths ended May 25, 2003,
respectively, but were not included in the compatedf diluted net income per share because thiergtexercise price were greater than the
average market price of the Common Stock and, therethe effect would be antidilutive.

The computation of diluted net loss per shiardiscal year ended October 27, 2002 excludesripact of options to
purchase 164,371 shares of common stock and theion of the Convertible Preferred Stock whictswanvertible into 3.2 million shares
of common stock at October 27, 2002, as such irspaotild be antidilutive for this period.

Cost of Sale

The Company includes in cost of sales allcibets related to the sale of products in accorlarnth generally accepted accounting
principles. These costs include the following: naaterials (including produce, seeds and packagdigct labor, overhead (including indirect
labor, depreciation, and facility related costs) ahipping and shipping related costs.

Research and Development Exper

Costs related to both research contract€Camipany-funded research is included in researchdamdlopment expenses. Costs to fulfill
research contracts generally approximate the quoreing revenue. Research and development cospsiararily comprised of salaries and
related benefits, supplies, travel expenses ambcate allocations.

Accounting for Sto-Based Compensatic

The Company accounts for its stock optiompland its employee stock purchase plans in aceoedaith the provisions of the Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 2%¢counting for Stock Issued to Employees.
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The Company has elected to follow APB 25docanting for its employee stock options.

Under APB 25, no compensation expense iggrézed in the Company'’s financial statements unlessexercise price of the Company’s
employee stock options is less than the markeemiche underlying stock on the date of grant.

Pro forma information regarding net incomasg)) and net income (loss) per share has beenmieést as if the Company had accounted for
the Landec stock option plans under the fair vahe¢hod and the Landec Ag stock plan and Apio spdaks under the minimum value method
prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting8¢ad No. 123 (SFAS No. 123). The fair value ofi@pd granted in fiscal years 2005 and
2004, the seven months ended May 25, 2003 and fisea 2002 reported below has been estimateceatdte of grant using a Black-Scholes
options pricing model with the following weightedemage assumptions:

Landec Employee Stock Options

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Seven Months Seven Months Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25, June 2, October 27,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2002
(Unaudited)
Expected life (in years 4.3¢ 6.0z 5.8¢ 5.4(C 5.4%
Risk-free interest rat 3.7(% 3.09% 2.81% 4.41% 4.0(%
Volatility 0.57 0.57 0.8C 0.8¢ 0.8¢
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

The assumptions used for the Landec stodkmpfor the expected life, the risk-free intenege and the dividend yield are the same
assumptions used to determine the fair value oL émelec Ag and Apio options granted in the fisedng ended May 29, 2005 and May 30,
2004, the seven months ended May 25, 2003, anfistta year ended October 27, 2002. The fair védud.andec Ag and Apio options was
estimated using the minimum value method sincestbek of these subsidiaries is not publicly traded.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model ieggithe input of highly subjective assumptionsjuding the expected stock price volatility.
The change in the volatility in the fiscal yearsled May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, the seven manttied May 25, 2003, and fiscal year
ended October 27, 2002 is a result of basing tiegtility on Landec’s stock price.

The weighted average estimated fair valueapidec employee stock options granted at grantrdat&et prices during the fiscal years
ended May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, the sevenhmartded May 25, 2003, and the fiscal year endédb®c27, 2002 was $3.54, $2.89,
$1.63 and $2.48 per share, respectively. No stptkms were granted above or below grant date nariees during the fiscal years ended
May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, the seven monthecgMhy 25, 2003, and the fiscal year ended Oct2BeR002. The weighted average
estimated fair value of shares granted under tmeléa Employee Stock Purchase Plan during the fisgals ended May 29, 2005 and May 30,
2004, the seven months ended May 25, 2003, anfistte¢ year ended October 27, 2002 was $1.98, $&B85 and $1.44 per share,
respectively. The weighted average estimated &iresof options granted under the Landec Ag Stdak Buring the fiscal year ended May
2004, the seven months ended May 25, 2003, aniiktted year ended October 27, 2002 was $0.23, $nti650.30 per share, respectively. No
options were granted under the Landec Ag Stock iRléiscal year 2005. The weighted average estithfdie value of options granted under
Apio Stock Plan during the seven months ended May2Q03, and the fiscal year ended October 27, 2@32%0.52 and $0.72 per share,
respectively. There were no grants under the ApiclSPlan during fiscal years 2005 and 2004.
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For purposes of pro forma disclosures, thienesed fair value of the options is amortized xpense over the options’ vesting period. The
Company'’s pro forma information follows (in thousanexcept per share amounts):

Seven Months Seven Months
Year Ended Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25, June 2, October 27,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2002
(Unaudited)
Net income (loss— as reportes $ 540 $ 2900 $ 1,791 $ 1,50z $ (1,487
Deduct:
Stoclk-based employee expense determi
under SFAS 12 (1,51)) (967) (546) (1,22)) (1,887
Pro forma net income (los $ 3,891 $ 193¢ $ 1,24¢ $ 281 $ (3,379
Basic net income (loss) per sh— as
reportec $ 0.2: $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ (0.10)
Diluted net income (loss) per shi— as
reportec $ 021 $ 01z $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.10)
Basic pro forma net income (loss) per st $ 0.1€ $ 0.07 $ 0.0t $ 0.0C $ (0.27)
Diluted pro forma net income (loss) per sh  $ 0.1t $ 0.06 $ 0.04 $ 0.0C $ (0.21)

The effects on pro forma disclosures of ajpgh5FAS No. 123 are not likely to be representatifithe effects on pro forma disclosures of
future years due to the impact of granting optionfiture periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensatic

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statementl®3 (revised 2004ghare-Based Paymenor SFAS No. 123R, which is a revision of
SFAS No. 123, and supersedes APB Opinion 25. SE28R Tequires all share-based payments to empl@amekdirectors, including grants of
stock options, to be recognized in the statemenpefations based on their fair values. On Aprjl28D5, the SEC adopted a new rule that
amended the compliance dates for SFAS No. 123Rthatlthe Company is now allowed to adopt the newdard effective in the second
quarter of fiscal year 2007. The pro forma disctesipreviously permitted under SFAS No. 123 willoiger be an alternative to financial
statement recognition. As permitted by SFAS No., 188 Company currently accounts for share-basgoheats to employees using APB
Opinion 25’s intrinsic value method and, as suebpgnizes no compensation cost for employee stpt&ns.

Under SFAS 123R, the Company must deterntie@ppropriate fair value model and related assomgpto be used for valuing share-
based payments, the amortization method for congtiemscost and the transition method to be uséldeatiate of adoption. The transition
methods include modified prospective and retroactidoption options. Under the retroactive optiomgrgperiods may be restated either as of
the beginning of the year of adoption or for altipds presented. The modified prospective methqgdires that compensation expense be
recorded for all unvested stock options and rdstilistock at the beginning of the first quarteadéption of SFAS 123R, while the retroactive
method would record compensation expense for aksted stock options and restricted stock beginwittlg the first period restated. The
Company is currently evaluating the requirementSIEAS 123R as well as option valuation methodokbgatated to its stock option plans.
Although the Company has not yet determined théatebdf adoption or the effect of
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adopting SFAS 123R, the Company expects that thptah of SFAS 123R may have a material impacth@en@ompany’s consolidated results
of operations. The impact of adoption of SFAS 123Rnot be predicted at this time because it wipleshel on, among other things, the level
share-based payments granted in the future, thieathetf adoption and the option valuation methodluS&AS 123R also requires the benefits
of tax deductions in excess of recognized comp@mrsabsts to be reported as a financing cash fiather than as an operating cash flow as
required under current literature. This requirenwifitreduce net operating cash flows and increastefinancing cash flows in periods after
adoption.

2. Discontinued Operations

In October 2002, the Company sold Dock Re&in$14.5 million ($10.2 million net of debt natsumed and before expenses). As a result
of this sale, the financial results of Dock Rediase been included in the consolidated statemeop@fations as a discontinued operation for
the year ended October 27, 2002.

The Company recorded a loss of $4.2 milliarttee sale of Dock Resins of which $2.5 million wesorded in fiscal year 2001 and
$1.7 million was recorded in the fourth quartefis€al year 2002 upon the close of the sale. The Veas comprised of a loss on the disposal of
Dock Resins of $3.3 million; transaction costs aadain costs directly related to the sale, inesigdionsulting fees and professional fees of
$1.2 million less $300,000 of operating income frihr@ measurement date of October 18, 2001 to 8podal date of October 24, 2002.
Included in restricted cash at May 25, 2003 is $Irfillion in escrow related to the sale of Dock Resvhich was received from escrow in
January 2004.

3.  Exit of Fruit Processing and Domestic Commodity Vegtable Businesse

In June 2002, the Company sold an idle fsuicessing facility for $2.2 million and recordedain on the sale of $436,000 which is
included in selling, general and administrativeenge for fiscal year 2002 in the Consolidated 8tates of Operations. In December 2002,
Company sold a portion of the fruit processing pment and the rights to the Company’s Great Whitésademark to the purchaser of the
facility for $703,000 resulting in a net gain of%300. The portion of the fruit equipment that was sold is being used in Apio’s value-added
vegetable business.

During fiscal year 2003, management of Lardkstided to exit its domestic vegetable businessder to focus on Apio’s growing value—
added specialty packaging and export businessesCompany recorded a charge of $1.1 million indigear 2003, primarily for the
writedown of inventory that the Company would noder be able to sell as a result of exiting thisitess and the writedown of notes
receivable that the Company determined would belieatible as a result of the Company no longettiooing this business.

Effective June 30, 2003, the Company exitedselling of domestic commodity vegetable prodacts sold certain assets associated with
this business to Apio Fresh LLC (“Apio Fresh”). Agdtresh is owned by a group of entities and pertuatssupply produce to Apio. One of the
owners of Apio Fresh is Apio’s CEO (see Note 1)deinthe terms of the sale, Apio Fresh purchasddinezquipment and carton inventory
from the Company at their net book value of appr@tely $410,000 in exchange for notes receivahlesini monthly installments over
24 months. In addition, Apio will be providing infoation technology service to Apio Fresh for 36 tharin exchange for a note receivable
$235,000. This amount has been recorded to defezkehue and will be recognized ratably over them36nth term of the agreement. In
connection with the sale, Apio Fresh will pay thenfbany an on-going royalty fee ($233,000 and $28Y during fiscal years 2005 and 2004,
respectively) per carton sold for the use of Apla'and names. Apio Fresh and its owners, who aegibwers, also entered into a long-term
supply agreement with the Company to supply prodadgpio for its fresh-cut, value-added business.aiesult of the sale, the Company
recorded during the first quarter of fiscal yea@20a write down of goodwill of $129,000 allocabiethis business.
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4. Licensing Agreement

On September 3, 2004, the Company enteredaintulti-year joint technology and licensing agneat with Chiquita Brands International,
Inc. (“Chiquita”) to provide Landec’s Intelimer peaging technology for Chiquita bananas. The Comgmegan selling its technology products
to Chiquita during the fourth quarter of fiscal y2805. The revenues from this agreement were agemal in fiscal year 2005. In addition, t
two companies entered into a stock purchase agr@emkereby the Company sold to Chiquita 486,1Hreshof Landec Common Stock on
October 14, 2004 for $3.5 million in cash.

5. Sale of Land

On April 12, 2005, the Company sold farm lamthe Santa Maria Valley area for $1.1 millioncash. The sale of land resulted in a gain of
$713,000 which is included in selling, general addhinistrative expenses in the accompanying Cafesteldl Statements of Operations. This
land was acquired earlier in fiscal year 2005 wienCompany foreclosed on the land that was segtinm note receivable due to non payn
of the note.

6. Notes and Advances Receivab

May 29, May 30,
2005 2004

Notes and advances receivable at May 29, 2005 ayd3d, 2004 consisted of the following

thousands)
Note receivable due from buyer of fruit processggipment in annual installments of $98,143 |

interest at prime rate plus 1.0%, with final payingue October 20, 2009, secured by purchased

assets(2 $ 507 $ 60¢
Note receivable from grower, with principal andeirgst at the prime rate plus 3%, payments t

withheld from proceeds derived from crop sales, ttiuseugh October 31, 2005, secured by crop 21€ 17C
Note receivable due from grower in annual instaliteef $33,437 plus interest at prime rate |

1.0%, with final payment due December 31, 2007eonsed(1 117 144
Note receivable due from Apio Fresh (related partyponthly installments of $7,043 includii

interest at 5%, with final payment due June 30,62@@cured by lien and security interes 89 167
Notes receivable due from growers, with principad énterest of prime rate plus 1.75%, secure:

their respective partnership interest in Apio CoglLP. Payments to be deducted from partnership

distributions until notes are paid in full, withlaaces due December 31, 200¢ 34 154
Note receivable due from buyer of fruit processtggipment in annual installments of $2,857 |

interest at prime rate plus 1.0%, with final paytgune October 20, 2009( 15 17
Note receivable due from Apio Fresh (related partyponthly installments of $7,512 includii

interest at 5%, with final payment due June 3052@@cured by lien and security interes 8 95
Note receivable due from grower bearing intere§®at Principal and interest payment of $300,

received June 14, 2004, with final principal angiast payment due September 17, 2004, secur

deed of trust(1 — 43¢
Various notes receivable from growers bearing ter@st on cartons in inventory, payments to be

withheld based on carton usage, secured by cart@miory(1) — 18¢
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May 29, May 30,
2005 2004
Notes receivable due from grower in monthly insta&lhts of $33,333 plus interest at prime rate
1.0%, with final payment due on October 31, 20@¢used by leasehold rights( — 162
Note receivable due from grower with payment du®agtober 20, 2003 of $116,595 plus interes
prime rate plus 1.0%, and final payment of $60,daé October 20, 2004 plus interest at prime rate

plus 1.0% secured by leasehold right — 62
Short term advances and other from Apio Fresht@dlparty)(2) — 14C
Gross notes and advances receiv: 98¢ 2,34¢
Less allowance for doubtful not (45 (195
Net notes and advances receive 941 2,151
Less current portion of notes and advances recleiveteluding related party no (50¢) (1,450
Non-current portion of notes and advances receiv $ 43¢ $ 701

(1) Represents notes and advances receivable assowitliezperating activities
(2) Represents notes and advances receivable assowsitligdvesting activities

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the falhgw(in thousands):

Years of May 29, May 30,
Useful Life 2005 2004
Land and building 15-30 $ 11,05 $ 11,09¢
Leasehold improvemen 3-20 1,177 1,47¢
Computer, capitalized software, machinery, equipraed autc 3-7 20,40: 21,227
Furniture and fixture 5-7 42¢ 52t
Construction in proces 142 27
Gross property and equipme 33,20: 34,34+
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (15,92¢) (16,009
Net property and equipme $ 17,27t $ 18,34!

Depreciation expense for the fiscal yearsedriday 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, the seven matbed May 25, 2003 and the fiscal year
ended October 27, 2002 was $3.4 million, $3.4 milli$1.9 million and $3.3 million, respectively. lgment under capital leases, which is the
security for the related lease obligation, at M8y 2005 and May 30, 2004 was $103,000 and $623r@8pectively. The related accumulated
amortization for equipment under capital lease®3i,000 and $503,000, respectively. Amortizatidatesl to capitalized software was
$742,000, $989,000, $577,000 and $44,000, respégtifor fiscal years ended May 29, 2005, May 34, the seven months ended May 25,
2003 and the fiscal year ended October 27, 2002.

On January 14, 2005, the Company enteredsimtagreement to purchase approximately 155 aéfesitdand from an individual for
$812,500. This amount was paid to the seller thindbg funding of an escrow account on March 23520Bie Company has been actively
seeking buyers for this land and is committed to
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selling the property (see Note 16). Accordingly thnd and related fruit trees and grape vines baea shown as assets held for sale in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

8. Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Stadsl®oard issued SFAS No. 1A8ysiness Combinationsand SFAS No. 14Z0odwill and
Other Intangible Assetseffective for fiscal years beginning after Decemb5, 2001. The Company has applied the new orlesccounting f
goodwill and other intangible assets beginnincghimfirst quarter of fiscal year 2002.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfee fiscal years ended May 29, 2005 and May 8042the seven months ended May 25,
2003, and the fiscal year ended October 27, 2002grtable segment, are as follows (in thousands):

Food Agricultural
Products Seed
Technology Technology Total

Balance as of October 28, 20 $ 19,17¢ $ 2,827 $ 22,00:

Workforce and customer base reclassi 2,18i 1,062 3,24¢

Goodwill acquired during the peric — 482 482
Balance as of October 27, 20 21,36: 4,371 25,73

Goodwill acquired during the peric — 383 383
Balance as of May 25, 20( 21,36: 4,75¢ 26,11¢

Goodwill disposed during the perit (129) — (129
Balance as of May 30, 20( 21,23 4,75¢ 25,987

Goodwill disposed during the peri — — —
Balance as of May 29, 20( $ 21,23 $ 4,75¢ $ 25,987

Information regarding Landec’s other intangiassets is as follows (in thousands):
May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Unamortized Intangible Assel
Trademark $ 13,30( $ (1,730 $11,57C $ 13,30( $ (1,730 $11,57(
Amortized Intangible Asset
Other 434 (376€) 58 617 (532 85
$ 13,73¢ $ 2,10¢ $11,62¢ $ 13,917 $ (2,269 $ 11,65¢

Amortization expense, including amortizatafrother assets, for fiscal years 2005 and 2004$488,000 and $218,000 for Food Products
Technology and $1,000 and $41,000 for Agricult@aéd Technology, respectively. Amortization expeimssuding amortization of other
assets, was $77,000, $259,08141,000 and $199,000 for the fiscal years endeg 2822005 and May 30, 2004, the seven months ended
May 25, 2003, and the fiscal year ended OctobePQ@2, respectively.
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9.  Shareholders Equity

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to oot \per share.

Convertible Preferred Stoc

The Company has authorized two million shafgzreferred stock, and as of May 29, 2005 hasutstanding preferred stock.

Common Stock, Stock Purchase Plans and Stock Opftens

At May 29, 2005, the Company had 5,225,18%imon shares reserved for future issuance underdcastdck option plans (5,063,534) and
employee stock purchase plans (161,653).

The 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (tharégtors’ Plan”) provides that each person who bee®a employee director of the Company,
who has not received a previous grant, shall betgdaa nonstatutory stock option to purchase 20sb@des of Common Stock on the date on
which the optionee first becomes a nonemployeetiref the Company. Thereafter, on the date ofi@mnual meeting of the shareholders
each non-employee director shall be granted artiaddl option to purchase 10,000 shares of Commook3f, on such date, he or she shall
have served on the Company’s Board of Directorafdeast six months prior to the date of such ahmeeting. The exercise price of the
options is the fair market value of the Companyésrinon Stock on the date the options are granteel Difectors’ Plan, as amended in 1998
and 2003, authorizes the issuance of 800,000 shades the plan. Options granted under this plareaercisable and vest upon grant.

The 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan arigtes the Board of Directors to grant non-quatifstock options to employees, including
executive officers, and outside consultants of@Gbenpany. The exercise price of the options wileheal to the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock on the date the optiong@neted. As amended in 1999, 1,500,000 sharesulterazed to be issued under this
plan. Options are generally exercisable upon vgstid generally vest ratably over four years ardsabject to repurchase if exercised before
being vested.

In November 1996, the Company’s Board of Etives approved the 1996 Stock Option Plan. Undsrtlan, the Board of Directors of
Landec may grant stock purchase rights, incentiveksoptions or non-statutory stock options to Leméxecutives. The exercise price of the
stock purchase rights, incentive stock optionsrammstatutory stock options may be no less tha®dd06bthe fair market value of Landec’s
Common Stock on the date the options are granteel plan, as amended, authorizes the issuance@d,2D shares of Landec Common Si
under the plan. Options generally are exercisaptswesting, generally vest ratably over four yeard are subject to repurchase if exercised
before being vested.

On April 15, 2005, the Board of Directorsth® Company approved the accelerated vesting ohaksted options previously granted to
employees under the Company’s 1996 Stock OptionsRleollectively, the “Plans”) which have an exsecprice greater than $6.25 (the
“Acceleration”) the closing price of the CompanZemmon Stock on April 15, 2005.

Pursuant to the Acceleration, options granteder the Plans to purchase 192,026 shares @fdhgany’s common stock that would
otherwise have vested at various times within #e three years became fully vested. As a resuli@Board’s decision to approve the
Acceleration, each option agreement underlyingomgtisubject to the Acceleration is deemed to bendetkto reflect the Acceleration as of
effective date, but all other terms and conditioheach such option agreement remains in full feme effect. On the date of the Acceleration
no compensation expense was recorded becausertheflet value of the Company’s Common Stock welew the exercise price of the
options that were accelerated.

-68-




Table of Contents

LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

In October 2000, the Company’s Board of Divex approved the New Executive Stock Option Plander this plan, the Board of Directors
may grant non-statutory stock options to officerkandec or officers of Apio or Landec Ag whose doyment with each of those companies
began after October 24, 2000. The exercise priteeohon-statutory stock options may be no less 1% and 85%, for named executives
and non-named executives, respectively, of thenfiairket value of Landec’s Common Stock on the ttaeoptions are granted. Options
generally are exercisable upon vesting, generabf xatably over four years and are subject toradfase if exercised before being vested.
210,000 shares are authorized to be issued undqulém.

Activity under all Landec Stock Option Pldass follows:

Outstanding Options

Weighted
Options Average
Available for Number of Exercise
Grant Shares Price
Balance at October 28, 20 1,404,26! 4,010,76! $ 4.9
Options grante: (430,739 430,73¢ $ 3.44
Options exercise — (71,579 $ 0.8¢€
Options forfeitec 334,58: (334,58) $ 4.91
Expired in 1988 Pla (85,760 — —
Balance at October 27, 20 1,222,35I 4,035,35I $ 4.8t
Options grante: (375,000 375,00( $ 2.34
Options exercise — (23,600 $ 0.6€
Options forfeitec 332,50¢ (332,501 $ b5.0¢€
Balance at May 25, 20( 1,179,85! 4,054,24. $ 4.6
Additional shares reserve 400,00( —
Options grante (161,000 161,00( $ 5.2
Options exercise — (152,659 $ 2.6¢
Options forfeitec 139,82 (139,829 $ 477
Expired in 1988 Pla (20,139 —
Balance at May 30, 20( 1,538,54! 3,922,76. $ 4.81
Options grante: (625,000 625,00( $ 6.54
Options exercise — (397,779 $ 3.8C
Options forfeitec 27,49: (27,499 $ 4.9¢
Balance at May 29, 20( 941,03t 4,122,49! $ b5.0¢

At May 29, 2005, May 30, 2004, May 25, 2008 ®ctober 27, 2002, options to purchase 3,6363,264,455 3,161,710, and 3,249,878
of Landec’s Common Stock were vested, respectityoptions have been exercised prior to beingedest
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The following tables summarize informatioroabLandec options outstanding and exercisableat 29, 2005.

Options Outstanding

Weighted

Average Weighted

Contractual Average

Number of Life Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Shares (In Years) Price
$0.86- $3.180 548,72¢ 6.61 2.4¢
$3.25- $3.400 428,60( 5.3C 3.3¢
$3.47- $4.938 448,25¢ 5.61 4.3(C
$5.00- $5.000 755,19 2.5¢ 5.0C
$5.25- $6.130 434,70( 6.3¢ 6.0:
$6.25- $6.250 865,00( 0.5z 6.2t
$6.45- $7.625 642,02: 6.9 6.8t
$0.86- $7.625 4,122,491 4.3¢ 5.0¢
Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average

Number of Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Price

$0.86- $3.180 433,01¢ 2.5z
$3.25- $3.400 420,47 3.3¢
$3.47- $4.938 405,70: 4.3€
$5.00- $5.000 755,19: 5.0C
$5.25- $6.130 114,70( 5.82
$6.25- $6.250 865,00( 6.2
$6.45- $7.625 642,02; 6.8t
$0.86- $7.625 3,636,10! 5.1C

Employee Stock Purchase Pldine Company has an employee stock purchase plaihylrmits eligible employees to purchase Common
Stock, which may not exceed 10% of an employeeispmsation, at a price equal to the lower of 85%heffair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock at the beginning of theroffeperiod or on the purchase date. As of May22®5, 813,347 shares have been
issued under the Purchase Plan.

Landec Ag Stock Platinder the 1996 Landec Ag Stock Plan, the Boardiédfors of Landec Ag may grant stock purchasetsigh
incentive stock options or non-statutory stock apito employees and outside consultants. Theieggutce of the stock purchase rights,
incentive stock options and non-statutory stockonst may be no less than 85%, 100% and 85%, regelyctof the fair market value of
Landec Ag’'s common stock as determined by Landés Bgard of Directors. 2,000,000 shares are autkdrio be issued under this plan.
Options generally are exercisable upon vestinggamerally vest ratably over four years and areesuthip repurchase if exercised before being
vested.
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The following table summarizes activity unttlee Landec Ag Stock Option.

Qutstanding Options

Weighted

Average

Options Number of Exercise

Available Shares Price

Balance at October 28, 20 293,61¢ 1,580,301 $ 0.3t
Options grante: (20,000 20,00( $ 1.0C
Options exercise — (200,000) $ 0.1C
Options forfeitec 10,53( (10,530 $ 0.4:
Balance at October 27, 20 284,14¢ 1,389,77 $ 0.3¢
Options grante: (57,000 57,00( $ 1.0C
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 1,77( (1,770 $ 1.0C
Balance at May 25, 20( 228,91¢ 1,445,001 $ 041
Options grante: (10,000 10,00( $ 1.5
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 195,15( (195,150 $ 0.5C
Balance at May 30, 20( 414,06¢ 1,259,85! $ 041
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — (503,89)) $ 0.1C
Options forfeitec 165,85! (165,859 $ 1.0C
Balance at May 29, 20( 579,92: 590,10( $ 0.71

At May 29, 2005, options to purchase 566 4i88res with an average exercise price of $0.78hmme of Landec Ag’s common stock were
vested. For the options outstanding at May 29, 280300 options were granted with an exerciseepfc$0.10, 131,900 options were granted
with an exercise price of $0.20 and 384,200 weaatgd with an exercise price of $1.00. As of May Z®5, the Company has
1,171,023 common shares reserved for future isguamder the Landec Ag stock option plan.

Apio Stock Planln connection with the acquisition of Apio, the Bdaf Directors of Landec authorized the establishtrof the 1999 Apio
Stock Option Plan (“1999 Plan”). Under the 1999Pthe Board of Directors of Apio may grant inceatstock options or non-statutory stock
options to employees and outside consultants. Xaecise price of the incentive stock options and-astatutory stock options may be no less
than 100% and 85%, respectively, of the fair maviedtie of Apio’s common stock as determined by Ap®oard of Directors. Five million
shares were authorized to be issued under this lations were exercisable upon vesting and gegearasted ratably over four years and w
subject to repurchase if exercised before beintpded\s of May 29, 2005, options for two millionasks had been granted at an exercise price
of $2.10 per share.

In May 2000, the 1999 Plan was terminatetleRisting grants remain outstanding, and no fugreats will be made from the plan.
Concurrently, the 2000 Apio Stock Option Plan (“@@®an”) was authorized by Apio’s Board of Direcowhich authorized the issuance of
two million shares under the same terms and canditas the 1999 Plan. As of May 29, 2005, option827,322 shares are outstanding under
the 2000 Plan at an exercise price of $2.10 peesha
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The following table summarizes activity untlee Apio Stock Option Plan.

Qutstanding Options

Weighted

Average

Options Number of Exercise

Available Shares Price

Balance at October 28, 20 1,212,52: 2,786,89! $ 2.1C
Options grante: (75,000 75,00( $ 2.1C
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 73,25 (73,257 $ 2.1C
Balance at October 27, 20 1,210,77 2,788,64. $ 2.1
Options grante: (100,001) 100,00 $ 2.1C
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 373,01¢ (373,019 $ 2.1C
Balance at May 25, 20( 1,483,79: 2,515,62! $ 2.1
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — (49,16¢) $ 2.1C
Options forfeitec 79,68( (79,68() $ 2.1C
Balance at May 30, 20( 1,563,47: 2,386,77 $ 2.1
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 59,45’ (59,457 $ 2.1C
Balance at May 29, 20( 1,622,92! 2,327,32; $ 2.1C

At May 29, 2005, options to purchase 2,284 &fares of Apio common stock were vested. As of R 2005, the Company has
3,950,251 common shares reserved for future isguamder the Apio stock option plans.

10. Debt
Revolving deb

On August 20, 2003, Apio entered into a $itian revolving line of credit (borrowings are Ebon Apio’s accounts receivable levels)
and a $3.0 million equipment line of credit (tharfés”) with Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. AtWwiz0, 2004, $5.3 million was outstanding
under these Lines.

On September 1, 2004, Apio entered into Wills Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) a new $10 kwih revolving line of credit that
expires on August 31, 2006, a 12-month, $4.8 nnilkguipment line of credit, and a 36-month, $1.Rioni term note for equipment purchased
under the equipment line of credit with Wells FaRysiness Credit (collectively the “Loan Agreemgn@utstanding amounts under the Loan
Agreement bear interest at either the prime rate®LIBOR adjustable rate plus 2.25% (5.375% ay @9, 2005). The Loan Agreement
contains certain restrictive covenants, which resgiApio to meet certain financial tests, includimgnimum levels of net income, maximum
leverage ratio, minimum net worth and maximum ed@kpenditures. Landec has pledged substantihibf the assets of Apio to secure the
lines with Wells Fargo. Concurrently with enteriimgo this agreement with Wells Fargo, the Compaaig pff and terminated its lines of credit
with Wells Fargo Business Credit. At May 29, 2006,amounts were outstanding under the revolving dihcredit or the equipment line of
credit. Apio has been in compliance with all loamvenants in the Loan Agreement since the incemtfdhis loan.
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Landec Ag has a revolving line of credit whallows for borrowings of up to $7.5 million, badsen Landec Ag’s inventory levels. The
interest rate on the revolving line of credit is frime rate plus 0.375 (6.375% at May 29, 200&8hdec has pledged substantially all of the
assets of Landec Ag to secure the line of crediMAy 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, no amounts wetstanding under this revolving line of
credit.

The weighted average interest rate on thep@myis lines of credit was 5.38%, 5.51% and 5.46%4lie fiscal year ended May 30, 2004,
the seven months ended May 25, 2003 and for thelfigear ended October 27, 2002, respectively. iNoumts were outstanding under the
Company'’s lines of credit as of May 29, 2005.

In addition, under a $1.0 million equipmene| $600,000 of equipment was purchased by LaAdeand in June 2001, that $600,000 was
converted into a four-year, 8% per annum term nlaseof May 30, 2004, $178,000, was outstanding oitde term note, this note was repaid
during fiscal year 2005.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following {frousands):

May 29, May 30,
2005 2004
Note payable of Apio to a commercial finance conypaue in monthly installments of approximat
$11,000 including interest at 5.12% with final pamrhdue December 20: $  1,40( $ 1,471
Note payable of Apio to a bank; due in monthly afishents of $33,333 including interest at 4.9
with final payment due August 20( 934 —
Note payable of Apio to a bank; due in monthly atishents of approximately $7,000 includi
interest at 5.64% with final payment due Decemlifdis: 67t 724
Capitalized lease obligations with interest rategying from 5.90% to 19.45 79 122
Contractual obligation to former owners of Apiojedn annual installments of $1,235,000 throl
January 2, 200 — 1,132
Various notes payable with interest rates rangiomf8.00% to 9.389 — 23C
3,08¢ 3,67¢
Less current portio (54¢) (1,508
$ 254 $ 2,174

Maturities of long-term debt, including oldigpns under capital lease agreements, for eaatpyesented are as follows (in thousands):

FY 2006 $ 54¢
FY 2007 544
FY 2008 28¢€
FY 2009 13¢
FY 2010 143
Thereaftel 1,42¢

$ 3,08¢

The contractual obligation of $1.2 millionfarmer shareholders of Apio is non-interest beend accordingly has been discounted at
Apio’s incremental borrowing rate resulting in aabunted value of $1.1 million at May 30, 2004Jume 2001, under provisions of the
acquisition agreement, because Landec’s
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average closing stock price was below $6.00 du¥imge 2001, the Company increased its obligatiaghadormer owners of Apio by $700,000
($591,000 on a discounted basis), $175,000 of wivieh outstanding at May 30, 2004 and is includetién$1.2 million referenced above.

The term debt and revolving note agreememnsains various financial covenants including miaimfixed coverage ratio, minimum
current ratio, minimum adjusted net worth and maximeverage ratios.

Landec has pledged substantially all of Apiahd Landec Ag’s assets to secure their term debt.

11. Income Taxes

The Company has recorded an income tax lieénefie amount of $45,000 for the fiscal year ehliay 29, 2005, which is included in
other (expense)/income in the accompanying CoretelitiStatements of Operations. The Company recamé@tcome tax provision in the
amount of $50,000 for the year ended May 30, 28@4provision was recorded for the seven months @hiey 25, 2003 and the year ended
October 27, 2002.

The actual provision for income taxes diffemsn the statutory U.S. federal income tax ratéodlews (in thousands):

Seven Months

Year Ended Year Ended Ended Year Ended
May 29, May 30, May 25, October 27,
2005 2004 2003 2002

Provision at U.S. statutory rate of 3¢ $ 1,83¢ $ 1,00z $ 614 $ (50€)
State income taxes, net of federal ber 31t 172 114 (85)
Change in valuation allowan: (2,017 (703) (66€) 564
Tax credit carryforward (200 (396 (49 —
Other 18 (26) (13) 27
Total $ (45 $ 50 $ — $ —

As of May 29, 2005, the Company had fedemndl state net operating loss carryforwards of apgprately $46.9 million and $12.5 million,
respectively. These losses expire in differentquisithrough 2025, if not utilized. The Company dlad federal and state tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $1.5 million and $nillion, respectively. The research and developntex credit carryforwards expire in
different periods through 2025 for federal purposed have an unlimited carryforward period forefatrposes. The other state tax credit
carryforwards expire in different periods througgcél year 2013.

Utilization of the net operating losses aretits may be subject to a substantial annualditioih due to the ownership change limitations
provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. arvaual limitation may result in the expiration @ftmperating losses and credits before
utilization.
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Significant components of the Company’s defétax assets are as follows (in thousands):

May 29, May 30,
2005 2004

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 16,70( $ 12,70(

Research and AMT credit carryforwai 2,30( 2,10(

Capitalized research and developrmr 10C 10C

Other— net (3,200 30C
Net deferred tax asse 15,90( 15,20(
Valuation allowanct (15,900 (15,200
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

Included in the other net deferred tax asseapproximately $4.2 million of deferred tax lities that primarily relate to book/tax basis
differences in fixed assets and intangibles.

Due to the Company’s limited earnings histéling net deferred tax asset has been fully offget valuation allowance. The change in the
valuation allowance was an increase of $700,0@@cacase of $1.3 million, an increase of $1.0 anilliand a decrease of $400,000 for the
fiscal years ended May 29, 2005 and May 30, 20@4thie seven months ended May 25, 2003 and fdigbal year October 27, 2002,
respectively. Approximately $400,000 of the valaatallowance for deferred tax assets as of May@05 relates to benefits of stock option
deductions which, when recognized, will be allodadeectly to contributed capital.

12. Commitments and Contingencie:

Operating Lease

Landec leases facilities and equipment ungerating lease agreements with various terms andittons, which expire at various dates
through 2010. The approximate future minimum lgzegments under these operating leases, excludingaiad leases, at May 29, 2005 are as
follows (in thousands):

Amount
FY 2006 $ 60€
FY 2007 612
FY 2008 324
FY 2009 281
FY 2010 16¢€
$ 1,991

Rent expense for operating leases, includingth to month arrangements was $1.6 million ferftecal year ended May 29, 2005,
$1.4 million for the fiscal year ended May 30, 20$883,000 for the seven months ended May 25, 200351.3 million for the fiscal year
ended October 27, 2002.
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Land Leases

Landec, through its Apio subsidiary, alscskafarmland under various non-cancelable leag@srexthrough October 2006. Landec
subleases substantially all of the farmland to gn®won an annual basis. The subleases are germewallgancelable and expire through October
2006. The approximate future minimum leases antkagb amounts receivable under farmland leasespt29, 2005 are as follows (in
thousands):

Minimum Sublease
Lease Rents
Payments Receivable Net
FY 2006 $ 612 $ (639 $(23)
FY 2007 207 (220 (13

$ 81¢ $ (859) $ (36)

Rent expense for land leases net of sublesss, including month to month arrangements wdsGE® for the fiscal year ended May 29,
2005, $16,000 for the fiscal year ended May 3042®025,000 for the seven months ended May 25, 28835378,000 for the fiscal year
ended October 27, 2002.

Employment Agreement

Landec has entered into employment agreemétiicertain key employees. These agreements gedoir these employees to receive
incentive bonuses based on the financial performahcertain divisions in addition to their annbake salaries. The accrued incentive bor
amounted to $890,000 at May 29, 2005 and $197,00ag 30, 2004.

Licensing Agreemen

In fiscal year 2001, the Company entered amt@agreement for the exclusive worldwide rightstirket grapes under certain brand names.
Under the terms of the amended agreement (amendittal year 2004), the Company is obligated t&enannual payments of $100,000 for
fiscal years 2005 through 2012.

Purchase Commitment

At May 29, 2005, the Company was committeguochase $816,000 of produce during fiscal ye@620 accordance with contractual
terms.

13. Employee Savings and Investment Plar
The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan whiclvalable to substantially all of the Company’s eayges.

Landec’s Corporate Plan, which is availablalt Landec employees (“Landec Plan”), allows isgréints to contribute from 1% to 50% of
their salaries, up to the Internal Revenue Serf{R8) limitation into designated investment funBeginning in fiscal year 2001, the Company
amended the plan so that it contributes an amayudleéo 50% of the participants’ contribution up38 of the participants’ salary. In May
2003, the Company again amended the plan to mak€dimpanys matching contribution to the plan on behalf atipgpants voluntary, and
make employees participation in the plan volunt&articipants are at all times fully vested in theintributions. The Company’s contribution
vests over a four-year period at a rate of 25%ypar. The Company retains the right, by actiorhefBoard of Directors, to amend, modify, or
terminate the plan. For the fiscal years ended R&y005 and May 30, 2004, the seven months endsd2d, 2003 and for the fiscal year
ended October 27, 2002, the Company contributed $29, $287,000$171,000 and $126,000, respectively, to the Lailac.
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The Company had also sponsored a 401(k)aaiable to substantially all of Apio’s employdéapio Plan”). The plan’s participants
could contribute from 1% to 50% of their salary,taghe IRS limitation into designated investmamtds. Apio, in turn, contributed an amot
as required by the plan, which was a portion ofptaeicipant’s contributions. Participants werathtimes fully vested in their contributions.
Apio’s contribution vested over a six-year periadjimning in year two at a rate of 20% per yeaDé&tember 2002, the Apio Plan was merged
into the Landec Plan and all funds from the ApiarPlvere transferred into the Landec Plan at tha.tin the seven months ended May 25,
2003, and the fiscal year ended October 27, 2091 dontributed $36,000 and $320,000, respectivelyhe Apio Plan.

14. Business Segment Reportin

Landec operates in two business segment&dbe Products Technology segment and the Agrilleed Technology segment. The
Food Products Technology segment markets and geokisice and specialty packaged fresh-cut veget#tid¢sncorporate the Intelimer
packaging technology for the fresh-cut and whotedpce industry through its Apio subsidiary. The idgitural Seed Technology segment
markets and distributes hybrid seed corn to thaifeg industry and is selling seed coatings usingdes’s proprietary Intelimer polymers
through Landec Ag and other seed companies. ThedCate and Other segment includes the operations the Company’s Technology
Licensing/ Research and Development business aporate operating expenses. The Food Products dethnand Agricultural Seed
Technology segments include charges for corpoeatéces allocated from the Corporate and Other saginCorporate and Other amounts
include non-core operating activities, corporaterafing costs and net interest expense. Virtudligfahe Company’s international sales are to
Asia. Operations and identifiable assets by busisegment consisted of the following (in thousands)

Food Products Agricultural Seed Corporate and
Technology Technology Other Total

Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 20!

Net sales $ 179,15 $ 25,64¢ $ 42¢ $205,23(
International sale $ 48,77 $ — $ — $ 48,77
Gross profil $ 22,19t $ 9,44¢ $ 32¢ $ 31,97:
Net income (loss $ 5,621 $ (316) $ 97 $ 5,40:
Identifiable asset $ 72,51! $ 22,71: $ 4,85: $100,07!
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,89( $ 472 $ 10k $ 3,461
Capital expenditure $ 2,70¢ $ 42¢€ $ 98 $ 3,23¢
Interest incom: $ 13C $ 57 $ 27 $ 214
Interest expens $ 30t $ 10¢ $ — $ 414
Income tax expense (benei $ — $ — $ — $ —
Fiscal Year Ended May 30, 20!

Net sales $ 167,88t $ 23,64 $ 56& $192,09:
International sale $ 48,67¢ $ — $ — $ 48,67¢
Gross profil $ 20,23 $ 9,08¢ $ 474 $ 29,79
Net income (loss $ 3,23 $ (247) $ 93 $ 2,90(
Identifiable asset $ 72,08t¢ $ 19,72: $ 1,197 $ 93,00°
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 3,11C $ 484 $ 111 $ 3,70¢
Capital expenditure $ 2,997 $ 32( $ 76 $ 3,39¢
Interest incom $ 14¢ $ 9 $ 7 $ 164
Interest expens $ 682 $ 12¢ $ — $ 811
Income tax expense (benel $ — $ — $ — $ —

-77-




Table of Contents

LANDEC CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Food Products Agricultural Seed
Technology Technology

Seven Months Ended May 25, 2C

Net sales $ 90,43! $ 21,04:
International sale $ 17,94¢ $ —
Gross profil $ 11,33¢ $ 8,58¢
Net income (loss $ (1,672 $ 3,197
Identifiable asset $ 76,66¢ $ 17,99«
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 1,681 $ 271
Capital expenditure $ 98¢ $ 222
Interest incom $ 12¢ $ 2
Interest expens $ 56¢ $ 74
Income tax expense (benel $ — $ —
Fiscal Year Ended October 27, 2(

Net sales $ 160,59¢ $ 19,43¢
International sale $ 36,27 $ —
Gross profil $ 20,18: $ 8,031
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (2,139 $ (714
Identifiable asset $ 65,48¢ $ 15,40¢
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,822 $ 507
Capital expenditure $ 1,774 $ 634
Interest incom: $ 184 $ 46
Interest expens $ 1,44( $ 10¢
Income tax expense (benel $ — $ —

15. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information (unaudited)

Corporate and

Other Total
$ 78€ $112,25¢
$ — $ 17,94¢
$ 78€ $ 20,70«
$ 26€ $ 1,791
$ 2,22¢ $ 96,88
$ 77 $ 2,041
$ 26 $ 1,23¢
$ 14 $ 144
$ — $ 64z
$ — $ —
$ 3,12( $183,15!
$ — $ 36,27
$ 3,12( $ 31,34(
$ 3,04¢ $ 201
$ 26,90¢ $107,80:
$ 171 $ 3,50(
$ 13¢€ $ 2,54¢
$ 17 $ 247
$ 2 $ 1,551
$ — $ —

The following is a summary of the unauditeghderly results of operations for fiscal years2@0d 2004 and the seven months ended

May 25, 2003 (in thousands, except for per shareuais):

FY 2005 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2005
Revenue! $ 46,85¢ $ 50,67: $ 51,53: $ 56,17: $205,23(
Gross profil $ 5,741 $ 5,997 $ 9,24: $ 10,99: $ 31,97:
Net income (loss $ (692) $ (80€) $ 2,29: $ 4,60¢ $ 5,402
Basic amounts per common she

Net income/(loss) per basic shi $ (0.03) $ (0.03) $ 0.1 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2
Diluted amounts per common sha

Net income/(loss) per diluted she $ (0.09) $ (0.03) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.17 $ 0.21
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FY 2004 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2004
Revenue! $ 41,80: $ 43,26" $ 48,587 $ 58,437 $192,009:
Gross profil $ 6,08: $ 5,03( $ 7,445 $ 11,23: $ 29,79:
Net income (loss $ (624) $ (1,587 $ 724 $ 4,38: $ 2,90(
Basic amounts per common she
Net income/(loss) per basic shi $ (0.09) $ (0.0¢) $ 0.0z $ 0.2C $ 0.11
Diluted amounts per common sha
Net income/(loss) per diluted sh: $ (0.03) $ (0.0¢) $ 0.0: $ 0.17 $ 0.1Z
Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended

January 26, April 27,
Seven Months Ended May 25, 2003 2003 2003
Revenue! $ 41,12t $ 56,84:
Gross profil $ 5,72¢ $ 12,73¢
Net income (loss $ (2,036 $ 4,67
Net income/(loss) per basic shi $ (0.10) $ 0.2z
Net income/(loss) per diluted sh: $ (0.10 $ 0.1¢

16. Subsequent Event:

On June 29, 2005, the Company entered ingagement to purchase the assets of Heartlandddylbmc. Under the agreement, the
Company will acquire the assets of Heartland Hyhnwhich is based in Dassel, MN, for $6.0 millidime consideration at closing will consist
of approximately 150,000 shares of Landec CommonkStalued at approximately $1.0 million and cabB28 million. The remaining
$1.2 million is in the form of a future cash eaut-based on Heartland Hybrids achieving certaiarfoial targets for fiscal years 2006 and
2007. The acquisition is expected to close befoeesnd of August 2005.

On January 14, 2005, the Company enteredsimtagreement to purchase approximately 155 aéfesitdand from an individual for
$812,500. This amount was paid to the seller thinadbg funding of an escrow account on March 235200 a separate unrelated transaction,
on January 31, 2005, the Company entered into sreamnt to sell approximately 45 acres of grape taran individual for $452,500. The
Company received $28,000 in cash and promissossneteivable for $424,500, $56,000 of which is lsy®ecember 31, 2005 and the
remainder to be paid from net profits from the sdléhe grapes with a final payment due on DecerBieP009. Interest accrues at the prime
rate and is payable quarterly. The sale is expdotetbse during the Company’s second quartersahfiyear 2006 upon the official recording
of a Lot Line Adjustment by the county recordeiFoésno County and the subsequent transfer of Title.Company has an accepted offer from
an individual to purchase the remaining acreag&®#,000, net of sales commissions. The saleeofeinaining acreage is also expected to
close during the Company’s second quarter of figeat 2006. The cost of the land and the fruitlh23nillion is recorded as an asset held for
sale in the accompanying Consolidated Balance ShEké Company estimates that these sales willtriesa gain.
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Exhibit
Number: Exhibit Title
2.3 Form of Agreement and Plan Merger and Purchaseehgeeat by and among the Registrant, Apio, Inc. ateted
companies and each of the respective shareholderd ds of November 29, 1999, incorporated hengin b
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Regist’'s Current Report on Forn-K dated December 2, 19¢
24 Stock Purchase Agreement between The Lubrizol Gatjpm and the Registrant dated as of October @422
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datetbBer 24,
2002.
25 Purchase Agreement between the Registrant and#pih LLC and the Growers listed therein, dateof dsily 3,
2003, incorporated herein by reference to ExhiHditta the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8alked July 3,
2003.
31 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, incatpdrherein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Regit's
Current Report on Formr-K dated May 19, 200¢
3.2 Ninth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatid Registrant, incorporated herein by referei
Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Stagetmon Form S-1 (File No. 33-80723) declared effiecbn
February 12, 199¢
3.3 Certificate of Determination of Series A Prefer@&dck, incorporated herein by reference to ExI8t8tto the
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1€
34 Certificate of Determination of Series B Prefer&dck, incorporated herein by reference to ExtaHitto the
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K dated October 25, 200
4.1* Series B Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement betthedRegistrant and the Seahawk Ranch Irrevocabist,
dated as of October 24, 2001, incorporated hengieference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’'s @atrReport on
Form &K dated October 25, 200
10.1+ Form of Indemnification Agreemer
10.3* 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amendedfprnaf Subscription Agreement, incorporated heisjin
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s ArriRi@port on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endeddber 31,
1996.
10.5* Form of Option Agreement for 1995 Direct’ Stock Option Plan, incorporated herein by referdndexhibit 10.£
to the Registra’'s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1¢
10.6 Industrial Real Estate Lease dated March 1, 1988dmn the Registrant and Wayne R. Brown & Bibbitevin,
Trustees of the Wayne R. Brown & Bibbits Brown lngiTrust dated December 30, 1987, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Riegt®on Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-80723)lared
effective on February 12, 19¢
10.15* 1996 Landec Ag Stock Option Plan and form of Op#h@meements, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 to the Registré s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1¢
10.16* Form of Option Agreement for the 1996 MExecutive Stock Option Plan, as amended, incorpdraérein by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Aadrireport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endedoDer 31,
1996.
10.17* 1996 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan, incatgd herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 29, 20!
10.18* Form of Option Agreement for 1996 Amended and Redt&tock Option Plan, incorporated herein by esfee tc

Exhibit 10.17 to the Registré s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 19
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Exhibit
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10.19 Technology License Agreement between Bissell Heatth Corporation and the Registrant, dated as giisi28,
1997, incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBi21o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8ated
August 28, 1997

10.24* Employment Agreement between the Registrant antdiis Tompkins dated as of November 29, 1!
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10@#he Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foe fiscal
year ended October 31, 19¢

10.25* Stock Option Agreement between the Registrant antddias Tompkins dated as of November 29, 1999,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 102t Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal
year ended October 31, 19¢

10.26* 1999 Apio, Inc. Stock Option Plan and form of Optidgreement, incorporated herein by referenc
Exhibit 10.26 to the Registré's Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1€

10.28* 2000 Apio, Inc. Stock Option Plan and form of Optiégreement, incorporated herein by referenc
Exhibit 10.28 to the Registre's Annual Report on Form -K filed for the fiscal year ended October 29, 2C

10.29 Credit Agreement between Landec Ag, Inc. and Oldddal Bank dated as of June 5, 2000, as amel
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10@2¢he Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal
year ended October 29, 20(

10.30* New Executive Stock Option Plan, incorporated hebsi reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Regis's Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended October 29, 2C

10.35* 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan, as amendeiyrporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3thé&
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 28, 2C

10.40 Amendment No. 2 to the Purchase Agreement betweeRegistrant and Apio, Inc. dated December 172¢
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10aléhe Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foe fiscal
year ended October 27, 20(

10.45* Employment Agreement between the Registrant angt Gabteele dated as of April 5, 2003, incorpordtetkin
by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Registrantisa@erly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quageded
April 27, 2003.

10.46 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of Mg 2003, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.46 to the Registre's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 27, 20

10.47 Non-Competition Agreement between the Registrant and Rpesh LLC and the Growers listed therein, date
of July 3, 2003, incorporated herein by referemcExhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s Current Reportramm 8-K
dated July 3, 200!

10.48 Supply Agreement between the Registrant and ApgstirtLC and the Growers listed therein, dated asilyf3,
2003, incorporated herein by reference to Exhiliitta the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8alked July 3,
2003.

10.50 Credit and Security Agreement between Apio, Incl @rells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. dated as ofustgo0,
2003, incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBib to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 1faithe
seven month period ended May 25, 2C

1051 Credit and Security Agreement between Cal Ex Tigdlompany and Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inedlat
of August 20, 2003, incorporated herein by refeeetacExhibit 10.51 to the Registrant’s Annual Re:mor
Form 1(-K for the seven month period ended May 25, 2!

10.53 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended,rpam@ted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.53 # th
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2|

10.54+ 2006 Cash Bonus Pla

10.55+ Director Compensation Schedu
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Exhibit
Number: Exhibit Title
10.56+ Form of Notice regarding acceleration of stock @ptvesting
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registre
Subsidiary State of Incorporation
Landec Ag, Inc. Delaware
Apio, Inc. Delaware
23.1+ Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
241+ Power of Attorney— See page 8
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z

*  Represents a management contract or compensataryphrrangement required to be filed as an extalihis report pursuant to item
(c) of Form 1-K.

+ Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of section 185¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rlegistrant has duly caused this Report on

Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgsd, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of MeRark, State of California, on August 2,
2005.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinne

Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President of Finance and Administrat
and Chief Financial Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persn whose signature appears below hereby constitutasnd appoints
Gary T. Steele and Gregory S. Skinner, and each tfiem, as his attorney-in-fact, with full power of sibstitution, for him in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to thReport on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exbits thereto and other documents
in connection therewith, with the Securities and Eghange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirmingur signatures as they may be
signed by our said attorney to any and all amendmaes to said Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exa@mnge Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has beesigned by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary T. Steel President and Chief Executive Officer ¢ August 2, 200:
Gary T. Steels Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Gregory S. Skinng Vice President of Finance and Administrat August 2, 200:
Gregory S. Skinner and Chief Financial Offl_cer (P(|nC|paI Financial
gory ! and Accounting Officer
/sl Nicholas Tompkins Chief Executive Officer of Apio, Inc., Senior August 2, 2005
Nicholas Tompkin: Vice President and Director
/s/ Robert Tobin Director August 2, 2005

Robert Tobir

/s/ Duke Bristow Director August 2, 200:
Duke Bristow

/sl Frederick Fran Director August 2, 200:
Frederick Franl

/sl Stephen E. Halpri Director August 2, 200:
Stephen E. Halpri

/s/ Richard S. Schneider Director August 2, 2005
Richard S. Schneidt

/s/ Kenneth E. Jones Director August 2, 2005
Kenneth E. Jone
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Exhibit 10.1

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Indemnification Agreement (this “ Agreemh®) is made as of ], by and between Landec Corporation, a California
corporation (the * Company, and [ ], (the “ Indemnite€).

RECITALS

The Company and Indemnitee recognize the asing difficulty in obtaining liability insurancef directors, officers and key employees,
significant increases in the cost of such insuramzkthe general reductions in the coverage of swsthrance. The Company and Indemnitee
further recognize the substantial increase in aateditigation in general, subjecting directorfficers and key employees to expensive
litigation risks at the same time as the availpdind coverage of liability insurance has beeresay limited. Indemnitee does not regard the
current protection available as adequate undeprégent circumstances, and Indemnitee and agettie @ompany may not be willing to
continue to serve as agents of the Company withdditional protection. The Company desires to ett@ad retain the services of highly
qualified individuals, such as Indemnitee, anchideimnify its directors, officers and key employsess to provide them with the maximum
protection permitted by law.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the mutual promises madhis Agreement, and for other good and valuabfesideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Company and Indemnitee herelpeags follows:

1. Indemnification.

(a)Third Party Proceedings. The Company shall indemnify Indemnitee if Indemaiig or was a party or is threatened to be made a
party to any threatened, pending or completed macsoit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, adistrative or investigative (other than an
action by or in the right of the Company) by reaebthe fact that Indemnitee is or was a direatflicer, employee or agent of the Company,
or any subsidiary of the Company, by reason ofaution or inaction on the part of Indemnitee wihiteofficer or director or by reason of the
fact that Indemnitee is or was serving at the rejaethe Company as a director, officer, emplogeagent of another corporation, partnership,
joint venture, trust or other enterprise, againgtemses (including attorne’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid inesstint (if such
settlement is approved in advance by the Compahighnapproval shall not be unreasonably withhetdyally and reasonably incurred by
Indemnitee in connection with such action, suiparceeding if Indemnitee acted in good faith and manner Indemnitee reasonably believed
to be in or not opposed to the best interestseftbmpany, and, with respect to any criminal actioproceeding, had no reasonable cause to
believe Indemnitee’s conduct was unlawful. The faation of any action, suit or proceeding by judgmerder, settlement, conviction, or
upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivaldrdll s10t, of itself, create a presumption that imdéee did not act in good faith and in a
manner which Indemnitee reasonably believed tol not opposed to the best interests of the Casnpa, with respect




to any criminal action or proceeding, that Indemaibad reasonable cause to believe that Indemsiteatuct was unlawful.

(b)Proceedings By or in the Right of the Company The Company shall indemnify Indemnitee if Indemaiteas or is a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any threatenedjmeor completed action or proceeding by or mtiight of the Company or any subsidiary
of the Company to procure a judgment in its fawprédason of the fact that Indemnitee is or wagecthr, officer, employee or agent of the
Company, or any subsidiary of the Company, by neag@ny action or inaction on the part of Indereeitvhile an officer or director or by
reason of the fact that Indemnitee is or was sgrairthe request of the Company as a directogerffemployee or agent of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust tites enterprise, against expenses (including aja’'rfees) and, to the fullest extent permitted
by law, amounts paid in settlement (if such setdetis approved in advance by the Company, whigha@l shall not be unreasonably
withheld), in each case to the extent actually madonably incurred by Indemnitee in connectiom e defense or settlement of such action
or suit if Indemnitee acted in good faith and imanner Indemnitee reasonably believed to be irobopposed to the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders, except that no indiation shall be made in respect of any claimuis or matter as to which Indemnitee s
have been finally adjudicated by court order ogjuent to be liable to the Company in the perforneasfcindemnitee’s duty to the Company
and its shareholders unless and only to the e#tanthe court in which such action or proceedigriwas pending shall determine upon
application that, in view of all the circumstanaéghe case, Indemnitee is fairly and reasonablifled to indemnity for such expenses which
such court shall deem proper.

(c)Mandatory Payment of Expenses To the extent that Indemnitee has been successfilleomerits or otherwise in defense of any
action, suit or proceeding referred to in Secti¢a) br Section 1(b) or the defense of any claisyésor matter therein, Indemnitee shall be
indemnified against expenses (including attornégess) actually and reasonably incurred by Indereriiteconnection therewith.

2. No Employment Rights. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intendedreate in Indemnitee any right to continued emplegtn

3. Expenses; Indemnification Procedure

(a)Advancement of ExpensesThe Company shall advance all expenses incurrdddgmnitee in connection with the investigation,
defense, settlement or appeal of any civil or anethaction, suit or proceeding referred to in Secti(a) or Section 1(b) of this Agreement
(including amounts actually paid in settlement @y auch action, suit or proceeding). Indemniteebgundertakes to repay such amounts
advanced only if, and to the extent that, it shiiately be determined that Indemnitee is nottledt to be indemnified by the Company as
authorized hereby.

(b)Notice/Cooperation by Indemnitee. Indemnitee shall, as a condition precedent to hiseo right to be indemnified under this
Agreement, give the Company notice in writing agrsas practicable of any claim made against Indearior which indemnification will or
could be sought under this Agreement. Notice to@bmpany shall be directed to the
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Chief Executive Officer of the Company and shallgbeen in accordance with the provisions of Secfi@fd) below. In addition, Indemnitee
shall give the Company such information and codpmras it may reasonably require and as shallif@indemnitee’s power.

(c)Procedure. Any indemnification and advances provided for irct881 1 and this Section 3 shall be made no Id&i@n thirty (30) day
after receipt of the written request of Indemnitéa. claim under this Agreement, under any statoteinder any provision of the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws providing fardemnification, is not paid in full by the Compauithin thirty (30) days after a written
request for payment thereof has first been recdyetthe Company, Indemnitee may, but need notatiene thereafter bring an action against
the Company to recover the unpaid amount of thienckend, subject to Section 11 of this Agreemerdemnitee shall also be entitled to be |
for the expenses (including attorneys’ fees) ofiirig such action. It shall be a defense to anf sigtion (other than an action brought to
enforce a claim for expenses incurred in connedtibh any action, suit or proceeding in advancéfinal disposition) that Indemnitee has
not met the standards of conduct which make it pesitvle under applicable law for the Company tceimaify Indemnitee for the amount
claimed, but the burden of proving such defensé bhan the Company and Indemnitee shall be edtitb receive interim payments of
expenses pursuant to Section 3(a) unless andsuictil defense may be finally adjudicated by coutéoor judgment from which no further
right of appeal exists. It is the parties’ intentithat if the Company contests Indemnitee’s righihtlemnification, the question of Indemnitee’s
right to indemnification shall be for the courtdecide, and neither the failure of the Companyl(isiag its Board of Directors, any committee
or subgroup of the Board of Directors, independegal counsel, or its shareholders) to have matitermination that indemnification of
Indemnitee is proper in the circumstances becawdeninitee has met the applicable standard of camdguired by applicable law, nor an
actual determination by the Company (includindBitgrd of Directors, any committee or subgroup ef Board of Directors, independent legal
counsel, or its shareholders) that Indemnitee baset such applicable standard of conduct, shedite a presumption that Indemnitee has or
has not met the applicable standard of conduct.

(d)Notice to Insurers. If, at the time of the receipt of a notice of aiwigpursuant to Section 3(b) hereof, the Companydiragtor and
officer liability insurance in effect, the Compaslyall give prompt notice of the commencement ohquoceeding to the insurers in accord:
with the procedures set forth in the respectivécpes. The Company shall thereafter take all nergssr desirable action to cause such inst
to pay, on behalf of the Indemnitee, all amountgapée as a result of such proceeding in accordaiitbethe terms of such policies.

(e)Selection of Counsel In the event the Company shall be obligated undeti@ 3(a) hereof to pay the expenses of any paing
against Indemnitee, the Company, if appropriatell &l entitled to assume the defense of such pdieg, with counsel approved by
Indemnitee, upon the delivery to Indemnitee of t@ritnotice of its election so to do. After delivedysuch notice, approval of such counsel by
Indemnitee and the retention of such counsel byCiapany, the Company will not be liable to Indeta@iunder this Agreement for any fees
of counsel subsequently incurred by Indemnitee vatipect to the same proceeding, provided th&ndgmnitee shall have the right to employ
counsel in any such proceeding at Indemnitee’sesggeand (ii) if (A) the employment of counsel Iagémnitee has been
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previously authorized by the Company, (B) Indemmiball have reasonably concluded that there maydoaflict of interest between the
Company and Indemnitee in the conduct of any seténde or (C) the Company shall not, in fact, lewployed counsel to assume the
defense of such proceeding, then the fees and sapef Indemnitee’s counsel shall be at the expefhttee Company.

4. Additional Indemnification Rights; Nonexclusivity .

(a)Scope. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreeméhe Company hereby agrees to indemnify therfimdiee to the fullest
extent permitted by law, notwithstanding that surtemnification is not specifically authorized Ihetother provisions of this Agreement, the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the CompanBidaws or by statute. In the event of any chanfer #he date of this Agreement, in any
applicable law, statute, or rule which expandsritjlet of a California corporation to indemnify a mber of its board of directors or an officer,
such changes shall be deemed to be within the g@auref Indemnitee’s rights and the Compangbligations under this Agreement. In the e
of any change in any applicable law, statute ag wihich narrows the right of a California corporatto indemnify a member of its board of
directors or an officer, such changes, to the éxtehotherwise required by such law, statute t& to be applied to this Agreement shall have
no effect on this Agreement or the parties’ rigdntsl obligations hereunder.

(b)Nonexclusivity . The indemnification provided by this Agreement shat be deemed exclusive of any rights to whidaelmnitee
may be entitled under the Compasrticles of Incorporation, its Bylaws, any agresm) any vote of shareholders or disinterested neesnisf
the Company’s Board of Directors, the General Cafion Law of the State of California, or otherwibeth as to action in Indemnitee’s
official capacity and as to action in another cayaghile holding such office. The indemnificatipmovided under this Agreement shall
continue as to Indemnitee for any action takenadtaken while serving in an indemnified capacitg®though he or she may have ceased to
serve in any such capacity at the time of any ac8ait or other covered proceeding.

5. Partial Indemnification . If Indemnitee is entitled under any provision aktAgreement to indemnification by the Companydome or
a portion of the expenses, judgments, fines orleaactually or reasonably incurred in the inigegion, defense, appeal or settlement of any
civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding, bustnhowever, for the total amount thereof, the Camypshall nevertheless indemnify Indemnitee
for the portion of such expenses, judgments, forggenalties to which Indemnitee is entitled.

6. Mutual Acknowledgment . Both the Company and Indemnitee acknowledge thegitain instances, Federal law or public policyyma
override applicable state law and prohibit the Camypfrom indemnifying its directors and officersden this Agreement or otherwise. For
example, the Company and Indemnitee acknowleddettbeéBecurities and Exchange Commission (the “ 9H@s taken the position that
indemnification is not permissible for liabiliti@sising under certain federal securities laws, f@deral legislation prohibits indemnification for
certain ERISA violations. Indemnitee understands$ arknowledges that the Company has undertakermpm required in the future to
undertake with the SEC to submit




the question of indemnification to a court in certeircumstances for a determination of the Comfmright under public policy to indemnify
Indemnitee.

7. Officer and Director Liability Insurance . The Company shall, from time to time, make the gfaiith determination whether or not it is
practicable for the Company to obtain and maingagolicy or policies of insurance with reputableltrance companies providing the officers
and directors of the Company with coverage fordefsom wrongful acts, or to ensure the Compangt$gpmance of its indemnification
obligations under this Agreement. Among other acdeisitions, the Company will weigh the costs of oltg such insurance coverage against
the protection afforded by such coverage. In dicjps of director and officer liability insuranciendemnitee shall be named as an insured in
such a manner as to provide Indemnitee the sarhtsr@gnd benefits as are accorded to the most falyorsured of the Comparg/directors, i
Indemnitee is a director; or of the Company’s @fg; if Indemnitee is not a director of the Comphuayis an officer; or of the Company’s key
employees, if Indemnitee is not an officer or dioedut is a key employee. Notwithstanding the §oiag, the Company shall have no
obligation to obtain or maintain such insuranc&@ Company determines in good faith that suchrarse is not reasonably available, if the
premium costs for such insurance are dispropontgtathe amount of coverage provided, if the cagerprovided by such insurance is limited
by exclusions so as to provide an insufficient ligner if Indemnitee is covered by similar insucamaintained by a parent or subsidiary of
Company.

8. Severability . Nothing in this Agreement is intended to requiresloall be construed as requiring the Company tordail to do any act
in violation of applicable law. The Company'’s iniélyi pursuant to court order, to perform its ohliigns under this Agreement shall not
constitute a breach of this Agreement. The prowsiof this Agreement shall be severable as provildétuis Section 8. If this Agreement or
any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any grbhy any court of competent jurisdiction, then @@mpany shall nevertheless indemnify
Indemnitee to the full extent permitted by any &gille portion of this Agreement that shall noté&een invalidated, and the balance of this
Agreement not so invalidated shall be enforceabbccordance with its terms.

9. Exceptions. Any other provision herein to the contrary notwittigling, the Company shall not be obligated purstaathe terms of this
Agreement:

(a)Claims Initiated by Indemnitee . To indemnify or advance expenses to Indemnitee respect to proceedings or claims initiated or
brought voluntarily by Indemnitee and not by waydefense, except with respect to proceedings bitdogkstablish or enforce a right to
indemnification under this Agreement or any ottatige or law or otherwise as required under Se@ib/ of the California General
Corporation Law, but such indemnification or advement of expenses may be provided by the Compasgydaific cases if the Board of
Directors finds it to be appropriate;

(b)Lack of Good Faith . To indemnify Indemnitee for any expenses incurrgdnolemnitee with respect to any proceeding insdby
Indemnitee to enforce or interpret this Agreem#ra,court of competent jurisdiction determinesttbach of the material assertions made by
Indemnitee in such proceeding was not made in daitid or was frivolous;
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(c)insured Claims . To indemnify Indemnitee for expenses or liabilitefsany type whatsoever (including, but not limitedjudgments
fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties, and amaquaitsin settlement) to the extent such expenséahilities have been paid directly to
Indemnitee by an insurance carrier under a polfafficers’ and directors’ liability insurance ma#ined by the Company; or

(d)Claims under Section 16(b) To indemnify Indemnitee for expenses or the payméprofits arising from the purchase and sale by
Indemnitee of securities in violation of Sectionld)6of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atadnor any similar successor statute.

10. Construction of Certain Phrases.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, rgiees to the “ Compariyshall include, in addition to the resulting corgtion, any constituent
corporation (including any constituent of a consitt) absorbed in a consolidation or merger wtifdts separate existence had continued,
would have had power and authority to indemnifyditectors, officers, and employees or agentshabit Indemnitee is or was a director,
officer, employee or agent of such constituent oafion, or is or was serving at the request ohstanstituent corporation as a director,
officer, employee or agent of another corporatfartnership, joint venture, trust or other entesgrindemnitee shall stand in the same pos
under the provisions of this Agreement with respedhe resulting or surviving corporation as Indétee would have with respect to such
constituent corporation if its separate existera ¢ontinued.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, rfiees to “ other enterpriséshall include employee benefit plans; referenoesfines” shall
include any excise taxes assessed on Indemnitegegpect to an employee benefit plan; and refeet” serving at the request of the
Company’ shall include any service as a director, offiaamployee or agent of the Company which imposeigsion, or involves services by,
such director, officer, employee or agent with eztfo an employee benefit plan, its participantdeneficiaries; and if Indemnitee acted in
good faith and in a manner Indemnitee reasonabigussl to be in the interest of the participantd Beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan,
Indemnitee shall be deemed to have acted in a mamot opposed to the best interests of the Compas referred to in this Agreement.

11. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event that any action is instituted by Indé@se under this Agreement to enforce or interprst of the terms
hereof, Indemnitee shall be entitled to be paidalirt costs and expenses, including reasonaldmaits’ fees, incurred by Indemnitee with
respect to such action, unless as a part of suanathe court of competent jurisdiction deternsinileat each of the material assertions made by
Indemnitee as a basis for such action were not rimageod faith or were frivolous. In the event of action instituted by or in the name of the
Company under this Agreement or to enforce or prrany of the terms of this Agreement, Indemniteall be entitled to be paid all court
costs and expenses, including attorneys’ feesriedby Indemnitee in defense of such action (idiclg with respect to Indemnitee’s
counterclaims and cross-claims made in such actioné¢ss as a part of such action the court detexsrthat each of Indemnitee’s material
defenses to such action were made in bad faitheoe fivolous.
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12. Miscellaneous.

(a)Governing Law . This Agreement and all acts and transactions patsexeto and the rights and obligations of theigmhereto she
be governed, construed and interpreted in accoedaitb the laws of the State of California, with@ining effect to principles of conflicts of
law.

(b)Entire Agreement; Enforcement of Rights. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreementadérstanding of the parties relating
to the subject matter herein and merges all pigmugsions between them. No modification of or atineent to this Agreement, nor any waiver
of any rights under this Agreement, shall be effectinless in writing signed by the parties to thigeement. The failure by either party to
enforce any rights under this Agreement shall motdnstrued as a waiver of any rights of such party

(c)Construction . This Agreement is the result of negotiations betwaed has been reviewed by each of the partieschane their
respective counsel, if any; accordingly, this Agneat shall be deemed to be the product of all ®fptrties hereto, and no ambiguity shall be
construed in favor of or against any one of theigahereto.

(d)Notices. Any notice, demand or request required or permiitelse given under this Agreement shall be in wgitand shall be
deemed sufficient when delivered personally or ggrfax, or 48 hours after being sent by nationadlgognized courier or deposited in the |
mail, as certified or registered mail, with postagepaid, and addressed to the party to be notifiedich party’s address or fax number as set
forth below or as subsequently modified by writtertice.

(e)XCounterparts . This Agreement may be executed in two or more eapatts, each of which shall be deemed an origindlall of
which together shall constitute one instrument.

(f)Successors and AssignsThis Agreement shall be binding upon the Compamiensuccessors and assigns, and inure to thdibene
of Indemnitee and Indemnitee’s heirs, legal reprgeves and assigns.

(g)Subrogation . In the event of payment under this Agreement, tom@any shall be subrogated to the extent of sugmeat to all of
the rights of recovery of Indemnitee, who shall@xe all documents required and shall do all dasray be necessary to secure such rights
and to enable the Company to effectively bring u#nforce such rights.

[Signature Page Follows]
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The parties hereto have executed this Agreeaseaf the day and year set forth on the firsepafgthis Agreement.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By:

Title:

Address 3603 Haven Avenu
Menlo Park, CA 9402z-1010

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED:







Exhibit 10.5¢

2006 Cash Bonus Plan

On June 9, 2005, the Board of Directors (fBedrd”) of Landec Corporation (the “Company”) apped the performance criteria and
structure for cash bonuses that may be awardeahpbogees of the Company and its subsidiaries f@r2®06 fiscal year (the “Plan”). These

arrangements are not contained in a formal writtan, but a summary of the manner in which castubes will be determined for fiscal year
2006 is set forth below.

Employees of the Company and its subsidiariag earn cash bonuses based upon the achievensaypahte income and revenue targets
for the Company, Apio, Inc. and Landec Ag, Inc. Bses are calculated by multiplying a percentageach participant’s base salary by the
percentage of the aggregate performance goalssthtthined. The percentage of base salary useetésmine each participant’s cash bonus
payment ranges from 40% to 100% of base salargXecutive officers and from 7% to 65% for other &gpes. Participants must attain a
minimum percentage of the aggregate performancks gmaeceive a bonus under the Plan and a bonysoteexceed a participant’s base
salary. Also, participants must be employed byGbenpany or one of its subsidiaries at the time lioamiuses are paid. Bonus payments, if any,
will be made in single lump sum cash payments aa 88 practicable after the end of the Compangtsafiyear.






Exhibit 10.5!

LANDEC CORPORATION
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

Non-employee Directors will receive the annual retesneneeting fees, meeting expenses and equity-lzagaidis described below as
compensation for serving as a Director.

Annual Retainers

Board Retaine— Each Director will receive an annual board regaiof $20,000 to be paid in quarterly installmesft$5,000.

Compensation Committee Chair RetairerEach Director who serves as the Chair of the Gareation Committee will receive an annual
retainer of $5,000.

Audit Committee Retain— Each Director who serves on the Audit Committéléreceive an annual retainer of $10,000, with @teairman
receiving an annual retainer of $15,000.

Lead Independent Director Retair— Each Director who serves as the Lead Indeperdieettor of the non-employee executive sessions of
the Board shall receive an annual retainer of §iM,0

Meeting Fees

Each Director will receive $1,000 for each regutegeting, adjourned regular meeting or special mgeaif the Board attended by the Director,
$500 for each regular meeting, adjourned regulastimg or special meeting of a Committee attendethbyDirector as a member of the
Committee, and $1,000 for each shareholder meatiegded by the Director.

Meeting Expenses

Reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred byechir to attend Board meetings, Committee meetinghareholder meetings in his or her
capacity as a Director will be reimbursed.

Equity Compensation Awards

Directors are automatically granted options to pase shares of the Company’s Common Stock pursuéime terms of the Company’s 1995
Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Directors’ PlanUnder the Directors’ Plan, each Director who haspreviously been granted an
equivalent option under any stock option plan ef @ompany will be granted a nonstatutory stockooptd purchase 20,000 shares of Com|
Stock (the “First Option”) on the date on which fhexson first becomes a Director. Thereafter, endéite of each annual meeting of the
shareholders, such Director (including Directorsowere not eligible for a First Option) will be gitad an additional option to purchase 10
shares of Common Stock ( a “Subsequent Option9rifsuch date, he or she shall have served ondhgény’s Board of Directors for at least
six months prior to the date of such annual meefihg First Option and each Subsequent Optionudisevfested and exercisable on the date of
grant. Options granted under the Directors’ Plavehan exercise price equal to the fair market vafube Common Stock on the date of grant
with a term of ten years.
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Form of Notice to Officers and Other Employees
Regarding April 15, 2005, Acceleration of Stock Opbn Vesting

Landec Corporation announced on April 20, 2005 thatBoard of Directors has accelerated the vestirigut-of-the-money” stock options
previously awarded to employees and officers dueete accounting regulations that will take effecour fiscal year 2007 which begins
May 29, 2006.

The following Q&A provides additional details redarg the acceleration and addresses questionkalratbeen raised.

Q: Why did Landec decide to accelerate the vesting sfock options?
The impact of new accounting regulations would hesilted in significant expenses for unvestedomstibeing recorded on the
Company’s income statement beginning with fiscar@007. The Board believes the expense reductisoceaated with the acceleration
of “out-of-the-money” options is in the best interest of the Company strateholders

Q: Are other companies taking similar action?

A number of public companies have made the decisi@tcelerate vesting of stock options and morepamies are expected to take
similar action in coming month

Q: What options were accelerated’
All unvested options with an exercise price abo®2%$, the closing price of Lanc’s stock on April 15, 200!
Q: When are the stock options fully vested? When candxercise?

The effective date for the vesting is April 15, 8308 ou may exercise your options and sell the tegukhares at your discretion
(subject, as is always the case, to La’s insider trading policy’

Q: Did the acceleration affect any other terms or conitions of my options?

Generally speaking, no. The exercise prices araffietted and the acceleration did not changeethe of your options. Options remain
exercisable until their original termination dafes. part of the acceleration, some Incentive Stopkdds (ISO) could be converted to
Non Qualified Options (NQ) resulting in a differeak treatment. You will be informed by the Stoc#tministrator (Stacia Skinner)

any of your ISOs were converted to NSOs as a reétitte acceleration. You should contact your tdxisor if you have any questior




Must | exercise and sell my options now

No. The acceleration means that your options ameddiately vested. It does not change the termebfitions, and the options rem.
exercisable until their termination da

If I am interested in exercising or selling my optons, who do | contact?

Optionees are provided materials on exercisingkstptions with their grant paperwork. If you do matve these materials, ple:
contact Stacia Skinner at €-261-3659.

What effect will this action have on the stock optin program?

In light of the accounting treatment of stock opdeginning with our fiscal year 2007, we are eatihg lon-term incentive plal
alternatives

How does this action affect the Employee Stock Punase Plan (ESPP)

The acceleration of stock option vesting has nceichpn the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Howewerutes governing the ESPP
have changed and we have under review the impasétbhanges may have on our ESPP beginning in jieaa 2007






Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-109889,;89368, 333-62866, 333-06163,
333-29103, 333-80313, 333-52339 and Form S-3 N2&-.95531 and 333-117895) pertaining to the Wtem Stock Option, 1996 Stock Opt
Plan, New Executive Stock Option Plan, 1995 Emptogtock Purchase Plan, 1995 Direct@®ick Option Plan, 1996 Stock Option Plan, 1
Non-Executive Stock Option Plan, 1988 Incentive StOgkion Plan and pertaining to shares of commorkstsued to selling shareholders of
Apio, Inc. and to individual investors, of our refsodated July 29, 2005, with respect to the codatgd financial statements of Landec
Corporation, Landec Corporation management’s assa#sof the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting of Landec Corporation, included in the AahReport (Form 10-K) for the year ended
May 29, 2005.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
July 29, 2005






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this

report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) angre responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(@)

(b)
(€)

(d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(Paragraph intentionally omitted pursuant to SE@&se 3-8238);

evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in the regi¢'s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registre’ s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@)

(b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regi¥’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; an

any fraud, whether or not material, thatives management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir

Date: August 2, 2005

/s] Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steele
President and Chief Executive Offic







Exhibit 31.2

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegah

(b) (Paragraph intentionally omitted pursuant to SE@&se 3-8238);

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the regit's internal control over financial reporting thatowed during the registré's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
function):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdseghe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and reffiehcial information; an

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, thaiwes management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir

Date: August 2, 2005

/s/ Gregory S. Skinnel

Gregory S. Skinne

Vice President of Finance and Administrat
and Chief Financial Office







Exhibit 32.]

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report afridec Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfee period ending May 29, 2005 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), I, Gary T. Steele, Clrecutive Officer and President of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-OxlepA2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshiange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygpresents, in all material respects, the fiiahcondition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 2, 2005

/s/ Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to Section 906 of the SarbiOxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b

Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United St&tede) and is not being filed as part of the Fof¥Klor as a separate disclosure
document






Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report afridec Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfee period ending May 29, 2005 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S. Skinndice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC.S§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiesiange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygpresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 2, 2005

/s/ Gregory S. Skinnet

Gregory S. Skinne

Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishsedlely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOktt of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of

Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United St&tede) and is not being filed as part of the Fof¥Klor as a separate disclosure
document



